

Journal of the Senate

Number 17—Regular Session

Thursday, April 24, 2025

CONTENTS

Bills on Special Orders
Call to Order
Co-Introducers
Committee Substitutes, First Reading
Communication
House Messages, First Reading
Moment of Silence
Motions
Point of Personal Privilege
Recess
Reconsideration of Bill
Reports of Committees
Special Guests
Special Order Calendar
Special Recognition

CALL TO ORDER

The Senate was called to order by President Albritton at 10:00 a.m. A quorum present—37:

Mr. President	Gaetz	Pizzo
Arrington	Garcia	Polsky
Avila	Grall	Rodriguez
Berman	Gruters	Rouson
Bernard	Harrell	Sharief
Boyd	Hooper	Simon
Bradley	Ingoglia	Smith
Brodeur	Jones	Truenow
Burgess	Leek	Trumbull
Burton	Martin	Wright
Calatayud	McClain	Yarborough
Davis	Osgood	5

DiCeglie Passidomo

Excused: Senator Collins

PRAYER

The following prayer was offered by Rabbi Moshe Matz, Agudath Israel of Florida, Aventura:

I am once again honored to have been invited by my dear, dear friend, Senator Jason Pizzo, to open today's session with a prayer. I would also like to express my appreciation to Senate President Albritton for his warm welcome and friendship.

I would like to take a moment, if I may, to share a thought and then a quick prayer. The Jewish people just concluded the Passover holiday. As we sat around our tables with our families, recounting the story of the Exodus, we were instructed to continue to bear witness to our history and to remain faithful to the lessons of our past and allow them to define us in the present.

Today, there are approximately 250,000 or so Holocaust survivors left in the world. They are the last that can remind us of the atrocities of that dark chapter in history. They are the only ones who can show us their scars and tattooed numbers on their arms. And yet, there are those that deny the Holocaust today—even wish to resurrect the hatred

and anti-semitism that gave birth to an evil that left my people in ashes. But we, the Jewish people, rise from the ashes because we have a divine promise that guarantees our eternity and a divine providence that envelops and protects us.

Our gratitude to this country for opening up its doors and providing us with a safe haven to rebuild our Jewish life is without words. Our people can practice our faith freely, we can worship and educate our children to follow our heritage, we can participate in society, and contribute to the betterment of all.

Now, our generation is being called upon to rise up and be the voice that does not let the world forget the destruction and pain the Holocaust brought. We must be the new generation of witnesses for those that can no longer speak for themselves. We must ensure that there is no room for this type of hatred to ever rear its ugly head ever again—whether on a college campus, or in media, or anywhere in society.

There is a fascinating prayer that we recite daily, "עושה שלום במרומיו. He who makes peace above should make peace for us and for all of Israel."

When we pray for peace, we pray for the same peace as they have in heaven. The peace of heaven is a peace where there is a common purpose, a peace without anger, jealousy, or rivalry. The only purpose is to bring honor to our Heavenly Father. Let us pray that we will experience such a peace in our lifetime. May G-d bless us all. May G-d bless the United States of America.

PLEDGE

Senate Pages, Gabriel Lopez of Lutz; Caroline McKeel of Lakeland; and Rebecca Sanchez-Pollack of Coral Gables, led the Senate in the Pledge of Allegiance to the flag of the United States of America.

DOCTOR OF THE DAY

The President recognized Dr. Ajay Mayor of Sarasota, sponsored by Senator Gruters, as the doctor of the day. Dr. Mayor specializes in psychiatry.

MOMENT OF SILENCE

At the request of Senator Burton, the Senate observed a moment of silence for the repose of the soul of Pope Francis who passed away on April 21, 2025.

RECONSIDERATION OF BILL

On motion by Senator Pizzo, the Senate reconsidered the vote by which—

CS for SB 1080—A bill to be entitled An act relating to local government land regulation; amending s. 125.022, F.S.; requiring counties to specify minimum information necessary for certain applications; revising timeframes for processing applications for approval of development permits or development orders; prohibiting counties from limiting the number of quasi-judicial or public hearings held each month in certain circumstances; defining the term "substantive change"; providing refund parameters in situations where the county fails to meet certain timeframes; providing exceptions; amending s. 163.3162, F.S.; authorizing owners of certain parcels to apply to the governing body of

the local government for certification of such parcels as agricultural enclaves; requiring the local government to provide to the applicant a certain report within a specified timeframe; requiring the local government to hold a public hearing within a specified timeframe to approve or deny such certification; requiring the governing body to issue certain decisions in writing; authorizing an applicant to seek judicial review under certain circumstances; authorizing the owner of a parcel certified as an agricultural enclave to submit certain development plans; requiring that certain developments be treated as a conforming use; prohibiting a local government from enacting or enforcing certain laws or regulations; requiring a local government to treat certain agricultural enclaves as if they are within urban service districts; requiring the local government and the owner of a parcel certified as an agricultural enclave to enter a certain written agreement; deleting provisions relating to certain amendments to a local government's comprehensive plan; revising construction; amending s. 163.3164, F.S.; revising the definition of the term "agricultural enclave"; providing for the future expiration and reversion of specified provisions; amending s. 163.3180, F.S.; prohibiting a school district from collecting, charging, or imposing certain fees unless they meet certain requirements; providing a standard of review for actions challenging such fees; amending s. 163.31801, F.S.; revising the voting threshold required for approval of certain impact fee increase ordinances by local governments, school districts, and special districts; requiring that certain impact fee increases be implemented in specified increments; prohibiting a local government from increasing an impact fee rate beyond certain phase-in limitations under certain circumstances; deleting retroactive applicability; amending s. 163.3184, F.S.; revising the expedited state review process for adoption of comprehensive plan amendments; amending s. 166.033, F.S.; requiring municipalities to specify minimum information necessary for certain applications; revising timeframes for processing applications for approval of development permits or development orders; prohibiting municipalities from limiting the number of quasi-judicial or public hearings held each month in certain circumstances; defining the term "substantive change"; providing refund parameters in situations where the municipality fails to meet certain timeframes; providing exceptions; providing an effective date.

—failed to pass as amended April 23.

On motion by Senator Pizzo, further consideration of **CS for SB 1080** was deferred.

SPECIAL ORDER CALENDAR

CS for SB 1072—A bill to be entitled An act relating to an expedited DNA testing grant program; creating s. 943.328, F.S.; defining the term "private lab"; creating the Expedited DNA Testing Grant Program within the Department of Law Enforcement; specifying potential grant recipients; providing purposes for the grants under the program; specifying eligible uses for such grant funds; requiring each grant recipient to provide a report to the executive director of the department within a certain timeframe; specifying the required contents of the report; requiring the department to adopt rules; providing an effective date.

—was read the second time by title.

SENATOR BRODEUR PRESIDING

Pending further consideration of **CS for SB 1072**, pursuant to Rule 3.11(3), there being no objection, **CS for HB 847** was withdrawn from the Committee on Fiscal Policy.

On motion by Senator McClain-

CS for HB 847—A bill to be entitled An act relating to the Expedited DNA Testing Grant Program; creating s. 943.328, F.S.; defining the term "private laboratory"; creating the Expedited DNA Testing Grant Program within the Department of Law Enforcement; providing for the annual award of grants; specifying uses of grants; requiring an annual report by each grant recipient; providing rulemaking authority; providing an effective date.

—a companion measure, was substituted for CS for SB 1072 and read the second time by title.

On motion by Senator McClain, by two-thirds vote, **CS for HB 847** was read the third time by title, passed, and certified to the House. The vote on passage was:

Yeas-37

Mr. President	Gaetz	Pizzo
Arrington	Garcia	Polsky
Avila	Grall	Rodriguez
Berman	Gruters	Rouson
Bernard	Harrell	Sharief
Boyd	Hooper	Simon
Bradley	Ingoglia	Smith
Brodeur	Jones	Truenow
Burgess	Leek	Trumbull
Burton	Martin	Wright
Calatayud	McClain	Yarborough
Davis	Osgood	
DiCeglie	Passidomo	

Nays-None

SB 984—A bill to be entitled An act relating to aggravating factors; amending s. 921.141, F.S.; providing an additional aggravating factor for capital felonies; providing an effective date.

—was read the second time by title.

Pending further consideration of **SB 984**, pursuant to Rule 3.11(3), there being no objection, **HB 693** was withdrawn from the Committee on Fiscal Policy.

On motion by Senator Gruters-

HB 693—A bill to be entitled An act relating to aggravating factors for capital felonies; amending s. 921.141, F.S.; providing an additional aggravating factor for sentencing for capital felonies if a victim was gathered with one or more persons for a specified activity; providing an effective date.

—a companion measure, was substituted for SB 984 and read the second time by title.

On motion by Senator Gruters, by two-thirds vote, **HB 693** was read the third time by title, passed, and certified to the House. The vote on passage was:

Yeas-32

Mr. President	Gaetz	Pizzo
Avila	Garcia	Polsky
Berman	Gruters	Rodriguez
Bernard	Harrell	Rouson
Boyd	Hooper	Sharief
Bradley	Ingoglia	Simon
Brodeur	Jones	Truenow
Burgess	Leek	Trumbull
Burton	Martin	Wright
Calatayud	McClain	Yarborough
DiCeglie	Passidomo	

Nays-5

Arrington Grall Smith
Davis Osgood

Vote after roll call:

Yea to Nay-Garcia

CS for CS for SB 924—A bill to be entitled An act relating to coverage for fertility preservation services; amending s. 110.12303, F.S.; requiring the Department of Management Services to provide coverage

of certain fertility retrieval and preservation services for state group health insurance plan policies issued on or after a specified date; specifying requirements and limitations regarding such coverage; prohibiting a state group health insurance plan from requiring preauthorization for certain covered services; authorizing health benefit plans to contain certain provisions under specified conditions; defining terms; providing an effective date.

-was read the second time by title.

Pending further consideration of **CS for CS for SB 924**, pursuant to Rule 3.11(3), there being no objection, **CS for HB 677** was withdrawn from the Committee on Appropriations.

On motion by Senator Calatayud-

CS for HB 677—A bill to be entitled An act relating to state group insurance program coverage of standard fertility preservation services; amending s. 110.12303, F.S.; requiring the Department of Management Services under specified state group health insurance plan policies to provide coverage of medically necessary expenses relating to standard fertility retrieval and preservation services under certain circumstances; specifying the costs covered by the coverage and the expiration of the coverage; prohibiting state group health insurance plans from requiring preauthorization for such services; authorizing maximum benefit provisions and cost-sharing requirements; providing definitions; providing an effective date.

—a companion measure, was substituted for CS for CS for SB 924 and read the second time by title.

On motion by Senator Calatayud, by two-thirds vote, **CS for HB 677** was read the third time by title, passed, and certified to the House. The vote on passage was:

Yeas-32

Mr. President	DiCeglie	Passidomo
Mr. Fresident	0	
Arrington	Gaetz	Pizzo
Avila	Garcia	Polsky
Berman	Gruters	Rodriguez
Bernard	Harrell	Rouson
Boyd	Hooper	Sharief
Bradley	Ingoglia	Smith
Brodeur	Jones	Truenow
Burgess	Leek	Trumbull
Calatayud	McClain	Wright
Davis	Osgood	
Nays—4		

- 1000

Burton Grall Martin Yarborough

Tarborougn

Vote after roll call:
Yea—Simon

CS for SB 916—A bill to be entitled An act relating to indemnification of commuter rail transportation providers; creating part III of ch. 343, F.S., entitled "Coastal Link Commuter Rail Service"; creating s. 343.711, F.S.; providing a short title; creating s. 343.712, F.S.; defining terms; authorizing an agency to assume the obligation to protect, defend, indemnify, and hold harmless certain entities from and against certain liabilities, costs, and expenses in certain circumstances; prohibiting such assumption of liability from exceeding certain parameters of allocation of risk; requiring that a contractual duty to protect, defend, indemnify, and hold harmless certain entities with respect to claims by rail passengers include a specific limitation on the amount of such duty; requiring the adjustment of such amount in certain circumstances; providing that an employee of an operator is not a coastal link corridor invitee of such operator in certain circumstances; specifying the circumstances under which certain passengers are coastal link corridor invitees of certain operators; requiring that the allocation of liability between certain agencies be allocated as agreed and limited by certain provisions; authorizing an agency to purchase liability insurance up to a

specified amount; requiring the adjustment of such amount in certain circumstances; authorizing an agency to establish a self-insurance retention fund for a specified purpose; providing construction; providing requirements for such fund; providing an effective date.

—was read the second time by title.

Pending further consideration of **CS for SB 916**, pursuant to Rule 3.11(3), there being no objection, **CS for HB 867** was withdrawn from the Committee on Fiscal Policy.

On motion by Senator Rodriguez-

CS for HB 867—A bill to be entitled An act relating to indemnification and insurance obligations of commuter rail transportation providers; creating part III of ch. 343, F.S., entitled "Coastal Link Commuter Rail Service Act,"; creating s. 343.811, F.S.; providing a short title; providing definitions; authorizing agencies, in conjunction with the operation of certain commuter rail services, to assume certain indemnification and insurance obligations, subject to certain requirements; providing construction; reenacting s. 341.302(17)(d), F.S., relating to the rail program and duties and responsibilities of the Department of Transportation, to incorporate the enactment of part III of ch. 343, F.S., in a reference thereto; providing an effective date.

—a companion measure, was substituted for ${\bf CS}$ for ${\bf SB}$ 916 and read the second time by title.

On motion by Senator Rodriguez, by two-thirds vote, **CS for HB 867** was read the third time by title, passed, and certified to the House. The vote on passage was:

Yeas-35

Mr. President	DiCeglie	Passidomo
Arrington	Gaetz	Polsky
Avila	Garcia	Rodriguez
Berman	Gruters	Rouson
Bernard	Harrell	Sharief
Boyd	Hooper	Simon
Bradley	Ingoglia	Smith
Brodeur	Jones	Truenow
Burgess	Leek	Trumbull
Burton	Martin	Wright
Calatayud	McClain	Yarborough
Davis	Osgood	-
Nays—2		
Grall	Pizzo	

Consideration of CS for SB 868 was deferred.

CS for SB 830—A bill to be entitled An act relating to the disposition of migrant vessels; amending s. 823.11, F.S.; defining the term "migrant vessel"; revising provisions concerning relocation or removal of certain vessels to include migrant vessels; amending s. 705.103, F.S.; providing procedures for law enforcement officers concerning disposition of migrant vessels; providing an effective date.

—was read the second time by title. On motion by Senator Rodriguez, by two-thirds vote, **CS for SB 830** was read the third time by title, passed, and certified to the House. The vote on passage was:

Yeas-36

Mr. President	Burgess	Gruters
Arrington	Burton	Harrell
Avila	Calatayud	Hooper
Berman	Davis	Ingoglia
Bernard	DiCeglie	Jones
Boyd	Gaetz	Leek
Bradley	Garcia	Martin
Brodeur	Grall	McClain

 Osgood
 Rodriguez
 Smith

 Passidomo
 Rouson
 Truenow

 Pizzo
 Sharief
 Trumbull

 Polsky
 Simon
 Wright

Nays-None

Vote after roll call:

Yea-Yarborough

CS for CS for SB 824—A bill to be entitled An act relating to specialty license plates; amending s. 320.08056, F.S.; increasing the annual use fee for the Florida Wildflower license plate and providing a discount for owners purchasing the plate for more than a specified number of vehicles; amending s. 320.08058, F.S.; directing the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles to develop certain specialty license plates; providing for distribution and use of fees collected from the sale of the plates; providing an effective date.

—was read the second time by title. On motion by Senator Pizzo, by two-thirds vote, **CS for CS for SB 824** was read the third time by title, passed, and certified to the House. The vote on passage was:

Yeas-37

Mr. President Gaetz Pizzo Garcia Polsky Arrington Avila Grall Rodriguez Berman Gruters Rouson Bernard Harrell Sharief Boyd Hooper Simon Bradley Smith Ingoglia Truenow Brodeur Jones Trumbull Burgess Leek Burton Martin Wright Calatayud McClain Yarborough Osgood Davis

Passidomo

Nays-None

DiCeglie

SPECIAL RECOGNITION

Senator Jones recognized Miami Northwestern Alumni Association members Larry Williams and Carol Brown, who were present in the chamber in support of CS for CS for SB 824.

Consideration of SB 788 was deferred.

CS for SB 398—A bill to be entitled An act relating to an awareness program for Alzheimer's disease and dementia-related disorders; creating s. 430.5016, F.S.; requiring the Department of Elderly Affairs to contract for the development and implementation of the Alzheimer's Disease Awareness Program; providing requirements for the program; providing requirements for the entity with which the department contracts for the development and implementation of the program; requiring the Alzheimer's Disease Advisory Committee to evaluate the program and make certain recommendations; providing an effective date.

—was read the second time by title. On motion by Senator Burgess, by two-thirds vote, **CS for SB 398** was read the third time by title, passed, and certified to the House. The vote on passage was:

Yeas-37

Mr. President	Boyd	Calatayud
Arrington	Bradley	Davis
Avila	Brodeur	DiCeglie
Berman	Burgess	Gaetz
Bernard	Burton	Garcia

Grall McClain Simon Gruters Osgood Smith Harrell Passidomo Truenow Trumbull Hooper Pizzo Ingoglia Polsky Wright Jones Rodriguez Yarborough Leek Rouson

Sharief

Nays-None

Martin

CS for CS for SB 364-A bill to be entitled An act relating to the Council on the Social Status of Black Men and Boys; transferring, renumbering, and amending s. 16.615, F.S.; establishing the council within Florida Memorial University, rather than the Department of Legal Affairs; requiring Florida Memorial University, rather than the Office of the Attorney General, to provide staff and administrative support to the council; providing that the council's meeting times are approved by the president of Florida Memorial University, rather than the Attorney General; revising the quorum requirements to reduce the number of members required for a quorum; authorizing members to appear by communications media technology; providing that members who appear by such technology are considered present and may be counted toward the quorum requirement; providing notice requirements for public meetings or workshops conducted by means of communications media technology; providing that members of the council may be reimbursed for certain expenses by Florida Memorial University, rather than the Department of Legal Affairs; providing an effective date.

—was read the second time by title. On motion by Senator Osgood, by two-thirds vote, **CS for CS for SB 364** was read the third time by title, passed, and certified to the House. The vote on passage was:

Yeas-37

Mr. President Pizzo Gaetz Polsky Arrington Garcia Avila Grall Rodriguez Berman Gruters Rouson Bernard Harrell Sharief Boyd Hooper Simon Bradley Ingoglia Smith Brodeur Jones Truenow Burgess Leek Trumbull Burton Martin Wright Calatayud McClain Yarborough Davis Osgood DiCeglie Passidomo

Nays-None

CS for CS for SB 140-A bill to be entitled An act relating to charter schools; amending s. 1002.33, F.S.; revising which persons or entities may apply for a conversion charter school; requiring a college or state university to provide a written notice of denial for denying an application for a conversion charter school; revising eligible students who may receive an enrollment preference; authorizing a municipality to apply for a charter that it may designate as a job engine charter under certain conditions; providing the purpose of a job engine charter school; providing requirements for a job engine charter; prohibiting a district school board from charging a rental or leasing fee for a conversion school; requiring a municipality to negotiate certain rental or leasing fees with the district school board; prohibiting certain property from being removed; amending s. 1011.801, F.S; revising entities that are included in the Workforce Development Capitalization Incentive Grant Program to include charter schools; requiring the State Board of Education to consider applications from a job engine charter school for rulemaking purposes; providing an effective date.

—was read the second time by title. On motion by Senator Gaetz, by two-thirds vote, **CS for CS for SB 140** was read the third time by title, passed, and certified to the House. The vote on passage was:

Yeas-30

Mr. President Gaetz Passidomo Avila Garcia Polsky Bernard Grall Rodriguez Boyd Gruters Rouson Bradley Harrell Sharief Brodeur Hooper Simon Ingoglia Truenow Burgess Burton Leek Trumbull Calatayud Martin Wright DiCeglie McClain Yarborough

Nays-7

Arrington Jones Smith

Berman Osgood Davis Pizzo

Vote after roll call:

Yea to Nay-Bernard, Polsky, Sharief

Consideration of CS for CS for SB 1800, CS for SB 1654, and CS for CS for CS for SB 1742 was deferred.

CS for SB 1654—A bill to be entitled An act relating to registration of sexual predators and sexual offenders; amending s. 775.21, F.S.; revising and providing definitions; revising reporting requirements for sexual predators; revising requirements for an online reporting system; revising verification requirements; providing criminal penalties; amending s. 943.0435, F.S.; revising reporting requirements for sexual offenders; revising verification requirements; providing criminal penalties; providing an effective date.

-was read the second time by title.

Pending further consideration of **CS for SB 1654**, pursuant to Rule 3.11(3), there being no objection, **CS for HB 1351** was withdrawn from the Committee on Fiscal Policy.

On motion by Senator Martin-

CS for HB 1351—A bill to be entitled An act relating to registration of sexual predators and sexual offenders; amending s. 775.21, F.S.; revising and providing definitions; revising reporting requirements for sexual predators; revising requirements for an online reporting system; revising verification requirements; providing criminal penalties; amending s. 943.0435, F.S.; revising reporting requirements for sexual offenders; revising verification requirements; providing criminal penalties; providing an effective date.

—a companion measure, was substituted for ${\bf CS}$ for ${\bf SB}$ 1654 and read the second time by title.

On motion by Senator Martin, by two-thirds vote, **CS for HB 1351** was read the third time by title, passed, and certified to the House. The vote on passage was:

Yeas - 37

Mr. President DiCeglie Osgood Gaetz Passidomo Arrington Avila Garcia Pizzo Berman Grall Polsky Rodriguez Bernard Gruters Boyd Harrell Rouson Bradley Hooper Sharief Brodeur Ingoglia Simon Smith Burgess Jones Burton Leek Truenow Calatayud Martin Trumbull Davis McClain Wright

Yarborough

Nays—None

Consideration of CS for CS for SB 1620, CS for CS for SB 1618, and CS for SB 1590 was deferred.

CS for CS for SB 1386—A bill to be entitled An act relating to assault or battery on a utility worker; amending s. 784.07, F.S.; defining the term "utility worker"; providing for reclassification of certain offenses committed against a utility worker engaged in work on critical infrastructure; amending ss. 901.15, 943.051, 985.11, and 985.644, F.S.; conforming provisions to changes made by the act; providing an effective date.

—was read the second time by title. On motion by Senator Yarborough, by two-thirds vote, **CS for CS for SB 1386** was read the third time by title, passed, and certified to the House. The vote on passage was:

Yeas—37

Mr. President Gaetz Pizzo Garcia Polsky Arrington Avila Grall Rodriguez Berman Gruters Rouson Bernard Harrell Sharief Boyd Hooper Simon Bradley Ingoglia Smith Brodeur Jones Truenow Burgess Leek Trumbull Burton Martin Wright McClain Calatayud Yarborough Davis Osgood Passidomo DiCeglie

Nays-None

CS for CS for CS for SB 1344—A bill to be entitled An act relating to juvenile justice; renaming ch. 984, F.S.; amending s. 984.01, F.S.; revising the purposes and intent of ch. 984, F.S.; amending s. 984.02, F.S.; revising the legislative intent for prevention and intervention; amending s. 984.03, F.S.; providing and revising definitions; amending s. 984.04, F.S.; deleting legislative intent; revising requirements for early truancy intervention; amending s. 984.06, F.S.; revising provisions concerning preservation of records and confidential information; amending s. 984.07, F.S.; providing for appointment of counsel in certain circumstances; providing for payment of counsel; providing for imposition of costs of appointed counsel on nonindigent parents in certain circumstances; providing for appointment of counsel to represent a parent or guardian in certain circumstances; amending s. 984.071, F.S.; revising provisions concerning production of an information guide concerning juvenile procedures; requiring specified departments to post the information guide on their websites; repealing s. 984.08, F.S., relating to attorney fees; repealing s. 984.085, F.S., relating to sheltering and aiding unmarried minors; creating s. 984.0861, F.S.; prohibiting the use of detention for specified purposes; amending s. 984.09, F.S.; revising provisions for a child's punishment for contempt of court; limiting periods for placement for direct contempt or indirect contempt; revising procedures for procedure and due process; amending s. 984.10, F.S.; authorizing an authorized agent of the Department of Juvenile Justice to perform intake; revising provisions concerning referrals for service; requiring the abuse hotline to be contacted in certain circumstances; authorizing a child to remain in custody in certain circumstances; conforming a cross-reference; amending s. 984.11, F.S.; requiring that an array of voluntary family services be available to remediate specified problems; providing that certain families are not eligible for voluntary family services; providing eligibility for children in certain circumstances if the Department of Children and Families agrees; providing for an interagency agreement to govern such referrals; requiring parents to use health care insurance to the extent that it is available; deleting provisions concerning collection of fees; amending s. 984.12, F.S.; revising provisions related to case staffing and to services

and treatment related to a family in need of services; amending s. 984.13, F.S.; authorizing that a child be taken into custody pursuant to a finding of contempt; specifying placement of a child taken into custody in specified circumstances; revising the duties of a person taking a child into custody; amending s. 984.14, F.S.; revising provisions concerning voluntary shelter services and placement of children in such services; deleting provisions concerning involuntary placement in a shelter; amending s. 984.15, F.S.; revising requirements for petitions for a child in need of services; conforming a cross-reference and provisions to changes made by the act; amending s. 984.151, F.S.; providing for early truancy intervention; providing for additional services to be ordered if a student is found to be a truant status offender; revising provisions concerning compliance; providing for applicability in cases in which a student is found to be a child in need of services; providing for retention of jurisdiction by courts; providing an exception; providing for service of court orders on specified entities; amending s. 984.16, F.S.; requiring that a student's school receive notice of certain actions by courts; amending s. 984.17, F.S.; specifying when a guardian ad litem may be appointed; revising provisions concerning representation of the Department of Juvenile Justice in cases in which a child is alleged to be in need of services; repealing s. 984.18, F.S., relating to referral of child-inneed-of-services cases to mediation; amending s. 984.19, F.S.; providing that an authorized agent of the department may have a medical screening provided for a child placed in shelter care; revising provisions concerning consent for medical care for a child in the care of the department; amending s. 984.20, F.S.; revising provisions for hearings in child in need of services cases; providing that the failure of a person served with notice to appear at the arraignment hearing constitutes the person's consent to the child in need of services petition; requiring a specified notice in such petitions; conforming a cross-reference; amending s. 984.21, F.S.; specifying that an order of adjudication by a court that a child is a child in need of services is a civil adjudication and not a conviction; deleting provisions allowing a court to withhold an adjudication that a child is a child in need of services in certain cases; amending s. 984.22, F.S.; conforming provisions to changes made by the act; deleting provisions on the deposit of fees received; amending s. 984.225, F.S.; revising when a child in need of services may be placed in a shelter; revising placement procedures; providing for counseling orders; specifying the effect of a placement on the legal responsibilities of a parent, guardian, or custodian; providing limits for shelter stays; deleting provisions concerning exhaustion of less restrictive alternatives; providing for periodic review of placements; requiring a court to direct a staffing to take place with the Department of Children and Families under certain circumstances; requiring a court to refer a child to the Agency for Persons with Disabilities in certain circumstances; amending s. 984.226, F.S.; authorizing contracting for physically secure shelters; deleting provisions on representation in certain proceedings; requiring exhaustion of less restrictive placements before a child may be placed in a physically secure shelter; providing a time limit on secure shelter orders; providing legislative intent; revising provisions concerning review of secure shelter placements; providing for transfer to shelter placements in certain circumstances; requiring a court to direct a staffing to take place with the department under certain circumstances; providing for the transfer of a child to the Agency for Persons with Disabilities in certain circumstances; transferring and renumbering s. 985.731, F.S., as s. 787.035, F.S., relating to offenses concerning providing sheltering unmarried minors and aiding unmarried minor runaways; providing criminal penalties; amending s. 985.03, F.S.; revising the definition of the term "child who has been found to have committed a delinquent act"; amending s. 985.24, F.S.; prohibiting placement of a child subject to certain proceedings into secure detention care; amending s. 1003.26, F.S.; authorizing that certain meetings with parents may be conducted virtually or by telephone; providing for child study team meetings in the absence of a parent, legal guardian, or custodian or child; revising interventions by such team; providing for promotion of a child who is responsive to intervention and meets specified requirements; revising provisions concerning required notice of a child's enrollment or attendance issues; revising provisions concerning returning a student to a parent or other party in certain circumstances; amending s. 1003.27, F.S.; revising reporting requirements for reports by school principals to school boards concerning minor students who accumulate more than a specified number of absences; requiring actions by school boards; providing for remedial actions for failure to comply; revising provisions concerning habitual truancy cases; revising provisions concerning cooperative agreements; revising who may begin certain proceedings and prosecutions; deleting a provision concerning a civil penalty for students; revising provisions concerning truant students; amending s. 381.02035, F.S.; authorizing pharmacists employed by the Department of Juvenile Justice to import drugs from Canada under a specified program; amending s. 790.22, F.S.; revising provisions concerning the treatment of a finding that a minor violated specified provisions, regardless of whether adjudication was withheld, for the purposes of determining whether a prior offense was committed; amending s. 985.12, F.S.; deleting a requirement that the Department of Juvenile Justice annually develop and produce best practice models for prearrest delinquency citation programs; amending s. 985.126, F.S.; revising the requirements for a quarterly report on prearrest citation programs; amending s. 985.25, F.S.; providing for supervised release or detention of a child despite the child's risk assessment score in certain circumstances; limiting the number of categories that a child may be moved; amending s. 985.433, F.S.; requiring that a child be placed on conditional release rather than probation following discharge from commitment; repealing s. 985.625, F.S., relating to literacy programs for juvenile offenders; amending s. 985.632, F.S.; deleting a provision regarding development of a cost-effectiveness model and application of the model to each commitment program; amending ss. 95.11, 409.2564, 419.001, 744.309, 784.075, and 985.618, F.S.; conforming cross-references and provisions to changes made by the act; providing an effective

—was read the second time by title. On motion by Senator Simon, by two-thirds vote, **CS for CS for CS for SB 1344** was read the third time by title, passed, and certified to the House. The vote on passage was:

Yeas—36

Mr. President	DiCeglie	Osgood
	· ·	U
Arrington	Gaetz	Passidomo
Avila	Garcia	Polsky
Berman	Grall	Rodriguez
Bernard	Gruters	Rouson
Boyd	Harrell	Sharief
Bradley	Hooper	Simon
Brodeur	Ingoglia	Smith
Burgess	Jones	Truenow
Burton	Leek	Trumbull
Calatayud	Martin	Wright
Davis	McClain	Yarborough

Nays-None

Vote after roll call:

Yea—Pizzo

CS for SB 1310—A bill to be entitled An act relating to the reporting of student mental health outcomes; creating s. 394.4575, F.S.; requiring the Office of Program Policy Analysis and Government Accountability to submit an initial specified evaluation to the Governor and Legislature by a specified date; providing evaluation requirements; requiring the office to submit a final review and evaluation to the Governor and Legislature by a specified date; providing evaluation requirements; requiring specified entities and officials to coordinate with the office; providing an effective date.

—was read the second time by title.

Pending further consideration of **CS for SB 1310**, pursuant to Rule 3.11(3), there being no objection, **CS for CS for HB 969** was withdrawn from the Committee on Fiscal Policy.

On motion by Senator Bradley-

CS for CS for HB 969—A bill to be entitled An act relating to the reporting of student mental health outcomes; creating s. 394.4575, F.S.; requiring the Office of Program Policy Analysis and Government Accountability to submit an initial specified evaluation to the Governor and Legislature by a specified date; providing evaluation requirements; requiring the office to submit a final specified evaluation to the Governor and Legislature by a specified date; providing evaluation requirements; providing an effective date.

—a companion measure, was substituted for CS for SB 1310 and read the second time by title.

On motion by Senator Bradley, by two-thirds vote, **CS for CS for HB 969** was read the third time by title, passed, and certified to the House. The vote on passage was:

Yeas-37

Mr. President	Gaetz	Pizzo
Arrington	Garcia	Polsky
Avila	Grall	Rodriguez
Berman	Gruters	Rouson
Bernard	Harrell	Sharief
Boyd	Hooper	Simon
Bradley	Ingoglia	Smith
Brodeur	Jones	Truenow
Burgess	Leek	Trumbull
Burton	Martin	Wright
Calatayud	McClain	Yarborough
Davis	Osgood	
DiCeglie	Passidomo	

Nays—None

CS for CS for SB 1174—A bill to be entitled An act relating to licensure of family foster homes; amending s. 409.175, F.S.; requiring the Department of Children and Families to adopt rules to streamline the licensure application process for licensed foster parents who relocate within this state; requiring that such rules include priority review of applications, expedited home studies and background checks, and recognition of prior foster parent training coursework; providing an effective date.

-was read the second time by title.

Pending further consideration of **CS for CS for SB 1174**, pursuant to Rule 3.11(3), there being no objection, **CS for CS for HB 989** was withdrawn from the Committee on Rules.

On motion by Senator Jones—

CS for CS for HB 989—A bill to be entitled An act relating to licensure of family foster homes; amending s. 409.175, F.S.; requiring the Department of Children and Families to adopt rules to streamline the licensure application process for licensed foster parents who relocate within this state; requiring such rules to include priority review of applications, expedited home studies and background checks, and recognition of prior foster parent training coursework; providing an effective date.

—a companion measure, was substituted for CS for CS for SB 1174 and read the second time by title.

On motion by Senator Jones, by two-thirds vote, **CS for CS for HB 989** was read the third time by title, passed, and certified to the House. The vote on passage was:

Yeas-37

Gaetz	Pizzo
Garcia	Polsky
Grall	Rodriguez
Gruters	Rouson
Harrell	Sharief
Hooper	Simon
Ingoglia	Smith
Jones	Truenow
Leek	Trumbull
Martin	Wright
McClain	Yarborough
Osgood	
Passidomo	
	Garcia Grall Gruters Harrell Hooper Ingoglia Jones Leek Martin McClain Osgood

Nays-None

SB 1162—A bill to be entitled An act relating to water access facilities; amending s. 253.0346, F.S.; providing sovereignty submerged land leases for Clean Marine Manufacturer facilities; amending s. 327.47, F.S.; providing competitive grant programs for the construction and maintenance of publicly owned parking for boat-hauling vehicles and trailers; providing an effective date.

—was read the second time by title.

Pending further consideration of **SB 1162**, pursuant to Rule 3.11(3), there being no objection, **HB 735** was withdrawn from the Committee on Fiscal Policy.

On motion by Senator Leek-

HB 735—A bill to be entitled An act relating to water access facilities; amending s. 253.0346, F.S.; providing sovereignty submerged land leases for Clean Marine Manufacturer facilities; amending s. 327.47, F.S.; providing competitive grant programs for the construction and maintenance of publicly owned parking for boat-hauling vehicles and trailers; providing an effective date.

—a companion measure, was substituted for ${\bf SB~1162}$ and read the second time by title.

On motion by Senator Leek, by two-thirds vote, **HB 735** was read the third time by title, passed, and certified to the House. The vote on passage was:

Yeas-37

Navs-None

Mr. President	Gaetz	Pizzo
Arrington	Garcia	Polsky
Avila	Grall	Rodriguez
Berman	Gruters	Rouson
Bernard	Harrell	Sharief
Boyd	Hooper	Simon
Bradley	Ingoglia	Smith
Brodeur	Jones	Truenow
Burgess	Leek	Trumbull
Burton	Martin	Wright
Calatayud	McClain	Yarborough
Davis	Osgood	_
DiCeglie	Passidomo	

Consideration of CS for SB 1160 was deferred.

CS for SB 1122—A bill to be entitled An act relating to the Florida Virtual School; amending s. 1002.37, F.S.; deleting provisions requiring the Florida Virtual School to give priority to certain students; requiring the Florida Virtual School to ensure that parents, in addition to students, are informed of specified information; providing that officers and employees are granted sovereign immunity in addition to the board of trustees; providing that the Florida Virtual School president and chief executive officer may call a meeting of the board of trustees; providing that the board of trustees may fund the education delivery system through supplemental funding in addition to the Florida Education Finance Program; requiring that certain funds be used to support the school's mission; authorizing the Florida Virtual School to accrue supplemental revenue from direct-support organizations; providing that certain expenditures are contingent upon review and approval by the Florida Virtual School president and chief executive officer or authorized designees, rather than the executive director; removing the executive director's authorization to override certain proposed expenditures; requiring, rather than authorizing, specified employees to be state employees for the purpose of being eligible to participate in the Florida Retirement System and to receive benefits; deleting a requirement for the board of trustees to establish priorities for the admission of students; authorizing the board of trustees to enter into contracts with other educational institutions and government agencies; deleting requirements for the board of trustees to establish performance and accountability measures and report performance of school district franchises to the Commissioner of Education; deleting certain requirements relating to an audit report submitted annually by the board of trustees to specified entities; requiring that international assessments offered by the school district be made available to all Florida Virtual School students; requiring that students have access to a test administrator; making technical changes; providing an effective date.

—was read the second time by title. On motion by Senator Burton, by two-thirds vote, **CS for SB 1122** was read the third time by title, passed, and certified to the House. The vote on passage was:

Yeas-37

Mr. President	Gaetz	Pizzo
Arrington	Garcia	Polsky
Avila	Grall	Rodriguez
Berman	Gruters	Rouson
Bernard	Harrell	Sharief
Boyd	Hooper	Simon
Bradley	Ingoglia	Smith
Brodeur	Jones	Truenow
Burgess	Leek	Trumbull
Burton	Martin	Wright
Calatayud	McClain	Yarborough
Davis	Osgood	
DiCeglie	Passidomo	

Nays-None

CS for SB 1102—A bill to be entitled An act relating to the school readiness program; amending s. 1002.87, F.S.; revising the criteria for a child to receive priority for participation in the school readiness program; amending s. 1002.89, F.S.; providing requirements for a school readiness program provider to be eligible for specified funding beginning on a specified date; providing an effective date.

—was read the second time by title. On motion by Senator Calatayud, by two-thirds vote, **CS for SB 1102** was read the third time by title, passed, and certified to the House. The vote on passage was:

Yeas-37

Nays-None

Mr. President	Gaetz	Pizzo
Arrington	Garcia	Polsky
Avila	Grall	Rodriguez
Berman	Gruters	Rouson
Bernard	Harrell	Sharief
Boyd	Hooper	Simon
Bradley	Ingoglia	Smith
Brodeur	Jones	Truenow
Burgess	Leek	Trumbull
Burton	Martin	Wright
Calatayud	McClain	Yarborough
Davis	Osgood	
DiCeglie	Passidomo	

to sexual images; creating s. 800.045, F.S.; defining terms; prohibiting a person from possessing with the intent to promote specified depictions that include a lewd or lascivious image; providing criminal penalties; prohibiting a person from knowingly soliciting, possessing, controlling, or intentionally viewing a depiction that includes a lewd or lascivious image; providing criminal penalties; providing applicability; amending s. 827.071, F.S.; revising the definition of the term "sexual conduct"; prohibiting a person from knowingly soliciting specified depictions of

CS for CS for SB 1180—A bill to be entitled An act relating

prohibiting a person from knowingly soliciting specified depictions of child pornography; specifying that the solicitation of each specified depiction or each child depicted is a separate offense; providing criminal penalties; revising applicability; creating s. 827.073, F.S.; defining terms; prohibiting a person from knowingly possessing, controlling, or

intentionally viewing a visual depiction he or she knows includes an altered sexual depiction of an identifiable minor; providing for prima facie evidence of intent to promote; providing criminal penalties; providing criminal penalties for persons who intentionally generate an altered sexual depiction of an identifiable minor; providing criminal penalties for persons who solicit an altered sexual depiction of a minor, without consent of the identifiable minor, and who know or reasonably should have known that such visual depiction was an altered sexual depiction; providing criminal penalties for persons who willfully and intentionally promote an altered sexual depiction of an identifiable minor and who know or reasonably should have known that such visual depiction was an altered sexual depiction; providing for a civil cause of action; providing for injunctive relief, damages, and attorney fees and costs; providing applicability; amending s. 836.13, F.S.; defining the term "generate"; providing criminal penalties for persons who possess with the intent to promote an altered sexual depiction of an identifiable person without the consent of the identifiable person; providing criminal penalties for persons who intentionally generate an altered sexual depiction of an identifiable person, without the consent of the identifiable person; providing criminal penalties for persons who solicit an altered sexual depiction of an identifiable person, without the consent of the identifiable person, and who know or reasonably should have known that such visual depiction was an altered sexual depiction; revising the list of what is not considered a defense to such offenses; providing for a civil cause of action; providing for injunctive relief, damages, and attorney fees and costs; revising and providing applicability; amending s. 921.0022, F.S.; ranking offenses created by and an offense revised by the act for purposes of the severity ranking chart of the Criminal Punishment Code; providing an effective date.

-was read the second time by title.

Pending further consideration of **CS for CS for CS for SB 1180**, pursuant to Rule 3.11(3), there being no objection, **CS for CS for HB 757** was withdrawn from the Committee on Fiscal Policy.

On motion by Senator Gaetz—

CS for CS for HB 757—A bill to be entitled An act relating to sexual images; creating s. 800.045, F.S.; providing definitions; prohibiting a person from possessing with the intent to promote specified depictions including a lewd or lascivious image; prohibiting a person from soliciting, possessing, controlling, or intentionally viewing a depiction including a lewd or lascivious image; providing criminal penalties; providing applicability; amending s. 827.071, F.S.; providing criteria that may be used to evidence actual or simulated lewd exhibition of the genitals; prohibiting a person from soliciting a depiction including child pornography; providing a criminal penalty; amending s. 836.13, F.S.; defining the term "generate"; prohibiting a person from willfully generating an altered sexual depiction of an identifiable person without the consent of the identifiable person; prohibiting a person from soliciting an altered sexual depiction of an identifiable person without the consent of the identifiable person; prohibiting a person from possessing with the intent to maliciously promote an altered sexual depiction of an identifiable person without the consent of the identifiable person; providing criminal penalties; revising applicability; amending s. 921.0022, F.S.; ranking offenses created by the act for purposes of the offense severity ranking chart of the Criminal Punishment Code; providing an effective

—a companion measure, was substituted for **CS** for **CS** for **CS** for **SB** 1180 and read the second time by title.

On motion by Senator Gaetz, by two-thirds vote, **CS for CS for HB 757** was read the third time by title, passed, and certified to the House. The vote on passage was:

Yeas-37

Mr. President	Burgess	Gruters
Arrington	Burton	Harrell
Avila	Calatayud	Hooper
Berman	Davis	Ingoglia
Bernard	DiCeglie	Jones
Boyd	Gaetz	Leek
Bradley	Garcia	Martin
Brodeur	Grall	McClain

Osgood Rouson Trumbull
Passidomo Sharief Wright
Pizzo Simon Yarborough
Polsky Smith
Rodriguez Truenow

Nays—None

Consideration of CS for SB 1150 was deferred.

CS for CS for SB 1136—A bill to be entitled An act relating to age as an element of a criminal offense; creating s. 787.001, F.S.; providing that ignorance of a victim's age, misrepresentation of a victim's age, and a bona fide belief concerning a victim's age are not defenses to certain offenses in which the victim's age is an element of the offense; providing an exception; amending s. 787.025, F.S.; revising the age requirements for committing the offenses relating to luring or enticing a child; providing increased criminal penalties; revising an affirmative defense; amending s. 921.0022, F.S.; ranking offenses on the offense severity ranking chart of the Criminal Punishment Code; providing an effective

-was read the second time by title.

Pending further consideration of **CS for CS for SB 1136**, pursuant to Rule 3.11(3), there being no objection, **CS for HB 777** was withdrawn from the Committee on Fiscal Policy.

On motion by Senator Martin-

CS for HB 777—A bill to be entitled An act relating to offenses involving children; creating s. 787.001, F.S.; providing that ignorance of a victim's age, misrepresentation of a victim's age, and a bona fide belief concerning a victim's age are not defenses to certain offenses in which the victim's age is an element of the offense; providing an exception; amending s. 787.025, F.S.; revising the age of the victim involved in luring or enticing offenses to include any child under the age of 14; prohibiting a person from luring or enticing a child under the age of 14 out of a structure, dwelling, or conveyance for other than a lawful purpose; revising the classification of specified offenses involving luring or enticing a child; amending s. 921.0022, F.S.; ranking offenses on the offense severity ranking chart of the Criminal Punishment Code; providing an effective date.

—a companion measure, was substituted for CS for CS for SB 1136 and read the second time by title.

Senator Collins offered the following amendment which was moved by Senator Martin and adopted:

Amendment 1 (871024) (with directory and title amendments)—Between lines 55 and 56 insert:

- (3) It is an affirmative defense to a prosecution under this section that:
- (b) The person lured or enticed, or attempted to lure or entice, the child under the age of 14~12 into or out of a structure, dwelling, or conveyance for a lawful purpose.

And the directory clause is amended as follows:

Delete lines 31-32 and insert:

Section 2. Subsection (2) and paragraph (b) of subsection (3) of section 787.025, Florida Statutes, are amended to read:

And the title is amended as follows:

Delete line 15 and insert: or enticing a child; revising an affirmative defense; amending s. 921.0022, F.S.;

On motion by Senator Martin, by two-thirds vote, **CS for HB 777**, as amended, was read the third time by title, passed, and certified to the House. The vote on passage was:

Yeas—37

Mr. President	Gaetz	Pizzo
Arrington	Garcia	Polsky
Avila	Grall	Rodriguez
Berman	Gruters	Rouson
Bernard	Harrell	Sharief
Boyd	Hooper	Simon
Bradley	Ingoglia	Smith
Brodeur	Jones	Truenow
Burgess	Leek	Trumbull
Burton	Martin	Wright
Calatayud	McClain	Yarborough
Davis	Osgood	
DiCeglie	Passidomo	

Nays-None

SB 1054—A bill to be entitled An act relating to tampering with an electronic monitoring device; amending s. 843.23, F.S.; reclassifying the offense of tampering with an electronic monitoring device to provide graduated penalties; requiring termination of pretrial release of a person who tampers with such a device while on pretrial release; providing an effective date.

—was read the second time by title.

Pending further consideration of **SB 1054**, pursuant to Rule 3.11(3), there being no objection, **CS for CS for HB 437** was withdrawn from the Committee on Fiscal Policy.

On motion by Senator Garcia-

CS for CS for HB 437—A bill to be entitled An act relating to tampering with an electronic monitoring device; amending s. 843.23, F.S.; revising the offense of tampering with an electronic monitoring device; reclassifying the offense to provide graduated penalties; providing a specified penalty for a person under 18 years of age who commits the offense; requiring revocation of pretrial release of a person who tampers with such a device while on pretrial release; permitting a court to set a new bond under specified conditions; providing an effective date.

—a companion measure, was substituted for SB 1054 and read the second time by title.

On motion by Senator Garcia, by two-thirds vote, **CS for CS for HB 437** was read the third time by title, passed, and certified to the House. The vote on passage was:

Yeas-37

Mr. President Gaetz Pizzo Arrington Garcia Polsky Rodriguez Avila Grall Berman Gruters Rouson Sharief Bernard Harrell Boyd Hooper Simon Bradley Smith Ingoglia Brodeur Jones Truenow Burgess Leek Trumbull Burton Martin Wright Calatayud McClain Yarborough Davis Osgood DiCeglie Passidomo

Nays-None

CS for CS for SB 954—A bill to be entitled An act relating to certified recovery residences; amending s. 397.487, F.S.; requiring, by a specified date, the governing body of each county or municipality to adopt an ordinance to establish procedures for the review and approval of certified recovery residences; requiring that such ordinance include a process for requesting reasonable accommodations from any local land

use regulation that serves to prohibit the establishment of a certified recovery residence; specifying criteria for the ordinance; providing that the ordinance may establish additional requirements for the review and approval of reasonable accommodation requests; requiring that such additional requirements be consistent with federal law and not conflict with the act; prohibiting the ordinance from requiring public hearings beyond the minimum required by law; providing that the ordinance may include provisions for revocation of a granted accommodation for cause, if the accommodation is not reinstated within a specified timeframe; providing construction; amending s. 397.4871, F.S.; providing that the personnel-to-resident ratio for a certified recovery residence must be met only when the residents are at the residence; providing that a certified recovery residence administrator for Level IV certified recovery residences which maintains a specified personnel-to-patient ratio has a limitation on the number of residents it may manage; providing an effective date.

—was read the second time by title. On motion by Senator Gruters, by two-thirds vote, **CS for CS for CS for SB 954** was read the third time by title, passed, and certified to the House. The vote on passage was:

Yeas-37

Nays-None

Mr. President	Gaetz	Pizzo
Arrington	Garcia	Polsky
Avila	Grall	Rodriguez
Berman	Gruters	Rouson
Bernard	Harrell	Sharief
Boyd	Hooper	Simon
Bradley	Ingoglia	Smith
Brodeur	Jones	Truenow
Burgess	Leek	Trumbull
Burton	Martin	Wright
Calatayud	McClain	Yarborough
Davis	Osgood	
DiCeglie	Passidomo	

SB 892—A bill to be entitled An act relating to the Florida State University Election Law Center; creating s. 1004.421, F.S.; creating the center within the Florida State University College of Law; defining the term "election law"; providing the goals of the center; authorizing the center to hire staff and develop courses; authorizing the center to hold events and conduct, aid, and sponsor specified research; authorizing the center to provide training and continuing education; authorizing the center to provide assistance to the Legislature and other governmental entities; authorizing the center to provide scholarships and assistantships and to partner with specified entities; authorizing specified entities to cooperate with the center and share specified information; providing mechanisms for the funding of the center; requiring the dean of the college of law to appoint a faculty director; providing the duties of the faculty and executive directors; providing an effective date.

—was read the second time by title. On motion by Senator Simon, by two-thirds vote, **SB 892** was read the third time by title, passed, and certified to the House. The vote on passage was:

Yeas-37

Gaetz	Pizzo
Garcia	Polsky
Grall	Rodriguez
Gruters	Rouson
Harrell	Sharief
Hooper	Simon
Ingoglia	Smith
Jones	Truenow
Leek	Trumbull
Martin	Wright
McClain	Yarborough
Osgood	
Passidomo	
	Garcia Grall Gruters Harrell Hooper Ingoglia Jones Leek Martin McClain Osgood

Nays-None

CS for SB 820—A bill to be entitled An act relating to the Office of Faith and Community; creating s. 14.311, F.S.; providing legislative findings; establishing the Office of Faith and Community within the Executive Office of the Governor for a specified purpose; specifying the duties of the Office of Faith and Community; providing for the appointment of a liaison for faith and community; specifying the duties of the liaison for faith and community; amending s. 14.31, F.S.; providing that the Office of Faith and Community provides administrative support to the Florida Faith-Based and Community-Based Advisory Council; providing an effective date.

—was read the second time by title.

Pursuant to Rule 7.1, there being no objection, consideration of the following late-filed amendment was allowed:

Senator Polsky moved the following amendment which failed:

Amendment 1 (312686)—Between lines 104 and 105 insert:

- 4. Ensuring that any employee of the Office of Faith and Community, including the liaison, does not do any of the following:
- a. Use his or her official authority or influence for the purpose of interfering with an election or coercing or influencing another person's vote or affecting the result thereof.
 - b. Participate in any political campaign while on duty.
 - c. Otherwise violate s. 104.31.

The vote was:

Yeas-13

Arrington	Gaetz	Rouson
Berman	Jones	Sharief
Bernard	Osgood	Smith
Calatayud	Pizzo	
Davis	Polsky	

Nays-23

Mr. President	Grall	Passidomo
Avila	Gruters	Rodriguez
Boyd	Harrell	Simon
Bradley	Hooper	Truenow
Brodeur	Ingoglia	Trumbull
Burgess	Leek	Wright
Burton	Martin	Yarborough
DiCeglie	McClain	

On motion by Senator Yarborough, by two-thirds vote, **CS for SB 820** was read the third time by title, passed, and certified to the House. The vote on passage was:

Smith

Yeas-27

Bernard

Mr. President	Gaetz	Passidomo
Avila	Grall	Rodriguez
Boyd	Gruters	Rouson
Bradley	Harrell	Sharief
Brodeur	Hooper	Simon
Burgess	Ingoglia	Truenow
Burton	Leek	Trumbull
Calatayud	Martin	Wright
DiCeglie	McClain	Yarborough
Nays—9		
Arrington	Davis	Pizzo
Berman	Jones	Polsky

Osgood

Vote after roll call:	
Yea—Garcia	
Consideration of CS for CS for SB 736 was deferre	- :d.

CS for SB 674—A bill to be entitled An act relating to bonuses for employees of county tax collectors and property appraisers; amending s. 445.09, F.S.; authorizing specified county tax collectors or property appraisers to budget for and pay specified bonuses to employees, pending a specified approval; providing an effective date.

-was read the second time by title.

Pending further consideration of **CS for SB 674**, pursuant to Rule 3.11(3), there being no objection, **HB 307** was withdrawn from the Committee on Rules.

On motion by Senator Wright-

HB 307—A bill to be entitled An act relating to bonuses for employees of property appraisers; amending s. 445.09, F.S.; authorizing specified property appraisers to budget for and pay specified bonuses to employees, pending a specified approval; providing an effective date.

—a companion measure, was substituted for ${\bf CS}$ for ${\bf SB}$ 674 and read the second time by title.

On motion by Senator Wright, by two-thirds vote, **HB 307** was read the third time by title, passed, and certified to the House. The vote on passage was:

Yeas-36

Mr. President	DiCeglie	Passidomo
Arrington	Gaetz	Pizzo
Avila	Grall	Polsky
Berman	Gruters	Rodriguez
Bernard	Harrell	Rouson
Boyd	Hooper	Sharief
Bradley	Ingoglia	Simon
Brodeur	Jones	Smith
Burgess	Leek	Truenow
Burton	Martin	Trumbull
Calatayud	McClain	Wright
Davis	Osgood	Yarborough

Nays-None

Vote after roll call:

Yea—Garcia

CS for SB 612—A bill to be entitled An act relating to murder; amending s. 782.04, F.S.; creating the offense of murder in the third degree; providing criminal penalties; providing an effective date.

—was read the second time by title.

Senator Burgess moved the following amendment which was adopted:

Amendment 1 (319966) (with title amendment)—Delete everything after the enacting clause and insert:

Section 1. Subsection (5) of section 782.04, Florida Statutes, is renumbered as subsection (6), and a new subsection (5) is added to that section to read:

782.04 Murder.—

(5)(a) As used in this subsection, the term:

1. "Dangerous fentanyl or fentanyl analogs" means any controlled substance described in s. 893.135(1)(c)4.a.(I)–(VII).

- 2. "Distribute" has the same meaning as in s. 893.02.
- (b) The unlawful killing of a human being, when perpetrated without any design to effect death, which resulted from the unlawful distribution by a person less than 18 years of age of any substance or mixture that he or she knew or reasonably should have known contained dangerous fentanyl or fentanyl analogs when such substance or mixture is proven to have caused, or is proven to have been a substantial factor in producing, the death of the user, is murder in the third degree and constitutes a felony of the second degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084.

Section 2. This act shall take effect July 1, 2025.

And the title is amended as follows:

Delete everything before the enacting clause and insert: A bill to be entitled An act relating to unlawful distribution of controlled substances resulting in death; amending s. 782.04, F.S.; defining the terms "dangerous fentanyl or fentanyl analogs" and "distribute"; creating an offense of murder in the third degree; providing penalties; providing an effective date.

On motion by Senator Burgess, by two-thirds vote, **CS for SB 612**, as amended, was read the third time by title, passed, ordered engrossed, and then certified to the House. The vote on passage was:

Yeas—31

Mr. President	Garcia	Polsky
Avila	Grall	Rodriguez
Berman	Gruters	Rouson
Bernard	Harrell	Simon
Boyd	Hooper	Smith
Bradley	Ingoglia	Truenow
Brodeur	Leek	Trumbull
Burgess	Martin	Wright
Burton	McClain	Yarborough
Calatayud	Passidomo	
DiCeglie	Pizzo	
Nays—5		
Arrington	Jones	Sharief
Davis	Osgood	
Vote after roll call:		
Yea—Gaetz		

Consideration of CS for SB 444 was deferred.

HB 259—A bill to be entitled An act relating to special observances; creating s. 683.3343, F.S.; designating August 21 of each year as "Fentanyl Awareness and Education Day"; encouraging specified agencies, local governments, and public schools to sponsor events to promote awareness of the dangers of fentanyl and potential overdoses, including education on specified topics; providing an effective date.

—was read the second time by title. On motion by Senator Polsky, by two-thirds vote, **HB 259** was read the third time by title, passed, and certified to the House. The vote on passage was:

Yeas—36

Mr. President Arrington Avila Berman Bernard Boyd Bradley Brodeur	Burton Davis DiCeglie Gaetz Garcia Grall Gruters Harrell	Ingoglia Jones Leek Martin McClain Osgood Passidomo Pizzo
Burgess	Hooper	Polsky

Rodriguez Simon Trumbull
Rouson Smith Wright
Sharief Truenow Yarborough

Nays-None

Vote after roll call:

Yea-Calatayud

CS for CS for SB 1838-A bill to be entitled An act relating to tampering with, harassing, or retaliating against court officials; amending s. 836.12, F.S.; defining the term "administrative assistant"; providing criminal penalties for persons who knowingly and willfully threaten specified court personnel; providing criminal penalties for persons who knowingly and willfully harass specified court personnel with certain intent; creating s. 918.115, F.S.; defining terms; amending s. 918.12, F.S.; providing criminal penalties for persons who knowingly with certain intent tamper with court officials; providing criminal penalties for persons who intentionally harass court officials when such harassment has a specified outcome; providing applicability; creating s. 918.125, F.S.; providing criminal penalties for persons who retaliate against court officials for their participation in official investigations or proceedings; providing enhanced criminal penalties if the retaliation results in bodily injury; amending ss. 772.102, 895.02, and 921.0022, F.S.; conforming provisions to changes made by the act; providing an effective date.

—was read the second time by title.

Pending further consideration of **CS for CS for SB 1838**, pursuant to Rule 3.11(3), there being no objection, **CS for HB 1049** was withdrawn from the Committee on Fiscal Policy.

On motion by Senator Martin-

CS for HB 1049—A bill to be entitled An act relating to protection of court officials; amending s. 836.12, F.S.; defining the term "administrative assistant"; providing criminal penalties for persons who knowingly and willfully threaten specified court personnel; providing criminal penalties for persons who knowingly and willfully harass specified court personnel with certain intent; creating s. 918.115, F.S.; defining terms; amending s. 918.12, F.S.; providing criminal penalties for persons who knowingly with certain intent tamper with court officials; providing criminal penalties for persons who intentionally harass court officials when such harassment has a specified outcome; creating s. 918.125, F.S.; providing criminal penalties for persons who retaliate against court officials for their participation in official investigations or proceedings; providing enhanced criminal penalties if the retaliation results in bodily injury; amending ss. 772.102, 895.02, and 921.0022, F.S.; conforming provisions to changes made by the act; providing an effective date.

—a companion measure, was substituted for CS for CS for SB 1838 and read the second time by title.

Senator Martin moved the following amendment:

Amendment 1 (927950) (with title amendment)—Delete everything after the enacting clause and insert:

Section 1. Section 836.12, Florida Statutes, is amended to read:

836.12 Threats or harassment.—

- (1) As used in this section, the term:
- (a) "Administrative assistant" means a court employee assigned to the office of a general or special magistrate or a child support enforcement hearing officer.
 - (b) "Family member" means:
- 1. An individual related to another individual by blood or marriage; or
 - 2. An individual who stands in loco parentis to another individual.

(c)(b) "Judicial assistant" means a court employee assigned to the office of a specific judge or justice responsible for providing administrative, secretarial, and clerical support to the assigned judge or justice.

(d)(e) "Law enforcement officer" means:

- 1. A law enforcement officer as defined in s. 943.10; or
- 2. A federal law enforcement officer as defined in s. 901.1505.
- (2)(a) Except as provided in paragraph (b), any person who knowingly and willfully threatens a law enforcement officer, a state attorney, an assistant state attorney, a firefighter, a judge, a justice, a general magistrate, a special magistrate, a child support enforcement hearing officer, an administrative assistant, a judicial assistant, a clerk of the court, clerk personnel, or an elected official, or a family member of any such person, with death or serious bodily harm commits a misdemeanor of the first degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082 or s. 775.083.
- (b) A person who commits a second or subsequent violation of paragraph (a) commits a felony of the third degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084.
- (3) Any person who knowingly and willfully harasses a law enforcement officer, a state attorney, an assistant state attorney, a fire-fighter, a judge, a justice, a general magistrate, a special magistrate, a child support enforcement hearing officer, an administrative assistant, a judicial assistant, a clerk of the court, clerk personnel, or an elected official, with the intent to intimidate or coerce such a person to perform or refrain from performing a lawful duty, commits a misdemeanor of the first degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082 or s. 775.083.

Section 2. Section 918.115, Florida Statutes, is created to read:

918.115 Definitions; ss. 918.12-918.125.—As used in ss. 918.12-918.125, the term:

- (1) "Administrative assistant" means a court employee assigned to the office of a specific general or special magistrate or a child support enforcement hearing officer.
- (2) "Bodily injury" means a cut, an abrasion, a bruise, a burn, or a disfigurement; physical pain; illness; impairment of the function of a bodily member, an organ, or a mental faculty; or any other injury to the body, regardless of how temporary.
- (3) "Court official" means any judge, justice, general magistrate, special magistrate, grand juror, petit juror, clerk of the court, deputy clerk of the court, judicial assistant, administrative assistant, attorney, child support enforcement hearing officer, bailiff, or court deputy.
- (4) "Harass" means to engage in a course of conduct directed at a specific person which causes substantial emotional distress in that person and serves no legitimate purpose.
- (5) "Judicial assistant" means a court employee assigned to the office of a specific judge or justice responsible for providing administrative, secretarial, or clerical support to the assigned judge or justice.
 - (6) "Misleading conduct" means any of the following:
 - (a) Knowingly making a false statement.
- (b) Intentionally omitting information from a statement and thereby causing a portion of such statement to be misleading, or intentionally concealing a material fact and thereby creating a false impression by such statement.
- (c) With the intent to mislead, knowingly submitting or inviting reliance on a writing or recording that is false, forged, altered, or otherwise lacking in authenticity.
- (d) With the intent to mislead, knowingly submitting or inviting reliance on a sample, specimen, map, photograph, boundary mark, or other object that is misleading in a material respect.
- (e) Knowingly using a trick, scheme, or device with the intent to mislead.

- (7) "Official investigation" means any investigation instituted by a law enforcement agency or prosecuting officer of the state or a political subdivision of the state or by the Commission on Ethics.
- (8) "Official proceeding" means any proceeding before a judge or court or a grand jury.
- (9) "Physical force" means physical action against another person and includes confinement of a person.
 - Section 3. Section 918.12, Florida Statutes, is amended to read:
 - 918.12 Tampering with or harassing a court official jurors.—

(1) TAMPERING WITH A COURT OFFICIAL.—

- (a) A person who knowingly commits any of the following acts with the intent to cause or induce any court official to obstruct the administration of justice or affect the outcome of an official investigation or official proceeding, commits the crime of tampering with a court official:
 - 1. Uses intimidation or physical force;
 - 2. Threatens any person or attempts to do so;
 - 3. Engages in misleading conduct toward any person; or
 - 4. Offers pecuniary benefit or gain to any person.
 - (b) A person who violates paragraph (a) commits:
- 1. A felony of the third degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084, if the offense level of the affected official investigation or official proceeding is indeterminable.
- 2. A felony of the third degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084, if the official investigation or official proceeding affected involves the investigation or prosecution of a misdemeanor or noncriminal matter pending in county court.
- 3. A felony of the second degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084, if the official investigation or official proceeding affected involves the investigation or prosecution of a felony of the third degree or noncriminal matter pending in circuit court.
- 4. A felony of the first degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084, if the official investigation or official proceeding affected involves the investigation or prosecution of a felony of the second degree.
- 5. A felony of the first degree, punishable by a term of years not exceeding life or as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084, if the official investigation or official proceeding affected involves the investigation or prosecution of a felony of the first degree or a felony of the first degree punishable by a term of years not exceeding life.
- 6. A life felony, punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084, if the official investigation or official proceeding affected involves the investigation or prosecution of a life or capital felony.

(2) HARASSING A COURT OFFICIAL.—

- (a) A person who intentionally harasses a court official and thereby hinders, delays, prevents, or dissuades, or attempts to hinder, delay, prevent, or dissuade a court official from performing any of the following acts commits the crime of harassing a court official:
 - 1. Attending an official proceeding;
- 2. Rendering a fair verdict based solely upon the evidence produced at an official proceeding and upon the law; or
- 3. Following the rules of juror behavior and deliberation as set forth by the judge.
 - (b) A person who violates paragraph (a) commits:
- 1. A misdemeanor of the first degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082 or s. 775.083, if the official investigation or official proceeding

- affected involves the investigation or prosecution of a misdemeanor or noncriminal matter pending in county court.
- 2. A felony of the third degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084, if the offense level of the affected official investigation or official proceeding is indeterminable.
- 3. A felony of the third degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084, if the official investigation or official proceeding affected involves the investigation or prosecution of a felony of the third degree or any noncriminal matter pending in circuit court.
- 4. A felony of the second degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084, if the official investigation or official proceeding affected involves the investigation or prosecution of a felony of the second degree.
- 5. A felony of the first degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084, if the official investigation or official proceeding affected involves the investigation or prosecution of a felony of the first degree.
- 6. A felony of the first degree, punishable by a term of years not exceeding life or as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084, if the official investigation or official proceeding affected involves the investigation or prosecution of a felony of the first degree punishable by a term of years not exceeding life or a prosecution of a life or capital felony.
- (3) APPLICABILITY.—This section does not apply to the actions of an attorney acting in the performance of his or her duties Any person who influences the judgment or decision of any grand or petit juror on any matter, question, cause, or proceeding which may be pending, or which may by law be brought, before him or her as such juror, with intent to obstruct the administration of justice, shall be guilty of a felony of the third degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084.
 - Section 4. Section 918.125, Florida Statutes, is created to read:
 - 918.125 Retaliating against a court official.—
- (1) A person who, with the intent to retaliate against a court official for his or her participation in an official investigation or official proceeding, commits any of the following acts commits a felony of the third degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084:
- (a) Knowingly engages in any conduct that threatens to cause bodily injury to another person; or
- $\begin{tabular}{ll} (b) & Damages the tangible property of another person or threatens to \\ do so. \end{tabular}$
- (2) If the conduct described in subsection (1) results in bodily injury, such person commits a felony of the second degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084.
- Section 5. Paragraph (a) of subsection (1) of section 772.102, Florida Statutes, is amended to read:
 - 772.102 Definitions.—As used in this chapter, the term:
- (1) "Criminal activity" means to commit, to attempt to commit, to conspire to commit, or to solicit, coerce, or intimidate another person to commit:
- - 1. Section 210.18, relating to evasion of payment of cigarette taxes.
 - 2. Section 414.39, relating to public assistance fraud.
 - 3. Section 440.105 or s. 440.106, relating to workers' compensation.
- 4. Part IV of chapter 501, relating to telemarketing.
- 5. Chapter 517, relating to securities transactions.
- $6.\,$ Section 550.235 or s. 550.3551, relating to dogracing and horse-racing.

- 7. Chapter 550, relating to jai alai frontons.
- $8. \;\;$ Chapter 552, relating to the manufacture, distribution, and use of explosives.
 - 9. Chapter 562, relating to beverage law enforcement.
- 10. Section 624.401, relating to transacting insurance without a certificate of authority, s. 624.437(4)(c)1., relating to operating an unauthorized multiple-employer welfare arrangement, or s. 626.902(1)(b), relating to representing or aiding an unauthorized insurer.
 - 11. Chapter 687, relating to interest and usurious practices.
- 12. Section 721.08, s. 721.09, or s. 721.13, relating to real estate timeshare plans.
 - 13. Chapter 782, relating to homicide.
 - 14. Chapter 784, relating to assault and battery.
 - 15. Chapter 787, relating to kidnapping or human trafficking.
 - 16. Chapter 790, relating to weapons and firearms.
- 17. Former s. 796.03, s. 796.04, s. 796.05, or s. 796.07, relating to prostitution.
 - 18. Chapter 806, relating to arson.
- 19. Section 810.02(2)(c), relating to specified burglary of a dwelling or structure.
 - 20. Chapter 812, relating to theft, robbery, and related crimes.
 - 21. Chapter 815, relating to computer-related crimes.
- 22. Chapter 817, relating to fraudulent practices, false pretenses, fraud generally, and credit card crimes.
- 23. Section 827.071, relating to commercial sexual exploitation of children.
 - 24. Chapter 831, relating to forgery and counterfeiting.
 - 25. Chapter 832, relating to issuance of worthless checks and drafts.
 - Section 836.05, relating to extortion.
 - 27. Chapter 837, relating to perjury.
 - 28. Chapter 838, relating to bribery and misuse of public office.
 - 29. Chapter 843, relating to obstruction of justice.
- 30. Section 847.011, s. 847.012, s. 847.013, s. 847.06, or s. 847.07, relating to obscene literature and profanity.
- 31. Section 849.09, s. 849.14, s. 849.15, s. 849.23, or s. 849.25, relating to gambling.
 - 32. Chapter 893, relating to drug abuse prevention and control.
- 33. Section 914.22 or s. 914.23, relating to witnesses, victims, or informants.
- 34. Section 918.12, s. 918.125, or s. 918.13, relating to tampering with or harassing court officials, retaliating against court officials, jurers and tampering with evidence.
- Section 6. Paragraph (a) of subsection (8) of section 895.02, Florida Statutes, is amended to read:
 - 895.02 Definitions.—As used in ss. 895.01-895.08, the term:
- (8) "Racketeering activity" means to commit, to attempt to commit, to conspire to commit, or to solicit, coerce, or intimidate another person to commit:
- (a) Any crime that is chargeable by petition, indictment, or information under the following provisions of the Florida Statutes:

- 1. Section 104.155(2), relating to aiding or soliciting a noncitizen in voting.
 - 2. Section 210.18, relating to evasion of payment of cigarette taxes.
- 3. Section 316.1935, relating to fleeing or attempting to elude a law enforcement officer and aggravated fleeing or eluding.
- 4. Chapter 379, relating to the illegal sale, purchase, collection, harvest, capture, or possession of wild animal life, freshwater aquatic life, or marine life, and related crimes.
 - 5. Section 403.727(3)(b), relating to environmental control.
 - 6. Section 409.920 or s. 409.9201, relating to Medicaid fraud.
 - 7. Section 414.39, relating to public assistance fraud.
 - 8. Section 440.105 or s. 440.106, relating to workers' compensation.
- 9. Section 443.071(4), relating to creation of a fictitious employer scheme to commit reemployment assistance fraud.
- 10. Section 465.0161, relating to distribution of medicinal drugs without a permit as an Internet pharmacy.
- 11. Section 499.0051, relating to crimes involving contraband, adulterated, or misbranded drugs.
 - 12. Part IV of chapter 501, relating to telemarketing.
- 13. Chapter 517, relating to sale of securities and investor protection.
- 14. Section 550.235 or s. 550.3551, relating to dogracing and horseracing.
 - 15. Chapter 550, relating to jai alai frontons.
 - 16. Section 551.109, relating to slot machine gaming.
- 17. Chapter 552, relating to the manufacture, distribution, and use of explosives.
- 18. Chapter 560, relating to money transmitters, if the violation is punishable as a felony.
 - 19. Chapter 562, relating to beverage law enforcement.
- 20. Section 624.401, relating to transacting insurance without a certificate of authority, s. 624.437(4)(c)1., relating to operating an unauthorized multiple-employer welfare arrangement, or s. 626.902(1)(b), relating to representing or aiding an unauthorized insurer.
- 21. Section 655.50, relating to reports of currency transactions, when such violation is punishable as a felony.
 - 22. Chapter 687, relating to interest and usurious practices.
- 23. Section 721.08, s. 721.09, or s. 721.13, relating to real estate timeshare plans.
- 24. Section 775.13(5)(b), relating to registration of persons found to have committed any offense for the purpose of benefiting, promoting, or furthering the interests of a criminal gang.
- $25.\,$ Section 777.03, relating to commission of crimes by accessories after the fact.
- 26. Chapter 782, relating to homicide.
- 27. Chapter 784, relating to assault and battery.
- 28. Chapter 787, relating to kidnapping, human smuggling, or human trafficking.
 - 29. Chapter 790, relating to weapons and firearms.
- 30. Chapter 794, relating to sexual battery, but only if such crime was committed with the intent to benefit, promote, or further the in-

		or the purpose of increasing a criminal position within a criminal gang.	Florida Statute	Felony Degree	Description
31. Former s. 796.796.07, relating to pro	,	r s. 796.035, s. 796.04, s. 796.05, or s.	499.0051(1)	3rd	Failure to maintain or deliver transaction history, transaction information, or transaction statements.
•	Ü	arson and criminal mischief. burglary and trespass.	499.0051(5)	2nd	Knowing sale or delivery, or possession with intent to sell, contraband prescription drugs.
34. Chapter 812, re	elating to	theft, robbery, and related crimes.	517.07(1)	3rd	Failure to register securities.
35. Chapter 815, re	elating to	computer-related crimes.	517.12(1)	3rd	Failure of dealer or associated person
		fraudulent practices, false pretenses, nes, and patient brokering.	, ,		of a dealer of securities to register.
37. Chapter 825, relderly person or disab		abuse, neglect, or exploitation of an	784.031 784.07(2)(b)	3rd 3rd	Battery by strangulation. Battery of law enforcement officer,
38. Section 827.07 children.	1, relating	g to commercial sexual exploitation of	784.074(1)(c)	3rd	firefighter, etc. Battery of sexually violent predators
39. Section 828.122	2, relating	to fighting or baiting animals.			facility staff.
40. Chapter 831, re	elating to	forgery and counterfeiting.	784.075	3rd	Battery on detention or commitment facility staff.
41. Chapter 832, re	elating to i	ssuance of worthless checks and drafts.	784.078	3rd	Battery of facility employee by
42. Section 836.05,	relating	to extortion.			throwing, tossing, or expelling certain fluids or materials.
43. Chapter 837, re	elating to	perjury.	784.08(2)(c)	3rd	Battery on a person 65 years of age or
44. Chapter 838, re	elating to	bribery and misuse of public office.	101.00(2)(0)	ora	older.
-		obstruction of justice.	784.081(3)	3rd	Battery on specified official or employee.
46. Section 847.011, s. 847.012, s. 847.013, s. 847.06, or s. 847.07, relating to obscene literature and profanity.		784.082(3)	3rd	Battery by detained person on visitor or other detainee.	
47. Chapter 849, relating to gambling, lottery, gambling or gaming devices, slot machines, or any of the provisions within that chapter.		784.083(3)	3rd	Battery on code inspector.	
48. Chapter 874, relating to criminal gangs.		784.085	3rd	Battery of child by throwing, tossing, projecting, or expelling certain fluids	
49. Chapter 893, relating to drug abuse prevention and control.				or materials.	
50. Chapter 896, relating to offenses related to financial transactions.		787.03(1)	3rd	Interference with custody; wrongly takes minor from appointed guardian.	
	im, or inf	.23, relating to tampering with or har- ormant, and retaliation against a wit-	787.04(2)	3rd	Take, entice, or remove child beyond state limits with criminal intent pending custody proceedings.
	cial, retali	and 918.13, relating to tampering with ating against court officials, jurers and	787.04(3)	3rd	Carrying child beyond state lines with criminal intent to avoid produ-
Section 7. Paragra Florida Statutes, is an		f subsection (3) of section 921.0022, read:			cing child at custody hearing or deli- vering to designated person.
,		nent Code; offense severity ranking	787.07	3rd	Human smuggling.
chart.—		ANKING CHART	790.115(1)	3rd	Exhibiting firearm or weapon within 1,000 feet of a school.
(d) LEVEL 4	ERITT		790.115(2)(b)	3rd	Possessing electric weapon or device, destructive device, or other weapon on school property.
Florida Statute	Felony Degree	Description	790.115(2)(c)	3rd	Possessing firearm on school property.
104.155	3rd	Unqualified noncitizen electors voting; aiding or soliciting noncitizen electors in voting.	794.051(1)	3rd	Indecent, lewd, or lascivious touching of certain minors.
316.1935(3)(a)	2nd	Driving at high speed or with wanton disregard for safety while fleeing or	800.04(7)(c)	3rd	Lewd or lascivious exhibition; offender less than 18 years.
	attempting to elude law enforcement officer who is in a patrol vehicle with siren and lights activated.	806.135	2nd	Destroying or demolishing a memorial or historic property.	

837.02(1)

837.021(1)

839.13(2)(a)

838.022

3rd

3rd

3rd

3rd

cy.

Perjury in official proceedings.

ficial proceedings.

Official misconduct.

Make contradictory statements in of-

Falsifying records of an individual in

the care and custody of a state agen-

JOURNAL OF THE SENATE

					.
Florida Statute	Felony Degree	Description	Florida Statute	Felony Degree	Description
810.02(4)(a)	3rd	Burglary, or attempted burglary, of an unoccupied structure; unarmed;	839.13(2)(c)	3rd	Falsifying records of the Department of Children and Families.
010 00(4)/1)	0.1	no assault or battery.	843.021	3rd	Possession of a concealed handcuff key by a person in custody.
810.02(4)(b)	3rd	Burglary, or attempted burglary, of an unoccupied conveyance; unarmed; no assault or battery.	843.025	3rd	Deprive law enforcement, correctional, or correctional probation offi-
810.06	3rd	Burglary; possession of tools.			cer of means of protection or communication.
810.08(2)(c)	3rd	Trespass on property, armed with firearm or dangerous weapon.	843.15(1)(a)	3rd	Failure to appear while on bail for felony (bond estreature or bond
810.145(3)(b)	3rd	Digital voyeurism dissemination.			jumping).
812.014(2)(c)3.	3rd	Grand theft, 3rd degree \$10,000 or more but less than \$20,000.	843.19(2)	2nd	Injure, disable, or kill police, fire, or SAR canine or police horse.
812.014 (2)(c)4. & 610.	3rd	Grand theft, 3rd degree; specified items.	847.0135(5)(c)	3rd	Lewd or lascivious exhibition using computer; offender less than 18 years.
812.014(2)(d)2.	3rd	Grand theft, 3rd degree; \$750 or more taken from dwelling or its unenclosed	870.01(3)	2nd	Aggravated rioting.
		curtilage.	870.01(5)	2nd	Aggravated inciting a riot.
812.014(2)(e)3.	3rd	Petit theft, 1st degree; less than \$40 taken from dwelling or its unenclosed curtilage with two or more prior theft	874.05(1)(a)	3rd	Encouraging or recruiting another to join a criminal gang.
812.0195(2)	3rd	convictions. Dealing in stolen property by use of	893.13(2)(a)1.	2nd	Purchase of cocaine (or other s. 893.03(1)(a), (b), or (d), (2)(a), (2)(b), or (2)(c)5. drugs).
		the Internet; property stolen \$300 or more.	914.14(2)	3rd	Witnesses accepting bribes.
817.505(4)(a)	3rd	Patient brokering.	914.22(1)	3rd	Force, threaten, etc., witness, victim, or informant.
817.563(1)	3rd	Sell or deliver substance other than controlled substance agreed upon, excluding s. 893.03(5) drugs.	914.23(2)	3rd	Retaliation against a witness, victim, or informant, no bodily injury.
817.568(2)(a)	3rd	Fraudulent use of personal identification information.	916.1085 (2)(c)1.	3rd	Introduction of specified contraband into certain DCF facilities.
817.5695(3)(c)	3rd	Exploitation of person 65 years of age	918.12	3rd	Tampering with jurors.
		or older, value less than \$10,000.	934.215	3rd	Use of two-way communications device to facilitate commission of a
817.625(2)(a)	3rd	Fraudulent use of scanning device, skimming device, or reencoder.	0.4.4. 5 (4)(.)0		crime.
817.625(2)(c)	3rd	Possess, sell, or deliver skimming device.	944.47(1)(a)6.	3rd	Introduction of contraband (cellular telephone or other portable communication device) into correctional institution.
828.125(1) 836.14(2)	2nd 3rd	Kill, maim, or cause great bodily harm or permanent breeding disability to any registered horse or cattle. Person who commits theft of a sexu-	$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	3rd	Intoxicating drug, instrumentality or other device to aid escape, or cellular telephone or other portable commu- nication device introduced into coun-
,		ally explicit image with intent to promote it.	Section 8. This ac	t shall tak	ty detention facility. e effect October 1, 2025.
836.14(3)	3rd	Person who willfully possesses a	And the title is amended as follows:		
sexually explicit image with certain knowledge, intent, and purpose.		Delete everything before the enacting clause and insert: A bill to be entitled An act relating to tampering with, harassing, or retaliating			

Delete everything before the enacting clause and insert: A bill to be entitled An act relating to tampering with, harassing, or retaliating against court officials; amending s. 836.12, F.S.; defining the term "administrative assistant"; providing criminal penalties for persons who knowingly and willfully threaten specified court personnel; providing criminal penalties for persons who knowingly and willfully harass specified court personnel with certain intent; creating s. 918.115, F.S.; defining terms; amending s. 918.12, F.S.; providing criminal penalties for persons who knowingly with certain intent tamper with court officials; providing criminal penalties for persons who intentionally harass court officials when such harassment has a specified outcome; providing applicability; creating s. 918.125, F.S.; providing criminal penalties for

persons who retaliate against court officials for their participation in official investigations or proceedings; providing enhanced criminal penalties if the retaliation results in bodily injury; amending ss. 772.102, 895.02, and 921.0022, F.S.; conforming provisions to changes made by the act; providing an effective date.

Senator Martin moved the following amendment to **Amendment 1** (927950) which was adopted:

Amendment 1A (753796)—Delete line 10 and insert: assigned to the office of a specific general or special magistrate or a

Amendment 1 (927950), as amended, was adopted.

On motion by Senator Martin, by two-thirds vote, **CS for HB 1049**, as amended, was read the third time by title, passed, and certified to the House. The vote on passage was:

Yeas-36

Mr. President	Gaetz	Passidomo
Arrington	Garcia	Pizzo
Avila	Grall	Polsky
Berman	Gruters	Rodriguez
Bernard	Harrell	Rouson
Boyd	Hooper	Sharief
Bradley	Ingoglia	Simon
Brodeur	Jones	Smith
Burton	Leek	Truenow
Calatayud	Martin	Trumbull
Davis	McClain	Wright
DiCeglie	Osgood	Yarborough

Nays-None

Vote after roll call:

Yea-Burgess

CS for SB 1782—A bill to be entitled An act relating to dangerous excessive speeding; creating s. 316.1922, F.S.; specifying conduct that constitutes dangerous excessive speeding; providing criminal penalties; authorizing the revocation of a person's driving privilege for a specified period upon a second or subsequent conviction of dangerous excessive speeding; amending s. 318.14, F.S.; providing exceptions to the requirement that an officer indicate the applicable civil penalty on a specified traffic citation; amending s. 318.19, F.S.; requiring a person cited for certain infractions to appear at a scheduled hearing; providing an effective date.

-was read the second time by title.

Pending further consideration of **CS for SB 1782**, pursuant to Rule 3.11(3), there being no objection, **CS for CS for CS for HB 351** was withdrawn from the Committee on Fiscal Policy.

On motion by Senator Pizzo-

CS for CS for HB 351—A bill to be entitled An act relating to dangerous excessive speeding; creating s. 316.1922, F.S.; providing conduct that constitutes dangerous excessive speeding; providing penalties; amending s. 318.14, F.S.; authorizing, rather than requiring, an officer to indicate the applicable civil penalty on certain traffic citations; amending s. 318.19, F.S.; requiring a person cited for certain driving infractions to appear at a scheduled hearing; providing an effective date

—a companion measure, was substituted for CS for SB 1782 and read the second time by title.

On motion by Senator Pizzo, by two-thirds vote, **CS for CS for CS for HB 351** was read the third time by title, passed, and certified to the House. The vote on passage was:

Yeas—37

Mr. President	Gaetz	Pizzo
Arrington	Garcia	Polsky
Avila	Grall	Rodriguez
Berman	Gruters	Rouson
Bernard	Harrell	Sharief
Boyd	Hooper	Simon
Bradley	Ingoglia	Smith
Brodeur	Jones	Truenow
Burgess	Leek	Trumbull
Burton	Martin	Wright
Calatayud	McClain	Yarborough
Davis	Osgood	

Passidomo

Nays-None

DiCeglie

CS for SB 1674—A bill to be entitled An act relating to unrated bonds; amending s. 218.415, F.S.; prohibiting local governments from requiring minimum bond ratings for certain investments; providing an effective date.

—was read the second time by title.

Pending further consideration of **CS for SB 1674**, pursuant to Rule 3.11(3), there being no objection, **CS for CS for HB 669** was withdrawn from the Committee on Rules.

On motion by Senator Calatayud-

CS for CS for HB 669—A bill to be entitled An act relating to Israeli bonds; amending s. 218.415, F.S.; prohibiting local governments from requiring minimum bond ratings in certain circumstances; providing an effective date.

—a companion measure, was substituted for **CS for SB 1674** and read the second time by title.

On motion by Senator Calatayud, by two-thirds vote, **CS for CS for HB 669** was read the third time by title, passed, and certified to the House. The vote on passage was:

Yeas-36

0
Z

Nays-None

Vote after roll call:

Yea-Yarborough

CS for SB 1622—A bill to be entitled An act relating to beaches; repealing s. 163.035, F.S., relating to the establishment of recreational customary use of beaches; providing a legislative declaration establishing the erosion control line for certain counties; providing a declaration of intent; requiring the Board of Trustees of the Internal Improvement Trust Fund to adopt the erosion control line by resolution in certain circumstances; authorizing the Department of Environmental Protection to proceed with certain beach restoration projects; providing that such projects do not require a public easement; providing a legis-

lative declaration of public interest; providing applicability; providing an effective date

—was read the second time by title. On motion by Senator Trumbull, by two-thirds vote, **CS for SB 1622** was read the third time by title, passed, and certified to the House. The vote on passage was:

Yeas-35

DiCeglie Mr. President Garcia Arrington Grall Avila Berman Gruters Bernard Harrell Boyd Hooper Ingoglia Bradley Brodeur Jones Burgess Leek Burton Martin Calatayud McClain Davis Osgood

Pizzo
Polsky
Rodriguez
Rouson
Sharief
Simon
Smith
Truenow
Trumbull
Wright
Yarborough

Nays—2

Gaetz Passidomo

CS for CS for SB 1604-A bill to be entitled An act relating to corrections; amending s. 57.085, F.S.; revising provisions relating to deferral of prepayment of court costs and fees for indigent prisoners for actions involving challenges to prison disciplinary reports; amending s. 95.11, F.S.; providing for a 1-year period of limitation for bringing certain actions relating to the condition of confinement of prisoners; creating s. 760.701, F.S.; defining the term "prisoner"; requiring exhaustion of administrative remedies before certain actions concerning confinement of prisoners may be brought; providing for dismissal of certain actions involving prisoner confinement in certain circumstances; requiring a showing of physical injury or the commission of a certain act as a condition precedent for bringing certain actions relating to prisoner confinement; specifying a time limitation period for bringing an action concerning any condition of confinement; amending s. 775.087, F.S.; requiring a court to impose consecutive terms of imprisonment if the offender is convicted of multiple specified felony offenses; authorizing a court to impose consecutive terms of imprisonment if the offender commits certain offenses in conjunction with another felony offense; making technical changes; amending s. 934.425, F.S.; exempting certain persons working for the Department of Corrections or the Department of Juvenile Justice, and persons authorized pursuant to a court order, from provisions regulating the use of tracking devices or tracking applications; amending s. 945.41, F.S.; revising legislative intent; revising provisions relating to mental health treatment for inmates; requiring that an inmate give his or her express and informed consent to such treatment; specifying information an inmate must receive regarding treatment; authorizing the warden to authorize certain emergency medical treatment under the direction of the inmate's attending physician under certain circumstances; amending s. 945.42, F.S.; revising and providing definitions; amending s. 945.43, F.S.; revising provisions concerning involuntary examinations; amending s. 945.44, F.S.; revising provisions concerning involuntary placement and treatment of an inmate in a mental health treatment facility; repealing s. 945.45, F.S., relating to continued placement of inmates in mental health treatment facilities; amending s. 945.46, F.S.; providing requirements for filing petitions for involuntary inpatient placement for certain inmates; authorizing the court to order alternative means and venues for certain hearings; requiring, rather than authorizing, inmates to be transported to the nearest receiving facility in certain circumstances; amending s. 945.47, F.S.; specifying purposes for which an inmate's mental health treatment records may be provided to the Florida Commission on Offender Review and the Department of Children and Families; authorizing such records to be provided to certain facilities upon request; amending s. 945.48, F.S.; substantially revising provisions relating to emergency treatment orders and use of force and providing requirements for such orders and use of force; providing requirements for emergency and psychotropic medications and use of force; creating s. 945.485, F.S.; providing legislative findings; providing requirements for management of and treatment for an inmate's selfinjurious behaviors; requiring facility wardens to consult with an inmate's treating physician in certain circumstances and make certain determinations; providing for petitions to compel an inmate to submit to medical treatment in certain circumstances; providing construction; amending s. 945.49, F.S.; deleting a requirement that the Department of Corrections adopt certain rules in cooperation with the Mental Health Program Office of the Department of Children and Families; creating s. 945.6402, F.S.; providing definitions; providing legislative findings and intent; providing requirements for inmate capacity, health care advance directives, and proxies; authorizing the use of force on incapacitated inmates in certain circumstances; providing immunity from liability for certain persons in certain circumstances; amending s. 947.02, F.S.; revising the manner in which the membership of the Florida Commission on Offender Review is appointed; repealing s. 947.021, F.S., relating to expedited appointments of the Florida Commission on Offender Review; amending s. 947.12, F.S.; conforming provisions to changes made by the act; amending s. 957.04, F.S.; revising requirements for contracting for certain services; amending s. 957.09, F.S.; deleting a provision relating to minority business enterprises; amending s. 20.32, F.S.; conforming provisions to changes made by the act; providing an effective date.

-was read the second time by title.

Pending further consideration of **CS for CS for SB 1604**, pursuant to Rule 3.11(3), there being no objection, **CS for CS for HB 903** was withdrawn from the Committee on Fiscal Policy.

CS for CS for HB 903-A bill to be entitled An act relating to corrections; amending s. 57.085, F.S.; revising provisions relating to deferral of prepayment of court costs and fees for indigent prisoners for actions involving challenges to prison disciplinary reports; amending s. 95.11, F.S.; providing for a 1-year period of limitation for bringing certain actions relating to the condition of confinement of prisoners; creating s. 760.701, F.S.; defining the term "prisoner"; requiring exhaustion of administrative remedies before certain actions concerning confinement of prisoners may be brought; providing for dismissal of certain actions involving prisoner confinement in certain circumstances; requiring a showing of physical injury or the commission of a certain act as a condition precedent for bringing certain actions relating to prisoner confinement; specifying a time limitation period for bringing an action concerning any condition of confinement; amending s. 775.087, F.S.; providing that prison terms for certain offenses committed in conjunction with another felony offense may be sentenced to be served consecutively; amending ss. 922.10 and 922.105, F.S.; revising provisions concerning methods of execution of death sentences; amending s. 934.425, F.S.; exempting persons working for the Department of Corrections or the Department of Juvenile Justice, or persons authorized pursuant to a court order, from provisions regulating the use of tracking devices or tracking applications; amending s. 945.41, F.S.; revising legislative intent; revising provisions relating to mental health treatment for inmates; providing that an inmate must give his or her express and informed consent to such treatment; specifying information an inmate must receive regarding treatment; authorizing the warden to authorize certain emergency medical treatment under the direction of the inmate's attending physician under certain circumstances; amending s. 945.42, F.S.; revising and providing definitions; amending s. 945.43, F.S.; revising provisions concerning involuntary examinations; amending s. 945.44, F.S.; revising provisions concerning involuntary placement and treatment of an inmate in a mental health treatment facility; repealing s. 945.45 F.S., relating to continued placement of inmates in mental health treatment facilities; amending s. 945.46, F.S.; providing requirements for filing petitions for involuntary inpatient placement for certain inmates; authorizing the court to order alternative means and venues for certain hearings; requiring, rather than authorizing, inmates to be transported to the nearest receiving facility in certain circumstances; amending s. 945.47, F.S.; specifying purposes for which an inmate's mental health treatment records may be provided to the Florida Commission on Offender Review and the Department of Children and Families; authorizing such records to be provided to certain facilities upon request; amending s. 945.48, F.S.; substantially rewording provisions relating to emergency treatment orders and use of force and providing requirements therefore; providing requirements for emergency and psychotropic medications and use of force; creating s. 945.485, F.S.; providing legislative findings; providing requirements for management and treatment for an inmate's self-injurious behaviors; requiring facility wardens to consult with an inmate's treating physician in certain circumstances and make certain determinations; providing for petitions to compel an inmate to submit to medical treatment in certain circumstances; providing construction; amending s. 945.49, F.S.; removing a requirement that the Department of Corrections adopt certain rules in cooperation with the Mental Health Program Office of the Department of Children and Families; creating s. 945.6402, F.S.; providing definitions; providing legislative findings and intent; providing requirements for inmate capacity, health care advance directives, and proxies; authorizing the use of force on incapacitated inmates in certain circumstances; providing immunity from liability for certain persons in certain circumstances; amending s. 947.02, F.S.; revising the manner in which the membership of the Florida Commission on Offender Review is appointed; repealing s. 947.021, F.S., relating to expedited appointments of the Florida Commission on Offender Review; amending s. 947.12, F.S.; conforming provisions to changes made by the act; amending s. 957.04, F.S.; revising requirements for contracting for certain services; amending s. 957.09, F.S.; removing a provision relating to minority business enterprises; amending s. 20.32, F.S.; conforming provisions to changes made by the act; providing an effective date.

—a companion measure, was substituted for CS for CS for SB 1604 and read the second time by title.

On motion by Senator Martin, further consideration of CS for CS for HB 903 was deferred.

RECESS

On motion by Senator Passidomo, the Senate recessed at 12:26 p.m. to reconvene at 1:30 p.m. or upon call of the President.

CALL TO ORDER

The Senate was called to order by President Albritton at 2:00 p.m. A quorum present—37:

Mr. President	Gaetz	Pizzo
Arrington	Garcia	Polsky
Avila	Grall	Rodriguez
Berman	Gruters	Rouson
Bernard	Harrell	Sharief
Boyd	Hooper	Simon
Bradley	Ingoglia	Smith
Brodeur	Jones	Truenow
Burgess	Leek	Trumbull
Burton	Martin	Wright
Calatayud	McClain	Yarborough
Davis	Osgood	
DiCeglie	Passidomo	

SPECIAL ORDER CALENDAR, continued

SENATOR BRODEUR PRESIDING

CS for CS for SB 1574—A bill to be entitled An act relating to energy infrastructure investment; amending s. 366.075, F.S.; requiring the Public Service Commission to establish an experimental mechanism that meets certain requirements to facilitate certain energy infrastructure investments in gas; providing requirements for gas infrastructure investments; defining the term "gas"; requiring the commission to adopt rules and propose such rules for adoption by a specified date; providing requirements for such rules; providing an effective date.

—was read the second time by title. On motion by Senator DiCeglie, by two-thirds vote, **CS for CS for SB 1574** was read the third time by title, passed, and certified to the House. The vote on passage was:

Yeas-37

Mr. President	Bradley	DiCeglie
Arrington	Brodeur	Gaetz
Avila	Burgess	Garcia
Berman	Burton	Grall
Bernard	Calatayud	Gruters
Boyd	Davis	Harrell

Hooper	Passidomo	Smith
Ingoglia	Pizzo	Truenow
Jones	Polsky	Trumbull
Leek	Rodriguez	Wright
Martin	Rouson	Yarborough
McClain	Sharief	

Simon

Nays-None

Osgood

CS for CS for SB 1514—A bill to be entitled An act relating to anaphylaxis in public and charter schools; amending s. 1002.20, F.S.; requiring each district school board and charter school governing board to require that a school that serves students in kindergarten through grade 8 provide specified training to an adequate number of personnel; requiring that the training include recognizing the signs of an anaphylactic reaction and administering an epinephrine delivery device; requiring each district school board and charter school governing board to require that a student's emergency action plan remain effective at all times while the student is on school grounds; requiring the State Board of Education, in consultation with the Department of Health, to adopt rules by a specified date; providing an effective date.

—was read the second time by title. On motion by Senator Smith, by two-thirds vote, **CS for CS for SB 1514** was read the third time by title, passed, and certified to the House. The vote on passage was:

Yeas-37

Gaetz	Pizzo
Garcia	Polsky
Grall	Rodriguez
Gruters	Rouson
Harrell	Sharief
Hooper	Simon
Ingoglia	Smith
Jones	Truenow
Leek	Trumbull
Martin	Wright
McClain	Yarborough
Osgood	
Passidomo	
	Garcia Grall Gruters Harrell Hooper Ingoglia Jones Leek Martin McClain Osgood

Nays-None

CS for CS for SB 1490—A bill to be entitled An act relating to the Children's Medical Services program; transferring operation of the Children's Medical Services Managed Care Plan from the Department of Health to the Agency for Health Care Administration, effective on a specified date; providing construction as to judicial and administrative actions pending as of a specified date and time; requiring the department's Children's Medical Services (CMS) program to collaborate with the agency in the care of children and youth with special health care needs; requiring the CMS program to conduct certain clinical eligibility screenings and provide ongoing consultation to the agency for a specified purpose; amending s. 409.974, F.S.; requiring the CMS program to transfer operation of certain managed care contracts from the department to the agency effective on a specified date; requiring the CMS program to conduct clinical eligibility screening for certain children and youth with special health care needs; requiring the program to provide ongoing consultation to the agency for a specified purpose; requiring the agency to establish specific measures for evaluation of services provided to children and youth with special health care needs; requiring the agency to contract with an independent evaluator to conduct the evaluation of services provided; specifying requirements for the evaluation; requiring the agency to submit the results of the evaluation to the Governor and the Legislature by a specified date; amending s. 391.016, F.S.; revising the purposes and functions of the CMS program; amending s. 391.021, F.S.; revising definitions; amending s. 391.025, F.S.; revising the scope of the CMS program; amending s. 391.026, F.S.; revising the powers and duties of the department to conform to changes made by the act; providing for the future repeal of s. 391.026(8) through (11), F.S., relating to the department's oversight and administration of the CMS program; repealing s. 391.028, F.S., relating to administration of the program; amending s. 391.029, F.S.; revising program eligibility requirements; conforming provisions to changes made by the act; amending s. 391.0315, F.S.; conforming provisions to changes made by the act; providing for future repeal of specified provisions; repealing ss. 391.035, 391.037, 391.045, 391.047, 391.055, and 391.071, F.S., relating to provider qualifications, physicians and private sector services, provider reimbursements, third-party payments, service delivery systems under the program, and quality of care requirements, respectively; amending s. 391.097, F.S.; conforming a provision to changes made by the act; repealing part II of ch. 391, F.S., consisting of ss. 391.221 and 391.223, F.S., relating to Children's Medical Services councils and panels; amending ss. 409.166, 409.811, 409.813, 409.8134, 409.814, 409.815, 409.8177, 409.818, 409.912, 409.9126, 409.9131, 409.920, and 409.962, F.S.; conforming provisions to changes made by the act; requiring the agency to develop a comprehensive plan to redesign the Florida Medicaid Model Waiver for home and community-based services to include children who receive private duty nursing services; providing requirements for the redesign of the waiver plan; requiring the agency to submit a report to the Governor and the Legislature by a specified date; providing requirements for the report; providing effective dates.

—was read the second time by title. On motion by Senator Harrell, by two-thirds vote, **CS for CS for SB 1490** was read the third time by title, passed, and certified to the House. The vote on passage was:

Yeas-37

Nays-None

Mr. President	Gaetz	Pizzo
Arrington	Garcia	Polsky
Avila	Grall	Rodriguez
Berman	Gruters	Rouson
Bernard	Harrell	Sharief
Boyd	Hooper	Simon
Bradley	Ingoglia	Smith
Brodeur	Jones	Truenow
Burgess	Leek	Trumbull
Burton	Martin	Wright
Calatayud	McClain	Yarborough
Davis	Osgood	
DiCeglie	Passidomo	

INTRODUCTION OF FORMER SENATORS

Senator Pizzo recognized former Senator Daphne Campbell who was present in the chamber.

CS for CS for SB 1620-A bill to be entitled An act relating to mental health and substance use disorders; amending s. 394.457, F.S.; requiring the Department of Children and Families to require certain providers to use a specified assessment tool; revising the minimum standards for a mobile crisis response service; amending s. 394.459, F.S.; requiring facilities to update treatment plans within specified timeframes; amending s. 394.468, F.S.; revising requirements for discharge planning regarding medications; amending s. 394.495, F.S.; requiring use of a specified assessment tool; providing an exception; requiring the Department of Children and Families, in consultation with the Department of Education, to conduct a review biennially of schoolbased behavioral health access through telehealth; providing requirements for review; requiring the Department of Children and Families to submit its findings to the Governor and the Legislature by a specified date; providing for expiration of the review; amending s. 394.659, F.S.; requiring the Criminal Justice, Mental Health, and Substance Abuse Technical Assistance Center at the Louis de la Parte Florida Mental Health Institute at the University of South Florida to disseminate among grantees certain evidence-based practices and best practices; defining the term "person-first language"; amending s. 394.875, F.S.; requiring the Department of Children and Families, in consultation with the Agency for Health Care Administration, to conduct a review biennially to identify needs regarding short-term residential treatment facilities and beds; specifying actions the department must take under certain conditions; amending s. 394.9082, F.S.; requiring managing

entities to promote use of person-first language and trauma-informed care and require use of a specified assessment tool; amending s. 1004.44, F.S.; revising the assistance and services the Louis de la Parte Florida Mental Health Institute is required to provide; revising the requirements of the Florida Center for Behavioral Health Workforce to promote behavioral health professions; creating the Center for Substance Abuse and Mental Health Research within the institute; specifying the purpose of the center; specifying the goals of the center; specifying the responsibilities of the center; requiring the center to submit a report by a specified date each year to the Governor and the Legislature; specifying the contents of the report; amending s. 1006.041, F.S.; revising the plan components for mental health assistance programs; reenacting s. 394.463(2)(g), F.S., relating to involuntary examination, to incorporate the amendment made to s. 394.468, F.S., in a reference thereto; reenacting s. 394.4955(2)(c) and (6), F.S., relating to coordinated system of care and child and adolescent mental health treatment and support, to incorporate the amendment made to s. 394.495, F.S., in references thereto; reenacting s. 1001.212(7), F.S., relating to the Office of Safe Schools, to incorporate the amendment made to s. 1004.44, F.S., in a reference thereto; providing an effective date.

—was read the second time by title.

Pursuant to Rule 7.1, there being no objection, consideration of the following late-filed amendment was allowed:

Senator Hooper moved the following amendment which was adopted:

Amendment 1 (440964) (with title amendment)—Delete lines 368-369 and insert:

(8)(a) There is created within the institute the Senator Darryl E. Rouson Center for Substance Abuse and Mental Health Research, which may also be referred to as the "Rouson Center." The purpose of the

And the title is amended as follows:

Delete lines 42-43 and insert: behavioral health professions; creating the Senator Darryl E. Rouson Center for Substance Abuse and Mental Health Research within the

CO-INTRODUCERS

All Senators voting yea, not previously shown as co-introducers, were recorded as co-introducers of **Amendment 1 (440964**).

Yeas-36

Mr. President Arrington	DiCeglie Gaetz	Passidomo Pizzo
Avila	Garcia	Polsky
Berman	Grall	Rodriguez
Bernard	Gruters	Rouson
Boyd	Harrell	Sharief
Bradley	Ingoglia	Simon
Brodeur	Jones	Smith
Burgess	Leek	Truenow
Burton	Martin	Trumbull
Calatayud	McClain	Wright
Davis	Osgood	Yarborough

On motion by Senator Rouson, by two-thirds vote, **CS for CS for SB 1620**, as amended, was read the third time by title, passed, ordered engrossed, and then certified to the House. The vote on passage was:

Yeas-37

Mr. President	Burton	Hooper
Arrington	Calatayud	Ingoglia
Avila	Davis	Jones
Berman	DiCeglie	Leek
Bernard	Gaetz	Martin
Boyd	Garcia	McClain
Bradley	Grall	Osgood
Brodeur	Gruters	Passidomo
Burgess	Harrell	Pizzo

Polsky Simon Wright
Rodriguez Smith Yarborough
Rouson Truenow
Sharief Trumbull

Nays—None

CS for SB 1458—A bill to be entitled An act relating to apprenticeship and preapprenticeship program funding; amending s. 446.032, F.S.; revising requirements for the uniform minimum standards and policies governing apprenticeship and preapprenticeship programs and agreements to include requirements for partnerships between local educational agencies and apprenticeship and preapprenticeship programs; revising the required date for a specified report on apprenticeship and preapprenticeship programs; revising the requirements for such report; requiring the Department of Education to develop a standard model contract template for local educational agencies and apprenticeship and preapprenticeship programs; providing requirements for such template; providing requirements for local educational agencies and apprenticeship and preapprenticeship programs that enter into partnership agreements; requiring the department to develop an apprenticeship and preapprenticeship funding transparency tool by a specified date; providing requirements for such tool; amending s. 1011.80, F.S.; providing requirements for District Workforce Education Funding Steering Committee meetings; providing requirements for certain workpapers; authorizing such meetings to be held using communications media technology; defining the term "communications media technology"; requiring a specified funding model to be provided to the Legislature annually within a specified timeframe; providing an effective date.

—was read the second time by title.

Pending further consideration of **CS for SB 1458**, pursuant to Rule 3.11(3), there being no objection, **CS for HB 681** was withdrawn from the Committee on Fiscal Policy.

On motion by Senator DiCeglie-

CS for HB 681-A bill to be entitled An act relating to apprenticeship and preapprenticeship program funding; amending s. 446.032, F.S.; revising requirements for the uniform minimum standards and policies governing apprenticeship and preapprenticeship programs and agreements to include requirements for partnerships between local educational agencies and apprenticeship and preapprenticeship programs; revising the required date for a specified report on apprenticeship and preapprenticeship programs; revising the requirements for such report; requiring the Department of Education to develop a standard model contract template for local educational agencies and apprenticeship and preapprenticeship programs; providing requirements for such template; providing requirements for local educational agencies and apprenticeship and preapprenticeship programs that enter into partnership agreements; requiring the department to develop an apprenticeship funding transparency tool by a specified date; providing requirements for such tool; amending s. 1011.80, F.S.; providing requirements for District Workforce Education Funding Steering Committee meetings; providing requirements for certain workpapers; authorizing such meetings to be held using communications media technology; defining the term "communications media technology"; requiring a specified funding model to be provided to the Legislature annually within a specified timeframe; providing an effective date.

—a companion measure, was substituted for ${\bf CS}$ for ${\bf SB}$ 1458 and read the second time by title.

On motion by Senator DiCeglie, by two-thirds vote, **CS for HB 681** was read the third time by title, passed, and certified to the House. The vote on passage was:

Yeas—37

Mr. President Boyd Calatayud
Arrington Bradley Davis
Avila Brodeur DiCeglie
Berman Burgess Gaetz
Bernard Burton Garcia

McClain Grall Simon Gruters Smith Osgood Harrell Passidomo Truenow Hooper Pizzo Trumbull Ingoglia Polsky Wright Jones Rodriguez Yarborough Leek Rouson

Sharief

Nays-None

Martin

CS for SB 1450—A bill to be entitled An act relating to arrest and detention of individuals with significant medical conditions; creating s. 901.1501, F.S.; defining the term "person with a significant medical condition"; providing that a law enforcement officer may use his or her discretion in determining whether to make an immediate arrest of such person; providing construction; providing an effective date.

-was read the second time by title.

Pending further consideration of **CS for SB 1450**, pursuant to Rule 3.11(3), there being no objection, **CS for HB 1099** was withdrawn from the Committee on Rules.

On motion by Senator Burgess-

CS for HB 1099—A bill to be entitled An act relating to arrest and detention of individuals with significant medical conditions; creating s. 901.1501, F.S.; defining the term "person with a significant medical condition"; providing that a law enforcement officer may use his or her discretion in determining whether to make an immediate arrest of such person; providing construction; providing an effective date.

—a companion measure, was substituted for CS for SB 1450 and read the second time by title.

On motion by Senator Burgess, by two-thirds vote, \mathbf{CS} for \mathbf{HB} 1099 was read the third time by title, passed, and certified to the House. The vote on passage was:

Yeas—37

Mr. President Gaetz Pizzo Polsky Arrington Garcia Avila Grall Rodriguez Gruters Rouson Berman Bernard Harrell Sharief Boyd Hooper Simon Bradley Ingoglia Smith Brodeur Jones Truenow Burgess Leek Trumbull Burton Martin Wright Calatayud McClain Yarborough Davis Osgood DiCeglie Passidomo

Nays-None

CS for CS for SB 1422—A bill to be entitled An act relating to unmanned aircraft or unmanned aircraft systems; amending s. 330.41, F.S.; revising the definition of the term "critical infrastructure facility"; providing an exception to the prohibition on operating a drone over a critical infrastructure facility; increasing the criminal penalty for certain prohibited actions relating to drones; amending s. 330.411, F.S.; defining the terms "unmanned aircraft" and "unmanned aircraft system"; prohibiting certain actions relating to unmanned aircraft and unmanned aircraft systems; providing an exception; providing criminal penalties; amending s. 934.50, F.S.; authorizing certain persons to use reasonable force to prohibit a drone from conducting surveillance under certain circumstances; revising and providing exceptions to certain prohibited actions relating to drones; providing criminal penalties; providing applicability; providing an effective date.

[—]was read the second time by title.

Pending further consideration of **CS for CS for SB 1422**, pursuant to Rule 3.11(3), there being no objection, **CS for CS for HB 1121** was withdrawn from the Committee on Rules.

On motion by Senator Truenow-

CS for CS for HB 1121—A bill to be entitled An act relating to unmanned aircraft and unmanned aircraft systems; amending s. 330.41, F.S.; revising the definition of the term "critical infrastructure facility"; providing an exception to the prohibition on operating a drone over a critical infrastructure facility; increasing the criminal penalty for certain prohibited actions relating to drones; amending s. 330.411, F.S.; defining the terms "unmanned aircraft" and "unmanned aircraft system"; prohibiting certain actions relating to unmanned aircraft or unmanned aircraft systems; providing an exception; providing criminal penalties; amending s. 934.50, F.S.; revising and providing exceptions to certain prohibited actions relating to drones; providing criminal penalties; providing applicability; providing an effective date.

—a companion measure, was substituted for CS for CS for SB 1422 and read the second time by title.

On motion by Senator Truenow, by two-thirds vote, **CS for CS for HB 1121** was read the third time by title, passed, and certified to the House. The vote on passage was:

Yeas-37

Mr. President	Gaetz	Pizzo
Arrington	Garcia	Polsky
Avila	Grall	Rodriguez
Berman	Gruters	Rouson
Bernard	Harrell	Sharief
Boyd	Hooper	Simon
Bradley	Ingoglia	Smith
Brodeur	Jones	Truenow
Burgess	Leek	Trumbull
Burton	Martin	Wright
Calatayud	McClain	Yarborough
Davis	Osgood	_
DiCeglie	Passidomo	

Nays-None

CS for SB 1224—A bill to be entitled An act relating to the administration of controlled substances; amending s. 893.05, F.S.; authorizing a practitioner to cause a controlled substance to be administered by a certified paramedic in the course of providing emergency services; providing an effective date.

-was read the second time by title.

Pending further consideration of **CS for SB 1224**, pursuant to Rule 3.11(3), there being no objection, **CS for HB 519** was withdrawn from the Committee on Rules.

On motion by Senator Harrell-

CS for HB 519—A bill to be entitled An act relating to administration of controlled substances by paramedics; amending s. 893.05, F.S.; authorizing a practitioner to cause a certified paramedic to administer a controlled substance; providing an effective date.

—a companion measure, was substituted for CS for SB 1224 and read the second time by title.

On motion by Senator Harrell, by two-thirds vote, \mathbf{CS} for \mathbf{HB} 519 was read the third time by title, passed, and certified to the House. The vote on passage was:

Yeas-37

Mr. President Bernard Burgess
Arrington Boyd Burton
Avila Bradley Calatayud
Berman Brodeur Davis

DiCeglie	Leek	Sharief
Gaetz	Martin	Simon
Garcia	McClain	Smith
Grall	Osgood	Truenow
Gruters	Passidomo	Trumbull
Harrell	Pizzo	Wright
Hooper	Polsky	Yarborough
Ingoglia	Rodriguez	

Rouson

Nays-None

Jones

CS for CS for SB 988—A bill to be entitled An act relating to securities; amending s. 517.021, F.S.; providing and revising definitions; amending s. 517.061, F.S.; revising the circumstances under which securities transactions are exempt from registration requirements; conforming cross-references; amending s. 517.0612, F.S.; revising the filing requirements for securities issuers under the Florida Invest Local Exemption law; amending s. 517.0614, F.S.; revising circumstances under which securities offers and sales are not subject to integration with other offerings; amending s. 517.0616, F.S.; revising the registration exemptions that are available to specified issuers under certain circumstances; providing applicability of certain disqualification provisions under a specified Securities and Exchange Commission rule; amending s. 517.075, F.S.; making a technical change; amending s. 517.081, F.S.; revising the requirements for securities registration applications; amending s. 517.12, F.S.; revising the list of persons who must submit fingerprints for live-scan processing for registration applications; providing fees for fingerprint processing; defining the terms "owner" and "shareholder"; authorizing the Financial Services Commission to consider certain rules and regulations in waiving the fingerprint requirement; providing and revising definitions; revising the written assurances requirements that merger and acquisition brokers must receive from certain control persons under specified circumstances; revising the circumstances under which merger and acquisition brokers are not exempt from specified securities registration; conforming cross-references; amending s. 517.131, F.S.; defining the term "restitution order"; revising the circumstances under which a person is eligible for payment from the Securities Guaranty Fund; revising the requirements for applications for payment from the fund; conforming cross-references; amending s. 517.301, F.S.; specifying a prohibition against certain misrepresentations in a person issuing and selling securities; amending s. 517.34, F.S.; revising the maximum number of days by which a dealer or investment adviser may extend a delay on a disbursement or transaction; amending ss. 517.211 and 517.315, F.S.; conforming cross-references; providing an effective date.

—was read the second time by title.

Pending further consideration of **CS for CS for SB 988**, pursuant to Rule 3.11(3), there being no objection, **CS for CS for HB 379** was withdrawn from the Committee on Fiscal Policy.

On motion by Senator Truenow-

CS for CS for HB 379—A bill to be entitled An act relating to securities; amending s. 517.021, F.S.; providing and revising definitions; amending s. 517.061, F.S.; revising the circumstances under which securities transactions are exempt from registration requirements; amending s. 517.0612, F.S.; revising the filing requirements for securities issuers under the Florida Invest Local Exemption law; amending s. 517.0614, F.S.; revising the circumstances under which securities offers and sales are not subject to integration with other offerings; amending s. 517.0616, F.S.; revising the registration exemptions that are available to specified issuers under certain circumstances; providing applicability of certain disqualification provisions under a specified Securities and Exchange Commission rule; amending s. 517.075, F.S.; making technical changes; amending s. 517.081, F.S.; revising the requirements for securities registration applications; amending s. 517.12, F.S.; revising the list of persons who must submit fingerprints for livescan processing for registration applications; providing fees for fingerprint processing; providing and revising definitions; requiring the Office of Financial Regulation to review the results of the state and federal criminal history record checks and make specified determinations; authorizing the Financial Services Commission to waive by rule certain requirements and to consider certain rules and regulations in waiving

the requirements; revising the written assurances requirements that merger and acquisition brokers must receive from certain control persons under specified circumstances; revising the circumstances under which merger and acquisition brokers are not exempt from specified securities registration; amending s. 517.131, F.S.; defining the term "restitution order"; revising the circumstances under which a person is eligible for payment from the Securities Guaranty Fund; revising the requirements for applications for payment from the fund; amending s. 517.301, F.S.; specifying a prohibition against certain misrepresentations in issuing and selling securities; amending s. 517.34, F.S.; increasing the maximum number of days that dealers and investment advisers may extend the delay on certain disbursements and transactions of funds and securities for the protection of specified adults; amending ss. 517.211 and 517.315, F.S.; conforming cross-references; providing an effective date.

—a companion measure, was substituted for CS for CS for SB 988 and read the second time by title.

On motion by Senator Truenow, by two-thirds vote, **CS for CS for HB 379** was read the third time by title, passed, and certified to the House. The vote on passage was:

Yeas-37

Mr. President	Gaetz	Pizzo
Arrington	Garcia	Polsky
Avila	Grall	Rodriguez
Berman	Gruters	Rouson
Bernard	Harrell	Sharief
Boyd	Hooper	Simon
Bradley	Ingoglia	Smith
Brodeur	Jones	Truenow
Burgess	Leek	Trumbull
Burton	Martin	Wright
Calatayud	McClain	Yarborough
Davis	Osgood	
DiCeglie	Passidomo	
Nays—None		

Consideration of SB 96 and CS for CS for SB 132 was deferred.

CS for SB 430—A bill to be entitled An act relating to cardiac emergencies; amending s. 1003.453, F.S.; revising requirements for instruction on cardiopulmonary resuscitation and the use of an automated external defibrillator; creating s. 1003.457, F.S.; requiring each public school to develop a cardiac emergency response plan (CERP); requiring school officials to work with local emergency service providers to integrate the CERP into emergency responder protocols; requiring public schools, including charter schools, to have at least one operational automated external defibrillator on school grounds by a specified date; providing requirements for the placement and maintenance of the defibrillators; requiring that certain school staff receive specified training as determined by the CERP; providing immunity from liability for school employees and volunteers under the Good Samaritan Act and the Cardiac Arrest Survival Act; providing construction; requiring the State Board of Education to adopt rules; providing an effective date.

—was read the second time by title.

Pending further consideration of **CS for SB 430**, pursuant to Rule 3.11(3), there being no objection, **CS for HB 1607** was withdrawn from the Committee on Rules.

On motion by Senator Simon-

CS for HB 1607—A bill to be entitled An act relating to cardiac emergencies; amending s. 1003.453, F.S.; requiring, rather than authorizing, school districts to provide training in basic first aid to certain students; providing requirements for such training; creating s. 1003.457, F.S.; requiring each public school to develop a plan for urgent life-saving emergencies (PULSE) for specified purposes; requiring school officials to work with local emergency service providers to integrate the PULSE into emergency responder protocols; requiring

public schools, including charter schools, to have at least one operational automated external defibrillator on school grounds by a specified date; providing requirements for the placement and maintenance of the defibrillators; providing construction; requiring that certain school staff receive specified training; providing registration requirements for the location of the defibrillators; providing immunity from liability for school employees and volunteers under the Good Samaritan Act and the Cardiac Arrest Survival Act; requiring the State Board of Education to adopt rules; providing requirements for such rules; providing an effective date.

—a companion measure, was substituted for **CS for SB 430** and read the second time by title.

Senator Simon moved the following amendment which was adopted:

Amendment 1 (365646) (with title amendment)—Delete everything after the enacting clause and insert:

- Section 1. This act may be cited as the "Rafe Maccarone Act."
- Section 2. Subsection (3) of section 1003.453, Florida Statutes, is amended to read:

1003.453~ School wellness and physical education policies; nutrition guidelines.—

- (3) School districts shall are encouraged to provide basic training in first aid, including cardiopulmonary resuscitation, once in middle school in a physical education or health class and once in high school in a physical education or health class. Instruction in the use of cardiopulmonary resuscitation must:
- (a) Allow students to practice the psychomotor skills associated with performing cardiopulmonary resuscitation; and
- (b) Include the use of an automated external defibrillator—for all students in grade 6 and grade 8. School districts are required to provide basic training in first aid, including cardiopulmonary resuscitation, for all students in grade 9 and grade 11. Instruction in the use of cardiopulmonary resuscitation must be based on a one-hour, nationally recognized program that uses the most current evidence based emergency cardiovascular care guidelines. The instruction must allow students to practice the psychometor skills associated with performing cardiopulmonary resuscitation and use an automated external defibrillator when a school district has the equipment necessary to perform the instruction. Private and public partnerships for providing training or necessary funding are encouraged.
- Section 3. Section 1003.457, Florida Statutes, is created to read:

1003.457 $\,$ Cardiac emergencies and automated external defibrillators on school grounds.—

- (1) Each public school shall develop a cardiac emergency response plan (CERP) that addresses the appropriate use of school personnel to respond to incidents involving an individual experiencing sudden cardiac arrest or a similar life-threatening emergency while on school grounds. Each CERP must integrate evidence-based core elements.
- (2) School officials shall work directly with local emergency service providers to integrate the CERP into the community's emergency responder protocols.
- (3)(a) No later than July 1, 2027, each public school, including charter schools, shall have at least one operational automated external defibrillator on school grounds. The defibrillator must be available in a clearly marked and publicized location. Schools shall maintain the defibrillator according to the manufacturer's recommendations and maintain all verification records for such defibrillators.
- (b) Appropriate school staff must be trained in first aid, cardiopulmonary resuscitation, and defibrillator use.
- (c) The location of each defibrillator must be registered with a local emergency medical services medical director.
- (d) The use of defibrillators by school employees and volunteers is covered under ss. 768.13 and 768.1325.

- (4) Compliance with the requirements of s. 1006.165 does not constitute compliance with this section.
- (5) The State Board of Education shall adopt rules to administer this section.

Section 4. This act shall take effect July 1, 2025.

And the title is amended as follows:

Delete everything before the enacting clause and insert: A bill to be entitled An act relating to cardiac emergencies; providing a short title; amending s. 1003.453, F.S.; revising requirements for instruction on cardiopulmonary resuscitation and the use of an automated external defibrillator; creating s. 1003.457, F.S.; requiring each public school to develop a cardiac emergency response plan (CERP); requiring school officials to work with local emergency service providers to integrate the CERP into emergency responder protocols; requiring public schools, including charter schools, to have at least one operational automated external defibrillator on school grounds by a specified date; providing requirements for the placement and maintenance of the defibrillators; requiring that certain school staff receive specified training; providing immunity from liability for school employees and volunteers under the Good Samaritan Act and the Cardiac Arrest Survival Act; providing construction; requiring the State Board of Education to adopt rules; providing an effective date.

On motion by Senator Simon, by two-thirds vote, CS for HB 1607, as amended, was read the third time by title, passed, and certified to the House. The vote on passage was:

Yeas-37

Mr. President	Gaetz	Pizzo
Arrington	Garcia	Polsky
Avila	Grall	Rodriguez
Berman	Gruters	Rouson
Bernard	Harrell	Sharief
Boyd	Hooper	Simon
Bradley	Ingoglia	Smith
Brodeur	Jones	Truenow
Burgess	Leek	Trumbull
Burton	Martin	Wright
Calatayud	McClain	Yarborough
Davis	Osgood	
DiCeglie	Passidomo	

Nays-None

CS for SB 1820—A bill to be entitled An act relating to motor vehicle manufacturers and franchised motor vehicle dealers; amending s. 320.64, F.S.; prohibiting an applicant or a licensee, or a common entity thereof, from establishing, implementing, or enforcing certain criteria for measuring the sales or service performance of its franchised motor vehicle dealers unless certain conditions are met; prohibiting an applicant or a licensee, or a common entity thereof, from engaging in an action that is taken as retaliation against a motor vehicle dealer under certain circumstances; amending s. 320.641, F.S.; revising the circumstances in which a discontinuation, cancellation, nonrenewal, modification, or replacement of a franchise agreement is deemed unfair; providing an effective date.

-was read the second time by title.

Pending further consideration of CS for SB 1820, pursuant to Rule 3.11(3), there being no objection, CS for CS for HB 429 was withdrawn from the Committee on Rules.

On motion by Senator Leek-

CS for CS for HB 429—A bill to be entitled An act relating to motor vehicle manufacturers and franchised motor vehicle dealers; amending s. 320.64, F.S.; prohibiting an applicant or a licensee, or a common entity thereof, from establishing, implementing, or enforcing certain criteria for measuring the sales or service performance of its franchised motor vehicle dealers unless certain conditions are met; prohibiting an applicant or a licensee, or a common entity thereof, from engaging in an action that is taken as retaliation against a motor vehicle dealer under certain circumstances; amending s. 320.641, F.S.; revising the circumstances in which a discontinuation, cancellation, nonrenewal, modification, or replacement of a franchise agreement is deemed unfair; providing an effective date.

-a companion measure, was substituted for CS for SB 1820 and read the second time by title.

On motion by Senator Leek, by two-thirds vote, CS for CS for HB **429** was read the third time by title, passed, and certified to the House. The vote on passage was:

Yeas-37

Mr. President	Gaetz	Pizzo
Arrington	Garcia	Polsky
Avila	Grall	Rodriguez
Berman	Gruters	Rouson
Bernard	Harrell	Sharief
Boyd	Hooper	Simon
Bradley	Ingoglia	Smith
Brodeur	Jones	Truenow
Burgess	Leek	Trumbull
Burton	Martin	Wright
Calatayud	McClain	Yarborough
Davis	Osgood	
DiCeglie	Passidomo	
Nays—None		

Consideration of CS for CS for CS for SB 1702 was deferred.

CS for SB 1644—A bill to be entitled An act relating to emergency services; amending s. 316.2398, F.S.; deleting a limitation on the number of red or red and white warning signals that certain vehicles may display; amending s. 401.25, F.S.; revising the circumstances under which certain applicants for a specified license are exempt from a requirement to obtain certificates of public convenience and necessity; requiring an applicant seeking such exemption to submit a sworn affidavit to the department attesting to certain facts; providing criminal penalties for the submission of an affidavit that fraudulently attests to certain facts; revising a limitation on the number of counties that may be granted a certain exemption; prohibiting a licensed volunteer ambulance service from applying for, receiving funds under, or participating in certain grant programs; amending s. 395.401, F.S.; conforming a cross-reference; providing an effective date.

—was read the second time by title.

Pending further consideration of CS for SB 1644, pursuant to Rule 3.11(3), there being no objection, CS for HB 1487 was withdrawn from the Committee on Rules.

On motion by Senator Rodriguez-

CS for HB 1487—A bill to be entitled An act relating to emergency services; amending s. 316.2398, F.S.; removing a limitation on the number of red or red and white warning signals that certain vehicles may display; amending s. 401.25, F.S.; revising the circumstances under which certain applicants for a specified license are exempt from a specified requirement; requiring an applicant seeking such exemption to submit a sworn affidavit to the Department of Health attesting to certain facts; revising the number of counties that may be granted such exemption; prohibiting a licensed volunteer ambulance service from applying for, receiving funds under, or participating in certain grant programs; amending s. 395.401, F.S.; conforming a cross-reference; providing an effective date.

-a companion measure, was substituted for CS for SB 1644 and read the second time by title.

On motion by Senator Rodriguez, by two-thirds vote, CS for HB 1487 was read the third time by title, passed, and certified to the House. The vote on passage was:

Yeas-37

Mr. President	Gaetz	Pizzo
Arrington	Garcia	Polsky
Avila	Grall	Rodriguez
Berman	Gruters	Rouson
Bernard	Harrell	Sharief
Boyd	Hooper	Simon
Bradley	Ingoglia	Smith
Brodeur	Jones	Truenow
Burgess	Leek	Trumbull
Burton	Martin	Wright
Calatayud	McClain	Yarborough
Davis	Osgood	
DiCeglie	Passidomo	

Navs-None

CS for CS for SB 1266—A bill to be entitled An act relating to public records; amending s. 119.071, F.S.; providing definitions; expanding a public records exemption for crime victims to include the name and personal identification number of the victim and any other information or records that could be used to locate, intimidate, harass, or abuse a victim or the victim's family; providing that such exemption includes records generated by any agency that regularly generates information from or concerning the victims of crime; providing that certain records identifying law enforcement officers who are involved in a use of force incident are confidential and exempt for a specified timeframe; providing requirements for extending such timeframe; providing for future legislative review and repeal of the exemptions; providing a statement of public necessity; providing an effective date.

—was read the second time by title.

following late-filed amendment was allowed:

Senator Gruters moved the following amendment which was adopted:

Amendment 1 (589524)—Delete line 29 and insert: head official or the sheriff of an employing agency as defined in s.

943.10(4)

Pursuant to Rule 7.1, there being no objection, consideration of the

Senator Grall moved the following amendment which failed:

Amendment 2 (673850)—Delete lines 85-174 and insert:

- e.(I) The identity of any officer, involved in a use of force incident and who becomes the victim of a crime in the course and scope of the officer's employment or official duties in the same or a related incident is confidential and exempt from the public records law as set forth in sub-sub-subparagraphs (II) and (III).
- (II) During the 72 hours immediately following an incident in which an officer becomes the victim of a crime, the identity of the officer contained in any public record that reveals that the officer was involved in such a use of force incident is confidential and exempt from s. 119.07(1) and s. 24(a), Art. I of the State Constitution. At the expiration of the 72-hour period, the officer's identity shall be subject to s. 119.07(1) unless the employing agency head provides written findings setting forth the necessity for an extension of the confidentiality of the officer's identity.
- (III) The employing agency head may extend the confidentiality of the identity of an officer contained in any public record that reveals that the officer was involved in such a use of force incident only upon written findings. The written findings by employing agency head shall state the necessity of extending the confidentiality of the officer's identity beyond the 72-hour period and the written findings must be made public before the 72-hour period expires. Such an extension may not exceed 60 days.
- (IV) This sub-subparagraph is subject to the Open Government Sunset Review Act in accordance with s. 119.15 and shall stand repealed

on October 2, 2030, unless reviewed and saved from repeal through reenactment by the Legislature.

- 2.a. Any information in a videotaped statement of a minor who is alleged to be or who is a victim of sexual battery, lewd acts, or other sexual misconduct proscribed in chapter 800 or in s. 794.011, s. 827.071, s. 847.0125, s. 847.0125, s. 847.013, s. 847.0133, or s. 847.0145, which reveals that minor's identity, including, but not limited to, the minor's face; the minor's home, school, church, or employment telephone number; the minor's home, school, church, or employment address; the name of the minor's school, church, or place of employment; or the personal assets of the minor; and which identifies that minor as the victim of a crime described in this subparagraph, held by a law enforcement agency, is confidential and exempt from s. 119.07(1) and s. 24(a), Art. I of the State Constitution. Any governmental agency that is authorized to have access to such statements by any provision of law shall be granted such access in the furtherance of the agency's statutory duties, notwithstanding the provisions of this section.
- b. A public employee or officer who has access to a videotaped statement of a minor who is alleged to be or who is a victim of sexual battery, lewd acts, or other sexual misconduct proscribed in chapter 800 or in s. 794.011, s. 827.071, s. 847.012, s. 847.0125, s. 847.013, s. 847.0133, or s. 847.0145 may not willfully and knowingly disclose videotaped information that reveals the minor's identity to a person who is not assisting in the investigation or prosecution of the alleged offense or to any person other than the defendant, the defendant's attorney, or a person specified in an order entered by the court having jurisdiction of the alleged offense. A person who violates this provision commits a misdemeanor of the first degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082 or s. 775.083.

Section 2. The Legislature finds that s. 16(b), Article I of the State Constitution mandates that crime victims have a right to be free from intimidation, harassment, and abuse and that it is a public necessity that information or records that may be used to locate, intimidate, harass, or abuse crime victims be made exempt from s. 119.07(1), Florida Statutes, and s. 24(a), Article I of the State Constitution. The Legislature further finds that exempting records or documents, which identify the crime victim, the victim's family, or any information that may be used to threaten or harass the victim or the victim's family, from s. 119.07(1), Florida Statutes, and s. 24(a), Article I of the State Constitution is a public necessity to prevent the possibility of further trauma. The Legislature also finds that the release of such records or documents may deter crime victims from cooperating with law enforcement and reporting criminal acts.

The vote was:

Yeas—18

Arrington Berman Bernard Bradley Calatayud	DiCeglie Gaetz Garcia Grall Leek Martin	Polsky Rodriguez Rouson Sharief Simon Trumbull
Davis	Martin	Trumbull

Nays—19

Mr. President	Harrell	Pizzo
Avila	Hooper	Smith
Boyd	Ingoglia	Truenow
Brodeur	Jones	Wright
Burgess	McClain	Yarborough
Burton	Osgood	_
Gruters	Passidomo	

Pursuant to Rule 7.1, there being no objection, consideration of the following late-filed amendment was allowed:

Senator Gruters moved the following amendment which was adopted:

Amendment 3 (929710) (with title amendment)—Between lines 116 and 117 insert:

- (IV) The court, upon a showing of good cause, may issue an order authorizing any person to obtain a public record that reveals the identity of an officer who was involved in a use of force incident and may prescribe any restrictions or stipulations that the court deems appropriate. In determining good cause, the court shall consider:
- (A) Whether such disclosure is necessary for the public evaluation of governmental performance;
- (B) The seriousness of the intrusion into the officer's right to privacy and whether such disclosure is the least intrusive means available; and
- (C) Whether such disclosure will likely subject the officer to intimidation, harassment, or abuse.

And the title is amended as follows:

Between lines 15 and 16 insert: authorizing the court, upon a showing of good cause, to allow a person to obtain certain public records;

On motion by Senator Gruters, by two-thirds vote, **CS for CS for SB 1266**, as amended, was read the third time by title and failed to receive the required constitutional two-thirds vote of the members present and voting. The vote was:

Yeas-23

Mr. President Avila Boyd Brodeur Burgess Burton DiCeglie Garcia Navs—14	Gruters Harrell Hooper Ingoglia Jones Leek Martin McClain	Passidomo Pizzo Rodriguez Rouson Truenow Wright Yarborough
Arrington Berman Bernard Bradley Calatayud	Davis Gaetz Grall Osgood Polsky	Sharief Simon Smith Trumbull

CS for CS for CS for SB 1078—A bill to be entitled An act relating to fire prevention; amending s. 553.7932, F.S.; defining the term "alteration"; revising the definition of the term "fire alarm system project"; requiring a local enforcement agency to issue a permit for a fire alarm system project or fire sprinkler system project within a specified time period; authorizing work authorized by the permit to commence immediately after submission of a completed application; requiring the local enforcement agency to provide an inspection within a specified timeframe; requiring that certain plans and specifications be available for an onsite plans review during an inspection; requiring a contractor to provide additional documentation in paper or electronic form, if requested by an inspector, within a specified timeframe; prohibiting a local enforcement agency from requiring additional plans reviews or documentation outside the scope of the permitted work; requiring that a specified percentage of the permit fee be refunded if a local government fails to meet certain deadlines; providing exceptions; requiring that such refunds be based on the original amount of the permit fee; requiring local enforcement agencies to establish a simplified permitting process by a specified date; amending s. 633.202, F.S.; specifying a condition under which a local amendment to the Florida Fire Prevention Code is unenforceable; providing that a county, a municipality, or an authority having jurisdiction may only enforce an ordinance that has been sent to the Florida Building Commission and the State Fire Marshal as of a certain date; amending s. 633.312, F.S.; requiring that a uniform summary inspection report include certain information; deleting an exception from submitting certain information within a detailed inspection report; providing an effective date.

Pending further consideration of **CS for CS for CS for SB 1078**, pursuant to Rule 3.11(3), there being no objection, **CS for CS for HB 551** was withdrawn from the Committee on Rules.

On motion by Senator McClain-

CS for CS for HB 551—A bill to be entitled An act relating to fire prevention; amending s. 553.7932, F.S.; defining the term "alteration"; revising the definition of the term "fire alarm system project"; requiring a local enforcement agency to issue a permit for a fire alarm system project or fire sprinkler system project within a specified time period; authorizing work to commence immediately; requiring the local enforcement agency to provide an inspection within a specified timeframe; requiring that certain plans and specifications be available for an onsite plans review during an inspection; requiring a contractor to provide additional documents, if necessary, within a specified timeframe; prohibiting a local enforcement agency from requiring additional plans reviews or documentation outside the scope of the permitted work; requiring that permit fees be refunded by a certain percentage if a local government fails to meet certain deadlines; providing exceptions; requiring local enforcement agencies to establish a simplified permitting process by a specified date; amending s. 633.202, F.S.; providing that a county or municipality may only enforce an ordinance that has been sent to the Florida Building Commission and the State Fire Marshal as of a certain date; amending s. 633.312, F.S.; requiring a uniform summary inspection report to include specified information; removing the requirement for a brief summary of deficiencies; requiring a contractor's detailed inspection report to be provided with a uniform summary inspection report; removing an exception from submitting certain information within a detailed inspection report; providing an effective

—a companion measure, was substituted for CS for CS for CS for SB 1078 and read the second time by title.

On motion by Senator McClain, by two-thirds vote, **CS for CS for HB 551** was read the third time by title, passed, and certified to the House. The vote on passage was:

Yeas-37

Mr. President	Gaetz	Pizzo
Arrington	Garcia	Polsky
Avila	Grall	Rodriguez
Berman	Gruters	Rouson
Bernard	Harrell	Sharief
Boyd	Hooper	Simon
Bradley	Ingoglia	Smith
Brodeur	Jones	Truenow
Burgess	Leek	Trumbull
Burton	Martin	Wright
Calatayud	McClain	Yarborough
Davis	Osgood	_
DiCeglie	Passidomo	

Nays-None

CS for CS for SB 1076—A bill to be entitled An act relating to roof contracting; amending s. 489.105, F.S.; revising the definition of the term "roofing contractor"; amending s. 489.115, F.S.; requiring certain roofing contractors to complete certain continuing education courses; requiring such roofing contractor to present the certificate of completion of such continuing education courses to certain local government officials at the time the building application is submitted; amending s. 489.147, F.S.; amending s. 489.147, F.S.; revising the circumstances under which residential property owners are authorized to cancel a roof repair or replacement contract without penalty or obligation following a declared state of emergency; revising the notice that contractors must provide to residential property owners when executing such a contract; requiring a contractor executing certain contracts to include in or attach to the contract a certain notice to the contract; reenacting ss. 489.107(4)(b), 489.113(2), 489.117(1)(a), (2)(a) and (b), and (4)(a), 489.118(1), 489.126(1), 489.131(10) and (11), and 877.02(2), F.S., relating to the Construction Industry Licensing Board, qualifications for practice and restrictions, registration and specialty contractors, certi-

[—]was read the second time by title.

fication of registered contractors and grandfathering provisions, moneys received by contractors, applicability, and solicitation of legal services or retainers therefor and penalty, respectively, to incorporate the amendment made to s. 489.105, F.S., in references thereto; providing an effective date.

-was read the second time by title.

Pending further consideration of **CS for CS for SB 1076**, pursuant to Rule 3.11(3), there being no objection, **CS for CS for HB 715** was withdrawn from the Committee on Rules.

On motion by Senator McClain-

CS for CS for HB 715—A bill to be entitled An act relating to roofing services; amending s. 489.105, F.S.; revising the definition of the term "roofing contractor"; reenacting ss. 489.107(4)(b), 489.117(1)(a), (2)(a) and (b), and (4)(a), 489.118(1), 489.126(1), 489.131(10) and (11), and 877.02(2), F.S.; relating to the Construction Industry Licensing Board, qualifications for practice and restrictions, registration and specialty contractors, certification of registered contractors and grandfathering provisions, moneys received by contractors, applicability, and solicitation of legal services or retainers therefor and penalty, respectively, to incorporate the amendment made to s. 489.105. F.S., in references thereto; amending s. 489.147, F.S.; providing applicability; revising the official start date that a residential property owner may cancel a contract to replace or repair a roof without penalty or obligation; revising the language required to be in a contract, or attached thereto, to replace or repair a roof that is executed within a specified time of a declaration of a state of emergency; requiring a contractor executing a contract to replace or repair a roof of a residential property to include in the contract, or attach thereto, specified language; providing an effective date.

—a companion measure, was substituted for CS for CS for SB 1076 and read the second time by title.

On motion by Senator McClain, by two-thirds vote, **CS for CS for HB 715** was read the third time by title, passed, and certified to the House. The vote on passage was:

Yeas-37

Mr. President	Gaetz	Pizzo
Arrington	Garcia	Polsky
Avila	Grall	Rodriguez
Berman	Gruters	Rouson
Bernard	Harrell	Sharief
Boyd	Hooper	Simon
Bradley	Ingoglia	Smith
Brodeur	Jones	Truenow
Burgess	Leek	Trumbull
Burton	Martin	Wright
Calatayud	McClain	Yarborough
Davis	Osgood	
DiCeglie	Passidomo	

Nays-None

CS for CS for CS for SB 922—A bill to be entitled An act relating to employment agreements; creating part I of ch. 542, F.S., entitled the "Florida Antitrust Act of 1980"; creating part II of ch. 542, F.S., entitled the "Florida Contracts Honoring Opportunity, Investment, Confidentiality, and Economic Growth (CHOICE) Act"; creating s. 542.41, F.S.; providing a short title; creating s. 542.42, F.S.; providing legislative findings; creating s. 542.43, F.S.; defining terms; creating s. 542.44, F.S.; providing applicability; providing that certain covered garden leave agreements are not a restraint of trade or an attempt to monopolize trade or commerce; providing notice requirements for covered garden leave agreements; providing that a covered employer may waive any portion of such notice requirements by providing a specified amount of advance written notice to the covered employee; providing that covered garden leave agreements do not affect other agreements; requiring a court to enter a preliminary injunction to stop covered employees, businesses, entities, or individuals if a breach of a covered garden leave agreement is alleged; authorizing the court to modify such an injunction if a covered employee, business, entity, or individual establishes certain information by clear and convincing evidence; requiring that certain information be provided to the court under seal; requiring the court to make presumptions of certain facts; providing that a prevailing covered employer is entitled to recover all available monetary damages for all available claims; providing that a prevailing party is entitled to reasonable attorney fees and costs; authorizing a covered employer to reduce the salary or benefits of a covered employee if he or she engages in gross misconduct; providing that such a reduction is not a breach of the covered garden leave agreement; creating s. 542.45, F.S.; providing applicability; providing that certain covered noncompete agreements are not a restraint of trade or an attempt to monopolize trade or commerce; providing notice requirements for covered noncompete agreements; providing that covered noncompete agreements do not affect other agreements; requiring a court to enter a preliminary injunction to stop covered employees, businesses, entities, or individuals if a breach of a covered noncompete agreement is alleged; authorizing the court to modify such an injunction if a covered employee, business, entity, or individual establishes certain information by clear and convincing evidence based on public or other nonconfidential information; requiring that certain information be provided to the court under seal; requiring the court to make presumptions of certain facts; providing that a prevailing covered employer is entitled to recover all available monetary damages for all available claims; providing that a prevailing party is entitled to reasonable attorney fees and costs; authorizing a covered employer to reduce the salary or benefits of a covered employee if he or she engages in gross misconduct; providing that such a reduction is not a breach of the covered noncompete agreement; providing construction regarding a restrictive covenant that does not meet the definition of a covered garden leave agreement or a covered noncompete agreement; amending ss. 542.15, 542.16, 542.17, 542.20, 542.22, 542.23, 542.235, 542.24, 542.25, 542.26, 542.27, 542.28, 542.29, 542.30, 542.31, 542.32, 542.33, 542.35, and 542.36, F.S.; conforming provisions to changes made by the act; providing an effective date.

-was read the second time by title.

Pending further consideration of CS for CS for CS for SB 922, pursuant to Rule 3.11(3), there being no objection, CS for CS for CS for HB 1219 was withdrawn from the Committee on Rules.

On motion by Senator Leek-

CS for CS for CS for HB 1219—A bill to be entitled An act relating to employment agreements; creating part I of ch. 542, F.S., entitled the "Florida Antitrust Act of 1980"; creating part II of ch. 542, F.S., entitled the "Florida Contracts Honoring Opportunity, Investment, Confidentiality, and Economic Growth (CHOICE) Act"; creating s. 542.41, F.S.; providing a short title; creating s. 542.42, F.S.; providing legislative findings; creating s. 542.43, F.S.; defining terms; creating s. 542.44, F.S.; providing applicability; providing that certain covered garden leave agreements are not a restraint of trade or an attempt to monopolize trade or commerce; providing notice requirements for covered garden leave agreements; providing that a covered employer may waive any portion of such notice requirements by providing a specified amount of advance written notice to the covered employee; providing that covered garden leave agreements do not affect other agreements; requiring a court to enter a preliminary injunction to stop covered employees, businesses, entities, or individuals if a breach of a covered garden leave agreement is alleged; authorizing the court to modify such an injunction if a covered employee, business, entity, or individual establishes certain information by clear and convincing evidence; requiring that certain information be provided to the court under seal; providing that a prevailing covered employer is entitled to recover all available monetary damages for all available claims; providing that a prevailing party is entitled to reasonable attorney fees and costs; authorizing a covered employer to reduce the salary or benefits of a covered employee if he or she engages in gross misconduct; providing that such a reduction is not a breach of the covered garden leave agreement; creating s. 542.45, F.S.; providing applicability; providing that certain covered noncompete agreements are not a restraint of trade or an attempt to monopolize trade or commerce; providing notice requirements for covered noncompete agreements; providing that covered noncompete agreements do not affect other agreements; requiring a court to enter a preliminary injunction to stop covered employees, businesses, entities, or individuals if a breach of a covered noncompete agreement is alleged; authorizing the court to modify such an injunction if a covered employee, business, entity, or individual establishes certain information by clear

and convincing evidence; requiring that certain information be provided to the court under seal; providing that a prevailing covered employer is entitled to recover all available monetary damages for all available claims; providing that a prevailing party is entitled to reasonable attorney fees and costs; authorizing a covered employer to reduce the salary or benefits of a covered employee if he or she engages in gross misconduct; providing that such a reduction is not a breach of the covered noncompete agreement; providing construction regarding a restrictive covenant that does not meet the definition of a covered garden leave agreement or a covered noncompete agreement; amending ss. 542.15, 542.16, 542.17, 542.20, 542.22, 542.23, 542.235, 542.24, 542.25, 542.26, 542.27, 542.28, 542.29, 542.30, 542.31, 542.32, 542.33, 542.35, and 542.36, F.S.; conforming provisions to changes made by the act; providing an effective date.

—a companion measure, was substituted for CS for CS for CS for SB 922 and read the second time by title.

On motion by Senator Leek, by two-thirds vote, **CS for CS for CS for HB 1219** was read the third time by title, passed, and certified to the House. The vote on passage was:

Yeas-28

Mr. President Avila	Gaetz Garcia	Passidomo Pizzo
Berman Boyd	Grall Gruters	Rodriguez Simon
Bradley	Harrell	Truenow
Brodeur	Hooper	Trumbull
Burgess	Ingoglia	Wright
Burton	Leek	Yarborough
Calatayud	Martin	
DiCeglie	McClain	
Nays—9		
Arrington	Jones	Rouson
Bernard	Osgood	Sharief
Davis	Polsky	Smith

Consideration of CS for CS for SB 846 and CS for CS for SB 1624 was deferred.

CS for SB 868—A bill to be entitled An act relating to social media use by minors; amending s. 501.1736, F.S.; requiring social media platforms to provide a mechanism to decrypt end-to-end encryption when law enforcement obtains a subpoena; requiring social media platforms to allow a parent or legal guardian of a minor account holder to view all messages; prohibiting minor account holders from using or accessing messages that are designed to disappear or self destruct, or are ephemeral in nature; providing an effective date.

—was read the second time by title.

Pursuant to Rule 7.1, there being no objection, consideration of the following late-filed amendment was allowed:

Senator Ingoglia moved the following amendment which was adopted:

Amendment 1 (736458) (with title amendment)—Delete lines 39-107 and insert:

- 5. If law enforcement obtains a warrant or subpoena, provide a mechanism to decrypt end-to-end encryption or other data encryption features that restrict the accessibility of messages on any account of a minor so that law enforcement may view messages relevant to a criminal investigation involving a minor.
- 6. Allow a parent or legal guardian of a minor account holder to view all messages.
- 7. Prohibit a minor account holder from using or accessing messages that are designed to disappear after a certain period of time or upon

viewing, self-destructing messages, or messages that are ephemeral in nature.

(3)

- (b) A social media platform shall:
- 1. Terminate any account held by an account holder who is 14 or 15 years of age, including accounts that the social media platform treats or categorizes as belonging to an account holder who is likely 14 or 15 years of age for purposes of targeting content or advertising, if the account holder's parent or guardian has not provided consent for the minor to create or maintain the account. The social media platform shall provide 90 days for an account holder to dispute such termination. Termination must be effective upon the expiration of the 90 days if the account holder fails to effectively dispute the termination.
- 2. Allow an account holder who is 14 or 15 years of age to request to terminate the account. Termination must be effective within 5 business days after such request.
- 3. Allow the confirmed parent or guardian of an account holder who is 14 or 15 years of age to request that the minor's account be terminated. Termination must be effective within 10 business days after such request.
- 4. Permanently delete all personal information held by the social media platform relating to the terminated account, unless there are legal requirements to maintain such information.
- 5. If law enforcement obtains a warrant or subpoena, provide a mechanism to decrypt end-to-end encryption or other data encryption features that restrict the accessibility of messages on any account of a minor so that law enforcement may view messages relevant to a criminal investigation involving a minor.
- $6. \ \ Allow \ a \ parent \ or \ legal \ guardian \ of \ a \ minor \ account \ holder \ to \ view \ all \ messages.$
- 7. Prohibit a minor account holder from using or accessing messages that are designed to disappear after a certain period of time or upon viewing, self-destructing messages, or messages that are ephemeral in nature.
- (4) If a court enjoins the enforcement of subsection (3) or would otherwise enjoin enforcement of any other provision of this section due to subsection (3), then subsection (3) shall be severed, and the following shall come into effect:
 - (b) A social media platform shall:
- 1. Terminate any account held by an account holder who is 14 or 15 years of age, including accounts that the social media platform treats or categorizes as belonging to an account holder who is likely 14 or 15 years of age for purposes of targeting content or advertising, and provide 90 days for an account holder to dispute such termination. Termination must be effective upon the expiration of 90 days if the account holder fails to effectively dispute the termination.
- 2. Allow an account holder who is 14 or 15 years of age to request to terminate the account. Termination must be effective within 5 business days after such request.
- 3. Allow the confirmed parent or guardian of an account holder who is 14 or 15 years of age to request that the minor's account be terminated. Termination must be effective within 10 business days after such request.
- 4. Permanently delete all personal information held by the social media platform relating to the terminated account, unless there are legal requirements to maintain such information.
- 5. If law enforcement obtains a warrant or subpoena, provide a

And the title is amended as follows:

Delete line 5 and insert: encryption when law enforcement obtains a warrant or subpoena;

On motion by Senator Ingoglia, by two-thirds vote, **CS for SB 868**, as amended, was read the third time by title, passed, ordered engrossed, and then certified to the House. The vote on passage was:

Yeas-34

Mr. President	DiCeglie	Passidomo
Arrington	Gaetz	Pizzo
Avila	Garcia	Rodriguez
Berman	Grall	Rouson
Bernard	Gruters	Sharief
Boyd	Harrell	Simon
Bradley	Hooper	Truenow
Brodeur	Ingoglia	Trumbull
Burgess	Leek	Wright
Burton	Martin	Yarborough
Calatayud	McClain	
Davis	Osgood	
Navs—3		

Nays—3

Jones Polsky Smith

MOTIONS

On motion by Senator Passidomo, the rules were waived and all bills temporarily postponed on the Special Order Calendar this day were retained on the Special Order Calendar.

On motion by Senator Passidomo, the rules were waived and the following bill was placed on the Special Order Calendar for Monday, April 28, 2025: **CS for SB 68**.

BILLS ON SPECIAL ORDERS

Pursuant to Rule 4.17(1), the Rules Chair, Majority Leader, and Minority Leader submit the following bills to be placed on the Special Order Calendar for Thursday, April 24, 2025: CS for SB 1072, SB 984, CS for CS for SB 924, CS for SB 916, CS for SB 868, CS for SB 830, CS for CS for SB 824, SB 788, CS for SB 398, CS for CS for SB 364, CS for CS for SB 140, CS for CS for SB 1800, CS for SB 1654, CS for CS for CS for SB 1742, CS for CS for SB 1620, CS for CS for SB 1618, CS for SB 1590, CS for CS for SB 1386, CS for CS for CS for SB 1344, CS for SB 1310, CS for CS for SB 1174, SB 1162, CS for SB 1160, CS for SB 1122, CS for SB 1102, CS for CS for CS for SB 1180, CS for SB 1150, CS for CS for SB 1136, SB 1054, CS for CS for CS for SB 954, SB 892, CS for SB 820, CS for CS for SB 736, CS for SB 674, CS for SB 612, CS for SB 444, HB 259, CS for CS for SB 1838, CS for SB 1782, CS for SB 1674, CS for SB 1622, CS for CS for SB 1604, CS for CS for SB 1574, CS for CS for SB 1514, CS for CS for SB 1490, CS for SB 1458, CS for SB 1450, CS for CS for SB 1422, CS for SB 1224, CS for CS for SB 988, SB 96, CS for CS for SB 132.

> Respectfully submitted, Kathleen Passidomo, Rules Chair Jim Boyd, Majority Leader Jason W. B. Pizzo, Minority Leader

REPORTS OF COMMITTEES

The Committee on Appropriations recommends committee substitutes for the following: CS for CS for SB 818; CS for SB 1050 $\,$

The Committee on Fiscal Policy recommends committee substitutes for the following: CS for SB 1156; CS for SB 1212; CS for CS for SB 1444; CS for SB 1804; CS for CS for SB 1842

The Committee on Rules recommends a committee substitute for the following: CS for SB 1606

The bills with committee substitute attached were placed on the Calendar.

COMMITTEE SUBSTITUTES

FIRST READING

By the Committees on Appropriations; Rules; and Transportation; and Senator McClain—

CS for CS for CS for SB 818—A bill to be entitled An act relating to utility relocation; amending s. 212.20, F.S.; requiring that a specified amount of communications services tax remittances be distributed by the Department of Revenue by a nonoperating transfer to the Department of Commerce in monthly installments to the Grants and Donations Trust Fund within the Department of Commerce for the Utility Relocation Reimbursement Grant Program; revising the percentage by which a certain amount transferred into the Local Government Halfcent Sales Tax Clearing Trust Fund must be reduced, beginning on a certain date; amending s. 337.403, F.S.; requiring a service provider to initiate communications services facility relocation work under certain circumstances; specifying that a county or municipal authority is not responsible for paying the expense properly attributable to such work except as otherwise provided; authorizing a service provider to apply to the Utility Relocation Reimbursement Grant Program for reimbursement of relocation expenses; requiring a department to notify certain providers of communications services of certain projects within a specified timeframe; defining the term "department"; providing notification requirements; requiring a provider to respond to the notification with certain information within a specified timeframe; requiring the department to provide a reasonable offer for joint participation in certain relocation costs under certain conditions; providing construction; creating s. 337.4031, F.S.; creating the Utility Relocation Reimbursement Grant Program within the Department of Commerce; providing the purpose of the program; requiring the Department of Revenue to deposit certain proceeds into a specified trust fund to fund the program beginning on a certain date; requiring the Department of Commerce to establish program requirements by rule; authorizing only certain uses of program funds; exempting program funds from a certain service charge; providing that interest earned on program funds accrues to the program's fund; authorizing emergency rulemaking; amending ss. 125.42, 202.18, 212.181, and 218.65, F.S.; conforming cross-references; providing a finding and declaration of important state interest; providing an appropriation; providing an effective date.

By the Committees on Appropriations; and Children, Families, and Elder Affairs; and Senator Bradley—

CS for CS for SB 1050-A bill to be entitled An act relating to services for individuals with developmental disabilities; amending s. 393.0662, F.S.; requiring the Agency for Persons with Disabilities to provide a list of all qualified organizations located within the region in which the client resides and to post its quarterly reconciliation reports on its website within a specified timeframe; amending s. 393.065, F.S.; requiring that online applications include an application for crisis enrollment; requiring the agency to participate in transition planning activities and to post the total number of individuals in each priority category on its website; reordering and amending s. 393.502, F.S.; establishing the Statewide Family Care Council; providing for the purpose, membership, and duties of the council; providing for appointment of local council members; providing for the creation of family-led nominating committees; requiring local family care councils to report to the statewide council policy changes and program recommendations in an annual report; providing duties of the agency relating to the statewide council and local councils; amending s. 409.972, F.S.; requiring certain Medicaid-eligible persons to take certain actions before enrollment; prohibiting the agency from automatically enrolling such persons; amending s. 409.9855, F.S.; revising implementation and eligibility requirements of the pilot program for individuals with developmental disabilities; providing for a method of voluntarily choosing to enroll in the pilot program; requiring the agency to transmit to the Agency for Health Care Administration weekly data files of specified clients; requiring the Agency for Health Care Administration to provide a call center for specified purposes and to coordinate with the Department of Children and Families and the Agency for Persons with Disabilities to disseminate information about the pilot program; revising pilot program benefits; revising provider qualifications; requiring participating plans to conduct an individualized assessment of each enrollee within a specified timeframe for certain purposes and to offer

certain services to such enrollees; requiring the Agency for Health Care Administration to conduct monitoring and evaluations and require corrective actions or payment of penalties under certain circumstances; deleting coordination requirements for the agency when submitting certain reports, establishing specified measures, and conducting quality assurance monitoring of the pilot program; revising the dates by which the Agency for Persons with Disabilities shall submit progress reports to the Governor and Legislature; requiring the Agency for Persons with Disabilities to contract for a specified study and provide to the Governor and the Legislature a specified report by specified date; providing an effective date.

By the Committees on Fiscal Policy; and Health Policy; and Senator Harrell—

CS for CS for SB 1156-A bill to be entitled An act relating to the home health aide for medically fragile children program; amending s. 400.54, F.S.; providing requirements for the annual assessment of the home health aide for medically fragile children program; amending s. 400.4765, F.S.; revising program training requirements; requiring an employing home health agency to provide specified training and ensure that each home health aide for medically fragile children holds and maintains specified certification; revising the utilization cap of a Medicaid fee schedule; requiring a home health aide for medically fragile children who works more than 40 hours per week to provide specified justification; providing requirements for the Agency for Health Care Administration to seek federal approval and a federal waiver for specified purposes; amending s. 400.462, F.S.; conforming provisions to changes made by the act; amending s. 409.903, F.S.; requiring the agency to seek federal approval and implement federal waivers and state plan amendments for specified purposes; providing an effective date.

By the Committees on Fiscal Policy; and Banking and Insurance; and Senators DiCeglie, Sharief, Calatayud, Bernard, Arrington, Pizzo, Osgood, Smith, Collins, Gruters, Harrell, Berman, and Ingoglia—

CS for CS for SB 1212—A bill to be entitled An act relating to firefighter health and safety; amending s. 633.506, F.S.; revising legislative intent; amending s. 633.508, F.S.; requiring the Division of State Fire Marshal within the Department of Financial Services to assist in decreasing the frequency and severity of fatalities; revising the division's authority to adopt rules; requiring the division to adopt rules; defining the term "readily available"; authorizing the division to recommend a phased approach in adopting certain rules related to firefighting gear; amending s. 633.520, F.S.; requiring the division to adopt rules relating to education on chemical hazards and toxic substances in protective gear and employers' mental health best practices; amending ss. 633.522 and 633.526, F.S.; conforming provisions to changes made by the act; providing an effective date.

By the Committee on Fiscal Policy; the Appropriations Committee on Criminal and Civil Justice; the Committee on Criminal Justice; and Senator Collins—

CS for CS for CS for SB 1444—A bill to be entitled An act relating to public safety; amending s. 112.1815, F.S.; authorizing first responder amputees to continue to serve as first responders under certain circumstances; creating s. 112.195, F.S.; creating the Florida Medal of Valor and the Florida Blue/Red Heart Medal; providing requirements for such medals; creating a board to evaluate applications for awarding such medals; providing for board membership; creating s. 316.2675, F.S.; prohibiting the use of motor vehicle kill switches; providing exceptions; providing a criminal penalty; amending s. 500.92, F.S.; providing increased criminal penalties for the selling, delivering, bartering, furnishing, or giving of any kratom product to a person younger than 21 years of age; amending s. 775.0823, F.S.; requiring a mandatory minimum term of imprisonment for attempted murder in the first degree committed against specified justice system personnel; amending s. 790.052, F.S.; providing that specified persons may carry concealed firearms under certain circumstances and use them in the same manner as on-duty law enforcement officers; amending s. 817.49, F.S.; providing legislative findings concerning prosecution of the false reporting of crimes; amending s. 843.025, F.S.; prohibiting a person from depriving specified officers of digital recording devices or restraint devices; prohibiting a person from rendering a specified officer's weapon, radio, digital recording device, or restraint device useless or otherwise preventing the officer from defending himself or herself or summoning assistance; providing a criminal penalty; amending ss. 937.021 and 937.022, F.S.; revising requirements for the reporting of missing persons information; creating s. 943.0413, F.S.; creating the Critical Infrastructure Mapping Grant Program within the Department of Law Enforcement; providing eligibility; specifying requirements for maps created by the program; authorizing the department to adopt rules; amending s. 951.27, F.S.; specifying requirements for testing inmates for infectious diseases; requiring that test results be reported to specified persons; requiring a first responder and other specified persons to provide notice upon his or her exposure to certain substances; requiring an employing agency to provide notice if a first responder or specified person is unable to provide notice; requiring a detention facility to test an inmate upon receipt of a specified notice; providing an effective date.

By the Committees on Rules; and Health Policy; and Senators Grall and Bradley—

CS for CS for SB 1606-A bill to be entitled An act relating to patient access to records; amending s. 394.4615, F.S.; requiring a mental health service provider to furnish records within a specified timeframe after receiving a request for such records; authorizing an extension of the timeframe under certain circumstances; requiring such providers to furnish records in the form and format chosen by the requester, if readily producible; amending s. 395.3025, F.S.; deleting provisions requiring hospitals and ambulatory surgical centers to furnish patient records only after discharge, to conform to changes made by the act; establishing that the Department of Health, rather than the Agency for Health Care Administration, has the authority to issue subpoenas for patient records from hospitals and ambulatory surgical centers in certain circumstances; amending s. 397.501, F.S.; requiring a substance abuse service provider to furnish and provide access to records within a specified timeframe after receiving a written request from an individual or the individual's legal representative; authorizing an extension of the timeframe under certain circumstances; requiring such service providers to furnish records in the manner chosen by the requester, if readily producible; amending s. 400.145, F.S.; revising the timeframe within which a nursing home facility must provide access to, and copies of, resident records after receiving a request for such records; republishing s. 408.803(6), F.S., relating to the definition of the term "client" used in part II of ch. 408, F.S.; creating s. 408.833, F.S.; defining the terms "designated record set" and "legal representative"; requiring a provider to furnish and provide access to records within a specified timeframe after receiving a written request from a client or the client's legal representative; authorizing an extension of the timeframe under certain circumstances; requiring providers to furnish records in the form and format chosen by the requester, if readily producible; providing exceptions for providers governed by specified provisions; amending s. 456.057, F.S.; defining the terms "designated record set" and "legal representative"; requiring certain health care practitioners to furnish and provide access to records within a specified timeframe after receiving a written request from a patient or the patient's legal representative; authorizing an extension of the timeframe under certain circumstances; requiring health care practitioners to furnish records in the form and format chosen by the requester, if readily producible; amending ss. 316.1932, 316.1933, 395.4025, 397.702, 429.294, 440.185, and 456.47, F.S.; conforming cross-references; providing an effective date.

By the Committee on Fiscal Policy; the Appropriations Committee on Criminal and Civil Justice; and Senator Martin—

CS for CS for SB 1804—A bill to be entitled An act relating to capital human trafficking of vulnerable persons for sexual exploitation; amending s. 92.565, F.S.; specifying that a defendant's memorialized confession or admission in cases of capital human trafficking of vulnerable persons for sexual exploitation is admissible during trial under specified circumstances; amending s. 456.51, F.S.; specifying that consent is not required for pelvic examinations administered pursuant to a criminal investigation of an alleged violation of capital human trafficking of vulnerable persons for sexual exploitation; amending s. 775.0877, F.S.; requiring a court to order a person who is convicted of or who had pled nolo contendere or guilty to, or to the attempt thereof,

capital human trafficking of vulnerable persons for sexual exploitation to undergo HIV testing; amending s. 775.21, F.S.; requiring that an offender who is convicted of committing capital human trafficking of vulnerable persons for sexual exploitation be designated as a sexual predator; amending s. 787.01, F.S.; specifying that a person commits a life felony if the person kidnaps a child under a certain age and in the course of committing that offense commits capital human trafficking of vulnerable persons for sexual exploitation; amending s. 787.02, F.S.; specifying that a person commits a felony of the first degree if the person falsely imprisons a child under a certain age and in the course of committing that offense commits capital human trafficking of vulnerable persons for sexual exploitation; amending s. 787.06, F.S.; defining the term "sexual exploitation"; prohibiting a person 18 years of age or older from knowingly initiating, organizing, planning, financing, directing, managing, or supervising a venture that has subjected a child younger than 12 years of age, or a person who is mentally defective or mentally incapacitated, to human trafficking for sexual exploitation; providing a criminal penalty; requiring the state to give a specified notice if it intends to seek the death penalty for a violation of the offense; creating s. 921.1427, F.S.; providing legislative findings and intent; providing for separate death penalty proceedings in certain cases; providing for findings and recommended sentences by a jury; providing for imposition of sentence of life imprisonment or death; providing requirements for a court order in support of a life imprisonment or death sentence; providing for automatic review of sentences of death within a certain time period; specifying aggravating factors and mitigating circumstances; providing for victim impact evidence; providing for resentencing if provisions are found to be unconstitutional; providing applicability; amending s. 924.07, F.S.; authorizing the state to appeal from a certain sentence on the ground that it resulted from the failure of the circuit court to comply with specified sentencing procedure requirements; amending ss. 943.0435, 944.606, and 944.607, F.S.; revising the definition of the term "sexual offender"; amending s. 948.32, F.S.; requiring state or local law enforcement agencies to contact the Department of Corrections if they investigate or arrest a person for committing, or attempting, soliciting, or conspiring to commit, capital human trafficking of vulnerable persons for sexual exploitation: amending s. 960.065, F.S.; revising eligibility for awards for victim assistance; amending ss. 921.137 and 921.141, F.S.; conforming provisions to changes made by the act; reenacting s. 16.713(1)(c), F.S., relating to the Florida Gaming Control Commission, appointment and employment restrictions, to incorporate the amendment made to s. 775.21, F.S., in a reference thereto; reenacting s. 39.0139(3)(a), F.S., relating to visitation or other contact and restrictions, to incorporate the amendment made to s. 775.21, F.S., in a reference thereto; reenacting s. 39.509(6)(b), F.S., relating to grandparents rights, to incorporate the amendment made to s. 775.21, F.S., in a reference thereto; reenacting s. 39.806(1)(d) and (n), F.S., relating to grounds for termination of parental rights, to incorporate the amendment made to s. 775.21, F.S., in references thereto; reenacting s. 61.13(9)(c), F.S., relating to support of children, parenting and time-sharing, and powers of the court, to incorporate the amendment made to s. 775.21, F.S., in a reference thereto; reenacting s. 63.089(4)(b), F.S., relating to proceeding to terminate parental rights pending adoption, hearing, grounds, dismissal of petition, and judgment, to incorporate the amendment made to s. 775.21, F.S., in a reference thereto; reenacting s. 63.092(3), F.S., relating to report to the court of intended placement by an adoption entity, at-risk placement, and preliminary study, to incorporate the amendment made to s. 775.21, F.S., in a reference thereto; reenacting s. 68.07(3)(i) and (6), F.S., relating to change of name, to incorporate the amendment made to s. 775.21, F.S., in references thereto; reenacting s. 92.55(1)(b), F.S., relating to special protections in proceedings involving a victim or witness under 18, person with intellectual disability, or sexual offense victim, to incorporate the amendment made to s. 775.21, F.S., in a reference thereto; reenacting s. 322.141(3), F.S., relating to color or markings of certain licenses or identification cards, to incorporate the amendment made to s. 775.21, F.S., in a reference thereto; reenacting s. 397.487(10)(b), F.S., relating to voluntary certification of recovery residences, to incorporate the amendment made to s. 775.21, F.S., in a reference thereto; reenacting s. 435.07(4)(b), F.S., relating to exemptions from disqualification, to incorporate the amendment made to s. 775.21, F.S., in a reference thereto; reenacting s. 455.213(3)(b), F.S., relating to general licensing provisions, to incorporate the amendment

made to s. 775.21, F.S., in a reference thereto; reenacting s. 489.553(7), F.S., relating to administration of part, registration qualifications, and examination, to incorporate the amendment made to s. 775.21, F.S., in a reference thereto; reenacting s. 507.07(10), F.S., relating to violations, to incorporate the amendment made to s. 775.21, F.S., in a reference thereto; reenacting s. 775.13(4), F.S., relating to registration of convicted felons, exemptions, and penalties, to incorporate the amendment made to s. 775.21, F.S., in a reference thereto; reenacting s. 775.25, F.S., relating to prosecutions for acts or omissions, to incorporate the amendment made to s. 775.21, F.S., in a reference thereto; reenacting s. 794.075(1), F.S., relating to sexual predators and erectile dysfunction drugs, to incorporate the amendment made to s. 775.21, F.S., in a reference thereto; reenacting s. 900.05(2)(cc), F.S., relating to criminal justice data collection, to incorporate the amendment made to s. 775.21, F.S., in a reference thereto; reenacting s. 903.0351(1)(c), F.S., relating to restrictions on pretrial release pending probation-violation hearing or community-control-violation hearing, to incorporate the amendment made to s. 775.21, F.S., in a reference thereto; reenacting s. 903.046(2)(m), F.S., relating to purpose of and criteria for bail determination, to incorporate the amendment made to s. 775.21, F.S., in a reference thereto; reenacting s. 903.133(3), F.S., relating to bail on appeal prohibited for certain felony convictions, to incorporate the amendment made to s. 775.21, F.S., in a reference thereto; reenacting s. 907.043(4)(b), F.S., relating to pretrial release and citizens' right to know, to incorporate the amendment made to s. 775.21, F.S., in a reference thereto; reenacting s. 938.10(1), F.S., relating to additional court cost imposed in cases of certain crimes, to incorporate the amendment made to s. 775.21, F.S., in a reference thereto; reenacting s. 943.0435(5), F.S., relating to sexual offenders required to register with the department and penalties, to incorporate the amendment made to s. 775.21, F.S., in a reference thereto; reenacting s. 943.0584(2), F.S., relating to criminal history records ineligible for court-ordered expunction or courtordered sealing, to incorporate the amendment made to s. 775.21, F.S., in a reference thereto; reenacting s. 944.609(4), F.S., relating to career offenders and notification upon release, to incorporate the amendment made to s. 775.21, F.S., in a reference thereto; reenacting s. 947.1405(2)(c) and (10), F.S., relating to conditional release program, to incorporate the amendment made to s. 775.21, F.S., in references thereto; reenacting s. 948.013(2)(b), F.S., relating to administrative probation, to incorporate the amendment made to s. 775.21, F.S., in a reference thereto; reenacting s. 948.05(2)(f), F.S., relating to court to admonish or commend probationer or offender in community control and graduated incentives, to incorporate the amendment made to s. 775.21, F.S., in a reference thereto; reenacting s. 948.06(4) and (8)(b) and (d), F.S., relating to violation of probation or community control, revocation, modification, continuance, and failure to pay restitution or cost of supervision, to incorporate the amendment made to s. 775.21, F.S., in references thereto; reenacting s. 948.063, F.S., relating to violations of probation or community control by designated sexual offenders and sexual predators, to incorporate the amendment made to s. 775.21, F.S., in a reference thereto; reenacting s. 948.064(4), F.S., relating to notification of status as a violent felony offender of special concern, to incorporate the amendment made to s. 775.21, F.S., in a reference thereto; reenacting s. 948.12, F.S., relating to intensive supervision for postprison release of violent offenders, to incorporate the amendment made to s. 775.21, F.S., in a reference thereto; reenacting s. 948.30(3), F.S., relating to additional terms and conditions of probation or community control for certain sex offenses, to incorporate the amendment made to s. 775.21, F.S., in a reference thereto; reenacting s. 948.31, F.S., relating to evaluation and treatment of sexual predators and offenders on probation or community control, to incorporate the amendment made to s. 775.21, F.S., in a reference thereto; reenacting s. 985.04(6)(b), F.S., relating to oaths, records, and confidential information, to incorporate the amendment made to s. 775.21, F.S., in a reference thereto; reenacting s. 61.13(2)(c) and (9)(c), F.S., relating to support of children, parenting and time-sharing, and powers of the court, to incorporate the amendment made to s. 943.0435, F.S., in references thereto; reenacting s. 68.07(3)(i) and (6), F.S., relating to change of name, to incorporate the amendment made to s. 943.0435, F.S., in references thereto; reenacting s. 92.55(1)(b), F.S., relating to special protections in proceedings involving a victim or witness under 18, person with intellectual disability, or sexual offense victim, to incorporate the amendment made to s. 943.0435, F.S., in a reference thereto; reenacting

s. 98.0751(2)(b), F.S., relating to restoration of voting rights and termination of ineligibility subsequent to a felony conviction, to incorporate the amendment made to s. 943.0435, F.S., in a reference thereto; reenacting s. 322.141(3), F.S., relating to color or markings of certain licenses or identification cards, to incorporate the amendment made to s. 943.0435, F.S., in a reference thereto; reenacting s. 394.9125(2), F.S., relating to state attorney authority to refer a person for civil commitment, to incorporate the amendment made to s. 943.0435, F.S., in a reference thereto; reenacting s. 435.07(4)(b), F.S., relating to exemptions from disqualification, to incorporate the amendment made to s. 943.0435, F.S., in a reference thereto; reenacting s. 775.0862(2), F.S., relating to sexual offenses against students by authority figures and reclassification, to incorporate the amendment made to s. 943.0435, F.S., in a reference thereto; reenacting s. 775.13(4), F.S., relating to registration of convicted felons, exemptions, and penalties, to incorporate the amendment made to s. 943.0435, F.S., in a reference thereto; reenacting s. 775.24(2), F.S., relating to the duty of the court to uphold laws governing sexual predators and sexual offenders, to incorporate the amendment made to s. 943.0435, F.S., in a reference thereto; reenacting s. 775.25, F.S., relating to prosecutions for acts or omissions, to incorporate the amendment made to s. 943.0435, F.S., in a reference thereto; reenacting s. 900.05(2)(cc), F.S., relating to criminal justice data collection, to incorporate the amendment made to s. 943.0435, F.S., in a reference thereto; reenacting s. 903.046(2)(m), F.S., relating to purpose of and criteria for bail determination, to incorporate the amendment made to s. 943.0435, F.S., in a reference thereto; reenacting s. 903.133, F.S., relating to bail on appeal prohibited for certain felony convictions, to incorporate the amendment made to s. 943.0435, F.S., in a reference thereto; reenacting s. 907.043(4)(b), F.S., relating to pretrial release and citizens' right to know, to incorporate the amendment made to s. 943.0435, F.S., in a reference thereto; reenacting s. 934.255(2)(a), F.S., relating to subpoenas in investigations of sexual offenses, to incorporate the amendment made to s. 943.0435, F.S., in a reference thereto; reenacting s. 938.10(1), F.S., relating to additional court cost imposed in cases of certain crimes, to incorporate the amendment made to s. 943.0435, F.S., in a reference thereto; reenacting s. 943.0436(2), F.S., relating to the duty of the court to uphold laws governing sexual predators and sexual offenders, to incorporate the amendment made to s. 943.0435, F.S., in a reference thereto; reenacting s. 943.0584(2), F.S., relating to criminal history records ineligible for court-ordered expunction or court-ordered sealing, to incorporate the amendment made to s. 943.0435, F.S., in a reference thereto; reenacting s. 943.0595(2)(a), F.S., relating to automatic sealing of criminal history records and confidentiality of related court records, to incorporate the amendment made to s. 943.0435, F.S., in a reference thereto; reenacting s. 947.1405(12), F.S., relating to the conditional release program, to incorporate the amendment made to s. 943.0435, F.S., in a reference thereto; reenacting s. 948.013(2)(b), F.S., relating to administrative probation, to incorporate the amendment made to s. 943.0435, F.S., in a reference thereto; reenacting s. 948.05(2)(f), F.S., relating to court to admonish or commend probationer or offender in community control and graduated incentives, to incorporate the amendment made to s. 943.0435, F.S., in a reference thereto; reenacting s. 948.06(4), F.S., relating to violation of probation or community control, revocation, modification, continuance, and failure to pay restitution or cost of supervision, to incorporate the amendment made to s. 943.0435, F.S., in a reference thereto; reenacting s. 948.063, F.S., relating to violations of probation or community control by designated sexual offenders and sexual predators, to incorporate the amendment made to s. 943.0435, F.S., in a reference thereto; reenacting s. 948.30(4), F.S., relating to additional terms and conditions of probation or community control for certain sex offenses, to incorporate the amendment made to s. 943.0435, F.S., in a reference thereto; reenacting s. 948.31, F.S., relating to evaluation and treatment of sexual predators and offenders on probation or community control, to incorporate the amendment made to s. 943.0435, F.S., in a reference thereto; reenacting s. 985.04(6)(b), F.S., relating to oaths, records, and confidential information, to incorporate the amendment made to s. 943.0435, F.S., in a reference thereto; reenacting s. 1012.467(2)(b), F.S., relating to noninstructional contractors who are permitted access to school grounds when students are present and background screening requirements, to incorporate the amendment made to s. 943.0435, F.S., in a reference thereto; reenacting s. 775.24(2), F.S., relating to the duty of the court to uphold laws governing sexual

predators and sexual offenders, to incorporate the amendment made to s. 944.606, F.S., in a reference thereto; reenacting s. 775.25, F.S., relating to prosecutions for acts or omissions, to incorporate the amendment made to s. 944.606, F.S., in a reference thereto; reenacting s. 943.0436(2), F.S., relating to the duty of the court to uphold laws governing sexual predators and sexual offenders, to incorporate the amendment made to s. 944.606, F.S., in a reference thereto; reenacting s. 948.31, F.S., relating to evaluation and treatment of sexual predators and offenders on probation or community control, to incorporate the amendment made to s. 944.606, F.S., in a reference thereto; reenacting s. 985.04(6)(b), F.S., relating to oaths, records, and confidential information, to incorporate the amendment made to s. 944.606, F.S., in a reference thereto; reenacting s. 322.141(3), F.S., relating to color or markings of certain licenses or identification cards, to incorporate the amendment made to s. 944.607, F.S., in a reference thereto; reenacting s. 775.13(4), F.S., relating to registration of convicted felons, exemptions, and penalties, to incorporate the amendment made to s. 944.607, F.S., in a reference thereto; reenacting s. 775.24(2), F.S., relating to the duty of the court to uphold laws governing sexual predators and sexual offenders, to incorporate the amendment made to s. 944.607, F.S., in a reference thereto; reenacting s. 775.25, F.S., relating to prosecutions for acts or omissions, to incorporate the amendment made to s. 944.607, F.S., in a reference thereto; reenacting s. 943.0436(2), F.S., relating to the duty of the court to uphold laws governing sexual predators and sexual offenders, to incorporate the amendment made to s. 944.607, F.S., in a reference thereto; reenacting s. 948.06(4), F.S., relating to violation of probation or community control, revocation, modification, continuance, and failure to pay restitution or cost of supervision, to incorporate the amendment made to s. 944.607, F.S., in a reference thereto; reenacting s. 948.063, F.S., relating to violations of probation or community control by designated sexual offenders and sexual predators, to incorporate the amendment made to s. 944.607, F.S., in a reference thereto; reenacting s. 948.31, F.S., relating to evaluation and treatment of sexual predators and offenders on probation or community control, to incorporate the amendment made to s. 944.607, F.S., in a reference thereto; reenacting s. 985.04(6)(b), F.S., relating to oaths, records, and confidential information, to incorporate the amendment made to s. 944.607, F.S., in a reference thereto; providing an effective

By the Committee on Fiscal Policy; the Appropriations Committee on Health and Human Services; the Committee on Health Policy; and Senator Burton—

CS for CS for CS for SB 1842—A bill to be entitled An act relating to health care provider referrals; amending s. 456.053, F.S.; requiring certain health care providers to disclose, in writing, specified information to their patients before making a referral for certain health care services; providing an effective date.

MESSAGES FROM THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

FIRST READING

The Honorable Ben Albritton, President

I am directed to inform the Senate that the House of Representatives has passed CS/CS/HB 113 and requests the concurrence of the Senate.

Jeff Takacs, Clerk

By Judiciary Committee, Criminal Justice Subcommittee and Representative(s) Chamberlin, Anderson—

CS for CS for HB 113—A bill to be entitled An act relating to fleeing or attempting to elude a law enforcement officer; amending s. 316.1935, F.S.; revising the law enforcement vehicle marking requirements for specified offenses; amending s. 921.0022, F.S.; reclassifying offenses for purposes of the offense severity ranking chart of the Criminal Punishment Code; amending s. 921.0024, F.S.; providing a sentencing multiplier for specified offenses; providing an effective date.

—was referred to the Committee on Fiscal Policy.

The Honorable Ben Albritton, President

I am directed to inform the Senate that the House of Representatives has passed CS/CS/HB 181 and requests the concurrence of the Senate.

Jeff Takacs, Clerk

By Judiciary Committee, Criminal Justice Subcommittee and Representative(s) Hart, Barnaby, Eskamani, Gottlieb, López, J., Plasencia—

CS for CS for HB 181—A bill to be entitled An act relating to parole; amending s. 947.165, F.S.; requiring the Florida Commission on Offender Review to provide a specified statistical analysis to the Legislature; amending s. 947.174, F.S.; requiring the Department of Corrections to provide specified information to the commission; requiring the commission to review specified information in certain circumstances; providing an effective date.

—was referred to the Committee on Fiscal Policy.

The Honorable Ben Albritton, President

I am directed to inform the Senate that the House of Representatives has passed CS/HB 411 and requests the concurrence of the Senate.

Jeff Takacs, Clerk

By Ways & Means Committee and Representative(s) Chaney—

CS for HB 411—A bill to be entitled An act relating to affordable property ad valorem tax exemption for leased land; amending s. 196.1978, F.S.; authorizing certain leased land to qualify for a specified ad valorem tax exemption; authorizing the Department of Revenue to adopt emergency rules; providing applicability; providing an effective date.

—was referred to the Committee on Rules.

The Honorable Ben Albritton, President

I am directed to inform the Senate that the House of Representatives has passed CS/CS/HB 443 and requests the concurrence of the Senate.

Jeff Takacs, Clerk

By Education & Employment Committee, Education Administration Subcommittee and Representative(s) Snyder, Rizo, Barnaby—

CS for CS for HB 443—A bill to be entitled An act relating to charter schools; amending s. 1002.33, F.S.; providing requirements for specified deadlines for charter schools; authorizing charter school governing boards to adopt codes of student conduct; providing requirements for such codes; providing requirements for the resolution of complaints or appeals relating to such codes; revising the criteria for a charter school to give enrollment preferences or limit the enrollment process to certain students; requiring charter schools to be in compliance with specified provisions relating to student welfare; revising the factors considered for the determination of a charter school's capacity; revising the facilities and land exempt from specified ad valorem taxes; authorizing a charter school to increase its student enrollment under certain circumstances; providing requirements for such charter school's facilities; providing requirements for notification of increased enrollment; requiring sponsors and the Department of Education to provide specified access and data to a charter school and the school's contractor; prohibiting certain persons from serving as members of a charter school governing board; amending s. 1002.331, F.S.; providing that certain students are excluded from specified calculations relating to a highperforming charter school's facility capacity; authorizing high-performing charter schools to assume the charters of certain charter schools; providing requirements for a request for a high-performing charter school to assume a charter; authorizing high-performing charter schools to provide virtual courses to certain students; providing funding requirements for such courses; amending s. 1013.15, F.S.; providing for the lease of specified lands, facilities, or educational plants; requiring district school boards to take specified actions before the sale, transfer, lease, or disposal of any land, facilities, or educational plants; providing that a charter school may exercise right of first refusal for such property; requiring a charter school to submit a proposal within a specific timeframe; requiring district school boards to evaluate such proposal and award a contract using specified criteria; authorizing a school board to act if no proposals from a charter school are accepted; amending s. 1013.28, F.S.; requiring district school boards to comply with specified requirements for the sale, transfer, lease, or disposal of any land, facilities, or educational plants before the disposal of any land or real property; providing an effective date.

—was referred to the Committee on Rules.

The Honorable Ben Albritton, President

I am directed to inform the Senate that the House of Representatives has passed CS/CS/HB 633 and requests the concurrence of the Senate.

Jeff Takacs, Clerk

By Health Care Budget Subcommittee, Human Services Subcommittee and Representative(s) Koster, McFarland, Tant—

CS for CS for HB 633-A bill to be entitled An act relating to behavioral health managing entities; amending s. 394.9082, F.S.; requiring the Department of Children and Families to contract biennially for specified functions; requiring the department to contract for recommendations for certain transparency improvements; requiring the department to prepare and present to the Governor and Legislature a specified final report by a specified date; requiring managing entities to report required data to the department in a standardized electronic format; providing requirements for such format; requiring managing entities to electronically submit to the department certain documents in a specified format and with specified metadata; requiring managing entities to submit certain specific measures to the department; requiring the department to post and maintain such measures on its website by a specified date every month; providing an exception; providing requirements for such measures; requiring managing entities to report each measure using a standard methodology determined by the department; providing requirements for such measures; providing that implementation of specified requirements is contingent on certain appropriations; providing an effective date.

—was referred to the Committee on Fiscal Policy.

The Honorable Ben Albritton, President

I am directed to inform the Senate that the House of Representatives has passed HB 653 and requests the concurrence of the Senate.

Jeff Takacs, Clerk

By Representative(s) Holcomb, Nix, Fabricio—

HB 653—A bill to be entitled An act relating to aggravating factors for capital felonies; amending s. 921.141, F.S.; adding as an aggravating factor that the capital felony was committed against the head of a state, or in an attempt to commit such crime a capital felony was committed against another individual; providing an effective date.

—was referred to the Committee on Fiscal Policy.

The Honorable Ben Albritton, President

I am directed to inform the Senate that the House of Representatives has passed CS/HB 687 and requests the concurrence of the Senate.

Jeff Takacs, Clerk

By Criminal Justice Subcommittee and Representative(s) Kendall, Plakon, López, J.—

CS for HB 687—A bill to be entitled An act relating to transportation offenses involving death; providing a short title; amending s. 316.193,

F.S.; providing an enhanced penalty for DUI manslaughter if a person has a prior conviction for specified offenses; amending s. 327.35, F.S.; providing an enhanced penalty for BUI manslaughter if a person has a prior conviction for specified offenses; amending s. 782.071, F.S.; providing an enhanced penalty for vehicular homicide if a person has a prior conviction for specified offenses; amending s. 782.072, F.S.; providing an enhanced penalty for vessel homicide if a person has a prior conviction for specified offenses; amending s. 921.0022, F.S.; ranking offenses on the offense severity ranking chart of the Criminal Punishment Code; providing an effective date.

-was referred to the Committee on Fiscal Policy.

The Honorable Ben Albritton, President

I am directed to inform the Senate that the House of Representatives has passed CS/HB 751 and requests the concurrence of the Senate.

Jeff Takacs, Clerk

By State Affairs Committee and Representative(s) Sapp, Bartleman, Casello, Grow, Holcomb, Partington, Plakon, Tendrich—

CS for HB 751—A bill to be entitled An act relating to law enforcement, correctional, and correctional probation officer benefits; providing a short title; amending s. 112.19, F.S.; providing that a law enforcement, correctional, or correctional probation officer and his or her spouse and dependent children are eligible for certain insurance coverage if the officer is injured in the line of duty or while engaged in an official training exercise; providing a declaration of important state interest; providing an effective date.

—was referred to the Committee on Appropriations.

The Honorable Ben Albritton, President

I am directed to inform the Senate that the House of Representatives has passed HB 809 and requests the concurrence of the Senate.

Jeff Takacs, Clerk

By Representative(s) Hunschofsky, Lopez, V., Melo, Valdés—

HB 809—A bill to be entitled An act relating to school social workers; amending s. 1012.55, F.S.; providing that persons employed as school social workers are exempt from specified educator certification requirements; providing an effective date.

—was referred to the Committee on Rules.

The Honorable Ben Albritton, President

I am directed to inform the Senate that the House of Representatives has passed CS/CS/CS/HB 845 and requests the concurrence of the Senate.

Jeff Takacs, Clerk

By Judiciary Committee, Intergovernmental Affairs Subcommittee, Criminal Justice Subcommittee and Representative(s) Maney, Daniels, Eskamani, Gantt, Harris, Holcomb, Kendall, López, J., Michael, Stark, Temple—

CS for CS for HB 845—A bill to be entitled An act relating to veterans affairs; amending s. 394.47891, F.S.; revising the admissions process for veterans treatment court programs; authorizing the court, in consultation with the multidisciplinary team, to determine eligibility for veterans treatment court programs; amending s. 948.01, F.S.; authorizing sentencing courts to divert defendants to veterans treatment court programs under certain circumstances; requiring certain notice be provided to defendants; providing for disposition of probation or community control violations by program participants; providing an effective date.

—was referred to the Committee on Fiscal Policy.

The Honorable Ben Albritton, President

I am directed to inform the Senate that the House of Representatives has passed CS/CS/HB 859 and requests the concurrence of the Senate.

Jeff Takacs, Clerk

By Education & Employment Committee, PreK-12 Budget Sub-committee and Representative(s) Tramont, Trabulsy, Barnaby, Eskamani, McFarland, Valdés—

CS for CS for HB 859—A bill to be entitled An act relating to the school readiness program; amending s. 1002.81, F.S.; revising definitions; amending s. 1002.82, F.S.; revising requirements for a specified statewide data information program within the school readiness program; amending s. 1002.84, F.S.; revising requirements for the program's uniform waiting list; amending s. 1002.85, F.S.; conforming provisions to changes made by the act; amending s. 1002.89, F.S.; revising the requirements for determining the school readiness program allocation; providing an effective date.

—was referred to the Committee on Rules.

The Honorable Ben Albritton, President

I am directed to inform the Senate that the House of Representatives has passed CS/CS/HB 1053 and requests the concurrence of the Senate.

Jeff Takacs, Clerk

By Budget Committee, Criminal Justice Subcommittee and Representative(s) Plakon, Salzman—

CS for CS for HB 1053—A bill to be entitled An act relating to the Department of Law Enforcement; repealing ss. 943.031 and 943.042, F.S., relating to the Florida Violent Crime and Drug Control Council and the Violent Crime Investigative Emergency and Drug Control Strategy Implementation Account, respectively; amending s. 943.041, F.S.; changing the name of the Crimes Against Children Criminal Profiling Program to the Child Exploitation and Crimes Against Children Program and expanding the scope of the program; amending s. 943.17, F.S.; conforming provisions to changes made by the act; amending s. 943.0313, F.S.; revising the membership of the Domestic Security Oversight Council; revising reporting requirements; amending s. 943.0311, F.S.; revising requirements for a report by the Chief of Domestic Security; amending s. 943.69, F.S.; increasing the maximum annual amount that may be spent for veterinary care of retired police dogs under a program administered through the department; amending ss. 914.25 and 914.27, F.S.; conforming provisions to changes made by the act; providing an effective date.

—was referred to the Committee on Rules.

The Honorable Ben Albritton, President

I am directed to inform the Senate that the House of Representatives has passed CS/CS/CS/HB 1105 and requests the concurrence of the Senate.

Jeff Takacs, Clerk

By Education & Employment Committee, Higher Education Budget Subcommittee, Careers & Workforce Subcommittee and Representative(s) Kincart Jonsson, Abbott, Blanco, Valdés—

CS for CS for HB 1105—A bill to be entitled An act relating to education; amending s. 1003.4282, F.S.; requiring certain internships to be included in counseling materials and presented with certain courses; requiring the Department of Education to develop certain courses; removing obsolete language; revising the requirements students must meet to satisfy the graduation requirements of the Career and Technical Education pathway option; amending s. 1003.4321, F.S.; revising the eligibility criteria for a student to earn the Seal of Fine Arts; amending s. 1003.491, F.S.; revising the requirements of a certain strategic 3-year plan to include promotion of specified Florida Bright Futures Scholarship awards; amending s. 1003.493, F.S.; requiring certain career and professional academies and secondary schools to

promote the Florida Gold Seal CAPE Scholars award; amending ss. 1009.22 and 1009.23, F.S.; prohibiting the transportation access fee from being included in the calculation of Florida Gold Seal CAPE Scholars awards; amending s. 1009.26, F.S.; conforming a cross-reference; amending s. 1009.531, F.S.; revising eligibility requirements for a Florida Bright Futures Scholarship award for certain students who earn a high school diploma from a non-Florida school; amending s. 1009.534, F.S.; removing obsolete language; revising student eligibility requirements for the Florida Academic Scholars award; providing requirements for the Advanced Placement Capstone designation as an eligibility requirement for the Florida Academic Scholars award; amending s. 1009.535, F.S.; removing obsolete language; amending s. 1009.536, F.S.; removing obsolete language; revising student eligibility requirements for the Florida Gold Seal Vocational Scholars and the Florida Gold Seal CAPE Scholars awards; amending s. 1007.271, F.S.; removing obsolete language; revising the requirements for certain career dual enrollment agreements; revising the requirements for certain dual enrollment articulation agreements; amending s. 1009.986, F.S.; revising membership of the board of directors of Florida ABLE, Inc.; requiring the board of directors to annually elect a chair; providing an effective date.

—was referred to the Committee on Rules.

The Honorable Ben Albritton, President

I am directed to inform the Senate that the House of Representatives has passed CS/HB 1213 and requests the concurrence of the Senate.

Jeff Takacs, Clerk

By Education Administration Subcommittee and Representative(s) Alvarez, D., Owen, Plasencia, Valdés, Yeager—

CS for HB 1213—A bill to be entitled An act relating to a K-12 school route optimization pilot program; amending s. 1006.23, F.S.; creating a K-12 school route optimization pilot program in specified county school districts; providing program requirements; providing reporting requirements; requiring the Department of Education to assist school districts with the implementation of the pilot program; providing for the expiration of the program; providing an effective date.

-was referred to the Committee on Rules.

The Honorable Ben Albritton, President

I am directed to inform the Senate that the House of Representatives has passed CS/HB 1237 and requests the concurrence of the Senate.

Jeff Takacs, Clerk

By Education & Employment Committee and Representative(s) Booth, Overdorf—

CS for HB 1237—A bill to be entitled An act relating to human trafficking awareness; creating s. 1006.481, F.S.; requiring public schools, including charter schools, to designate a member of the administrative personnel to provide annual training regarding human trafficking awareness to specified employees; requiring employees who receive such training to submit an acknowledgment to the school; requiring schools to keep the acknowledgments filed electronically; requiring each school district to provide the curriculum for such training and to submit such curriculum to the Department of Education for approval, including the curriculum for charter schools within the district; providing requirements for the training; providing an effective date.

—was referred to the Committee on Rules.

The Honorable Ben Albritton, President

I am directed to inform the Senate that the House of Representatives has passed CS/CS/HB 1455 and requests the concurrence of the Senate.

Jeff Takacs, Clerk

By Judiciary Committee, Criminal Justice Subcommittee and Representative(s) Baker, Jacques, Maney, Yarkosky—

CS for CS for HB 1455—A bill to be entitled An act relating to sexual offenses by persons previously convicted of sexual offenses; creating s. 794.0116, F.S.; providing mandatory minimum sentences for specified sexual offenses when committed by persons who have previously committed specified sexual offenses; providing requirements for such sentences; providing an effective date.

—was referred to the Committee on Fiscal Policy.

The Honorable Ben Albritton, President

I am directed to inform the Senate that the House of Representatives has passed CS/CS/HB 1523 and requests the concurrence of the Senate.

Jeff Takacs, Clerk

By Commerce Committee, Economic Infrastructure Subcommittee and Representative(s) Busatta—

CS for CS for HB 1523-A bill to be entitled An act relating to utility services; amending s. 180.19, F.S.; requiring certain public meetings as a condition precedent to the effectiveness of a new or an extended agreement under which a municipality will provide specified utility services in other municipalities or unincorporated areas; specifying the matters to be addressed at such public meetings; requiring such agreements to be written; requiring annual public customer meetings; defining the terms "appointed representative" and "governing body"; limiting the portion of certain utility revenues that a municipality may use to fund or finance general government functions; requiring excess revenues to be reinvested into the municipal utility or returned to customers; amending s. 180.191, F.S.; revising provisions relating to permissible rates, fees, and charges imposed by municipal water and sewer utilities on customers located outside the municipal boundaries; creating s. 180.192, F.S.; requiring municipalities that provide specified utility services to report certain information by a specified date, and annually thereafter, to the Florida Public Service Commission; requiring the commission to compile such information and submit a report by a specified date, and annually thereafter, to the Governor and the Legislature; providing construction; amending s. 366.032, F.S.; prohibiting boards, agencies, commissions, and authorities of any county, municipal corporation, or political subdivision from restricting or prohibiting fuel sources and appliances used to provide energy to consumers; revising retroactive applicability to include such boards, agencies, commissions, and authorities; providing effective

—was referred to the Committee on Rules.

The Honorable Ben Albritton, President

I am directed to inform the Senate that the House of Representatives has passed CS/CS/HB 1539 and requests the concurrence of the Senate.

Jeff Takacs, Clerk

By Education & Employment Committee, Education Administration Subcommittee and Representative(s) Bankson, Barnaby, Benarroch, Black, Cassel, Chamberlin, Daniels, Jacques, Kendall, Owen, Partington, Plasencia, Salzman, Yeager—

CS for CS for HB 1539—A bill to be entitled An act relating to materials harmful to minors; amending s. 1006.28, F.S.; defining the term "harmful to minors"; revising the list of materials used in a classroom which are subject to the objection process by parents or residents; reenacting s. 1014.05(1)(c), F.S., relating to school district notifications on parental rights, to incorporate the amendment made to s. 1006.28, F.S., in a reference thereto; providing an effective date.

-was referred to the Committee on Rules.

The Honorable Ben Albritton, President

I am directed to inform the Senate that the House of Representatives has passed CS/HB 4001 and requests the concurrence of the Senate.

Jeff Takacs, Clerk

By Intergovernmental Affairs Subcommittee and Representative(s) Giallombardo—

CS for HB 4001—A bill to be entitled An act relating to Lee County; amending the Lee County Home Rule Charter to provide requirements for single-member districts; requiring a referendum; providing effective dates.

—was referred to the Committee on Rules.

The Honorable Ben Albritton, President

I am directed to inform the Senate that the House of Representatives has passed CS/HB 4033 and requests the concurrence of the Senate.

Jeff Takacs, Clerk

By Intergovernmental Affairs Subcommittee and Representative(s) Giallombardo—

CS for HB 4033—A bill to be entitled An act relating to San Carlos Estates Water Control District, Lee County; providing that the San Carlos Estates Water Control District, an independent special district, shall become a dependent district of the City of Bonita Springs; reenacting, amending, and repealing a certain circuit court decree; providing for transition; providing that members of the city council shall assume the offices of the board of supervisors of said district; providing boundaries; requiring a referendum; providing effective dates.

—was referred to the Committee on Rules.

The Honorable Ben Albritton, President

I am directed to inform the Senate that the House of Representatives has passed HB 4035 and requests the concurrence of the Senate.

Jeff Takacs, Clerk

By Representative(s) Giallombardo—

HB 4035—A bill to be entitled An act relating to Lee County; amending chapter 98-461, Laws of Florida; revising the boundaries of the Lee County Mosquito Control District; repealing chapter 2001-335, Laws of Florida, relating to the Fort Myers Beach Mosquito Control District; providing for merger of the districts; transferring assets and liabilities of the Fort Myers Beach Mosquito Control District to the Lee County Mosquito Control District; requiring a referendum; providing effective dates.

—was referred to the Committee on Rules.

The Honorable Ben Albritton, President

I am directed to inform the Senate that the House of Representatives has passed HB 4037 and requests the concurrence of the Senate.

Jeff Takacs, Clerk

By Representative(s) LaMarca—

HB 4037—A bill to be entitled An act relating to the Downtown Development Authority of the City of Fort Lauderdale, Broward County; amending chapter 2005-346, Laws of Florida; removing the expiration date of the Downton Development Authority of the City of Fort Lauderdale; providing for transfer of assets upon dissolution pursuant to law; providing an effective date.

Proof of publication of the required notice was attached.

-was referred to the Committee on Rules.

The Honorable Ben Albritton, President

I am directed to inform the Senate that the House of Representatives has passed CS/HB 4041 and requests the concurrence of the Senate.

Jeff Takacs, Clerk

By Intergovernmental Affairs Subcommittee and Representative(s)

CS for HB 4041-A bill to be entitled An act relating to Collier County; creating the Corkscrew Grove Stewardship District; providing a short title; providing legislative findings and intent; providing definitions; stating legislative policy regarding creation of the district; establishing compliance with minimum requirements for creation of an independent special district; providing for creation and establishment of the district; establishing the legal boundaries of the district; providing for the jurisdiction and charter of the district; providing for a board of supervisors; providing for election, membership, terms, meetings, and duties of board members; providing a method for transition of the board from landowner control to control by the resident electors of the district; providing for a district manager and district personnel; providing for a district treasurer, selection of a public depository, and district budgets and financial reports; providing the general and special powers of the district; providing for bonds; providing for borrowing; providing for future ad valorem taxation; providing for special assessments; providing for issuance of certificates of indebtedness; providing for tax liens; providing for competitive procurement; providing for fees and charges; providing for termination, contraction, expansion, or merger of the district; providing for required notices to purchasers of residential units within the district; specifying district public property; providing severability; providing for a referendum; providing effective dates.

Proof of publication of the required notice was attached.

-was referred to the Committee on Rules.

The Honorable Ben Albritton, President

I am directed to inform the Senate that the House of Representatives has passed CS/HB 4047 and requests the concurrence of the Senate.

Jeff Takacs, Clerk

By Intergovernmental Affairs Subcommittee and Representative(s) Trabulsy, Overdorf—

CS for HB 4047—A bill to be entitled An act relating to the Fort Pierce Farms Water Control District, St. Lucie County; amending chapter 2013-256, Laws of Florida; increasing the maximum annual maintenance tax; limiting the annual assessment rate increases; requiring a referendum; providing effective dates.

—was referred to the Committee on Rules.

The Honorable Ben Albritton, President

I am directed to inform the Senate that the House of Representatives has passed CS/HB 4049 and requests the concurrence of the Senate.

Jeff Takacs, Clerk

By Intergovernmental Affairs Subcommittee and Representative(s) Trabulsy, Overdorf—

CS for HB 4049—A bill to be entitled An act relating to the North St. Lucie River Water Control District, St. Lucie County; amending chapter 2013-257, Laws of Florida; revising the maintenance tax assessments by the district and increasing the maximum annual maintenance tax levy; limiting the annual assessment rate increases; requiring a referendum; providing effective dates.

Proof of publication of the required notice was attached.

-was referred to the Committee on Rules.

POINT OF PERSONAL PRIVILEGE

Pursuant to Rule 8.11, Senator Pizzo rose for a point of personal privilege.

In remarks to the Senate, Senator Pizzo announced his resignation as Democratic (Minority) Leader. Senator Pizzo further stated that he had submitted a request to change his party affiliation from Democrat to No Party Affiliation and that the change would be effective 8:00 a.m., Friday, April 25, 2025.

COMMUNICATION

MEMORANDUM

To: Tracy C. Cantella, Secretary

From: Maggie Gerson

Subject: Democratic Caucus Meeting

Date: April 24, 2025

Madam Secretary,

Please allow this letter to serve as notice that effective immediately Senator Jason Pizzo has officially resigned as the Democratic Minority Leader. Additionally, Senator Pizzo mailed a Florida Voter Registration Application to the Office of the Broward County Supervisor of Election, changing his party affiliation to No Party Affiliation.

Thank you, Maggie Gerson Democratic Staff Director

MEMORANDUM

To: Tracy C. Cantella, Secretary

From: Maggie Gerson

Subject: Democratic Caucus Meeting

Date: April 24, 2025

Madam Secretary,

This memo will certify that the Senate Democratic Caucus met this afternoon for the purpose of electing a Democratic Leader. The Caucus has elected Senator Lori Berman as the Democratic Leader for the remainder of the 2024-2026 term. Senator Tracie Davis will continue to serve as the Democratic Leader Pro Tempore for the 2024-2026 term.

Thank you, Maggie Gerson Democratic Staff Director

CORRECTION AND APPROVAL OF JOURNAL

The Journal of April 23 was corrected and approved.

CO-INTRODUCERS

Senators Berman—CS for SB 1212; Gruters—CS for SB 1212; Harrell—CS for SB 1212

ADJOURNMENT

On motion by Senator Passidomo, the Senate adjourned at 3:53 p.m. for the purpose of holding committee meetings and conducting other Senate business to reconvene at 1:00 p.m., Monday, April 28 or upon call of the President.

JOURNAL OF THE SENATE

Daily Numeric Index for April 24, 2025

 $\begin{array}{lll} BA-Bill\ Action & FR-First\ Reading \\ BF-Bill\ Failed & MO-Motion \\ BP-Bill\ Passed & RC-Reference\ Change \\ CO-Co-Introducers & SM-Special\ Master\ Reports \\ CR-Committee\ Report & SO-Bills\ on\ Special\ Orders \\ CS-Committee\ Substitute,\ First\ Reading & \\ \end{array}$

Co — Committee Substitute, First Reading	
SB 96	CS/CS/SB 1606 (CS) 554
CS/CS/SB 132	CS/SB 1606 (CS) 553
CS/CS/SB 140	CS/CS/SB 1618
CS/CS/SB 364	CS/CS/SB 1620 (BA) 529, (BA) 544, (BP) 544, (SO) 553
CS/SB 398	CS/SB 1620
CS/SB 430	CS/CS/SB 1624
CS/SB 444 (BA) 535, (SO) 553	CS/SB 1644 (BA) 548
CS/SB 612	CS/SB 1654 (BA) 529, (SO) 553
CS/SB 674 (BA) 535, (BT) 535, (SO) 553	CS/SB 1674
CS/CS/SB 736 (BA) 535, (SO) 553	CS/CS/CS/SB 1702
SB 788	CS/CS/CS/SB 1742
CS/CS/CS/SB 818 (CS) 553	CS/SB 1782 (BA) 541, (SO) 553
CS/CS/SB 818	CS/CS/SB 1800
CS/SB 820	CS/CS/SB 1804
CS/CS/SB 824 (BA) 528, (BP) 528, (SO) 553	CS/SB 1804 (CR) 553
CS/SB 830 (BA) 525, (BP) 527, (SO) 553	CS/SB 1820 (BA) 548
CS/CS/SB 846	CS/CS/SB 1838 (BA) 536, (SO) 553
CS/SB 868 (BA) 527, (BA) 552, (BP) 553, (SO) 553	CS/CS/CS/SB 1842 (CS) 556
SB 892 (BA) 534, (BP) 534, (SO) 553	CS/CS/SB 1842 (CR) 553
CS/SB 916 (BA) 527, (SO) 553	
CS/CS/CS/SB 922 (BA) 551, (BA) 552	CS/CS/HB 113
CS/CS/SB 924 (BA) 526, (BA) 527, (SO) 553	CS/CS/HB 181
CS/CS/CS/SB 954 (BA) 533, (BP) 534, (SO) 553	HB 259
SB 984	HB 307
CS/CS/SB 988 (BA) 546, (BA) 547, (SO) 553	CS/CS/CS/HB 351
CS/CS/SB 1050	CS/CS/HB 379
CS/SB 1050	CS/HB 411
SB 1054	CS/CS/HB 429
CS/SB 1072(BA) 526, (SO) 553	CS/CS/HB 437 (BA) 533, (BP) 533
CS/CS/SB 1076 (BA) 550, (BA) 551	CS/CS/HB 443
CS/CS/CS/SB 1078 (BA) 550 CS/SB 1080 (MO) 525, (BA) 526	CS/HB 519 (BA) 546, (BP) 546 CS/CS/HB 551 (BA) 550, (BP) 550
CS/SB 1102	CS/CS/HB 633 (FR) 557
CS/SB 1122 (BA) 531, (BP) 532, (SO) 553	HB 653 (FR) 557
CS/CS/SB 1136 (BA) 533, (SO) 553	CS/CS/HB 669
CS/SB 1150	CS/HB 677
CS/CS/SB 1156	CS/HB 681 (BA) 545, (BP) 545
CS/SB 1156	CS/HB 687
CS/SB 1160	HB 693 (BA) 526, (BP) 526
SB 1162	CS/CS/HB 715
CS/CS/SB 1174 (BA) 531, (SO) 553	HB 735 (BA) 531, (BP) 531
CS/CS/CS/SB 1180 (BA) 532, (SO) 553	CS/HB 751
CS/CS/SB 1212	CS/CS/HB 757
CS/SB 1212	CS/HB 777
CS/SB 1224 (BA) 546, (SO) 553	HB 809(FR) 558
CS/CS/SB 1266	CS/CS/CS/HB 845
CS/SB 1310 (BA) 530, (BA) 531, (SO) 553	CS/HB 847 (BA) 526, (BP) 526
CS/CS/CS/SB 1344 (BA) 529, (BP) 530, (SO) 553	CS/CS/HB 859 (FR) 558
CS/CS/SB 1386 (BA) 529, (BP) 529, (SO) 553 CS/CS/SB 1422	CS/HB 867 (BA) 527, (BP) 527 CS/CS/HB 903
CS/CS/CS/SB 1422 (BA) 545, (BA) 540, (SO) 555 CS/CS/CS/SB 1444 (CS) 554	CS/CS/HB 969
CS/CS/SB 1444	CS/CS/HB 989
CS/SB 1450 (SIC) 553	CS/HB 1049 (BA) 536, (BP) 541
CS/SB 1458 (BA) 545, (SO) 553	CS/CS/HB 1053 (FR) 558
CS/CS/SB 1490 (BA) 543, (BP) 544, (SO) 553	CS/HB 1099 (BA) 545, (BP) 545
CS/CS/SB 1514 (BA) 543, (BP) 543, (SO) 553	CS/CS/CS/HB 1105
CS/CS/SB 1574 (BA) 543, (BP) 543, (SO) 553	CS/CS/HB 1121
CS/SB 1590	CS/HB 1213
CS/CS/SB 1604 (BA) 542, (BA) 543, (SO) 553	CS/CS/CS/HB 1219 (BA) 551, (BP) 552

JOURNAL OF THE SENATE

CS/HB 1237	CS/HB 4001
CS/HB 1351 (BA) 529, (BP) 529	CS/HB 4033
CS/CS/HB 1455	HB 4035
CS/HB 1487	HB 4037
CS/CS/HB 1523	CS/HB 4041
CS/CS/HB 1539	CS/HB 4047
CS/HB 1607	CS/HB 4049